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WaveLight at a glance

Results
 
Revenues   90,876 70,370
EBITDA   11,800 4,955
EBIT   6,292 660
Cosolidated profit/loss   (10,072) (13,490)
Gross profit   38,753 25,984

Share figures
 
Number of shares on closing date (July, 31)   6,586,026 6,577,026
Earnings per share in € (diluted)   (1.53) (2.05)

Employees
 
Average number of employees   174 262

Balance sheet

Equity   11,787 22,995
Equity ratio   19% 31%
Total assets   62,048 74,398

Fiscal Year
2006/2007*In € thousands

Fiscal Year
2007/2008

*) previous-year amounts were restated to conform to the new corporate structure.
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Technical leadership from tradition: As a dynamic medi-

cal technology company, WaveLight AG can already 

today look back on a remarkable success story. Founding 

in 1996, stock market flotation in 1999, in October 2003 

then for WaveLight as the first European manufacturer 

to obtain approval from the USA Federal Drugs Adminis-

tration (FDA) for the sale of an excimer laser for LASIK 

applications – these are only some of the important 

milestones of the successful corporate development.

Committed to progress  
in refractive surgery

CompanyA



 7

WaveLight has been successfully expanding its technology 

leadership in the area of refractive surgery for around ten years. 

Groundbreaking medical innovations and treatment technology 

proven world wide, but mainly the motivation and the expertise 

of the complete WaveLight team, are important key factors for 

the sustainable company success “made in Erlangen”.

Twelve years after the company founding, WaveLight has mainly 

positioned itself as a successful, medium size medical techno-

logy specialist. The company is thus looking into the future with 

ambitious objectives. In the course of the now completed 

strategic realignment, the no longer core business divisions of 

Urology, Aesthetics and Industry were sold and the Intraocular 

Surgery business unit was also divested. 

The focus of the current and future company activity: the 

consistent and successful concentration on the core competence 

of refractive surgery. 

With a groundbreaking product range of optimised treat-

ment solutions for high-precision correction of sight defects, 

WaveLight has already today established an excellent position. 

The ALLEGRETTO product family and the state-of-the-art 

CONCERTO laser system impressively underline the world 

wide leading position of the Erlangen refractive company; the 

recently developed RONDO microkeratome and the powerful 

ALLEGRO diagnostic systems round off the WaveLight refractive 

product range. 

In order to be able to continue to successfully expand the 

technology leadership in the area of treatment solutions for 

LASIK applications, the company consistently uses the results 

of its intensive research and development work. And the also 

sustainable quality oriented production in the Upper Palatinate 

is WaveLight’s clear commitment to the Germany production 

location.

The Board of Directors has also set the course for further 

promotion of the world wide market activities and for opening 

up new sales regions. As well as Europe and the Far East part 

of Asia, the USA market for sight defect corrections will also 

play an important role in the future for the company success. 

An important factor here: the successful collaboration with 

the majority shareholder, Alcon Inc. Since February 2008, the 

technologically leading WaveLight laser and diagnostic systems 

“made in Germany” have been successfully sold using the 

closely meshed and effective distribution network of Alcon in 

the USA. Intensification of the collaboration and the increased 

use of potential synergies in the areas of Research and 

Development, Production and Sales and Marketing are intended 

for the future.

WaveLight is confidently looking into the future of the company 

with ambitious objectives. The continuous further development 

of the technologically leading product range, the intensive 

activities for world wide markets and last but not least the 

collaboration with Alcon: together, these factors form the 

sustainable foundation for the continued success story of 

WaveLight in the future.
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The dream of perfect vision – it is probably as old as mankind itself. 

Initially, ground glass in front of the eyes for centuries and not 

until much later contact lenses were the only effective possibilities 

for correcting sight defects. However, the “classic” visual aids for 

correction of sight defects have been increasingly competing with 

the excimer laser for refractive surgery for about 1� years. Originally 

developed for the manufacture of miniaturised microchips, this type 

of computer controlled cold-light laser has proven itself millions 

of times in the context of LASIK procedures. Using high-precision 

directional light with a specified wavelength, an exactly calculated 

part of the cornea layer is removed – and in doing so the sight defect 

of the patient in a matter of seconds. Always at the forefront of what 

is technologically and technically feasible, the technology leader in 

this area is: WaveLight AG.

See the Difference –  
from the laser specialist 
to the ophthalmology 
company

CompanyA
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Visions become reality

However, how does one become world wide technology leader 

in this high-tech segment of the medical technology sector 

in such a short time? With the founding of the WaveLight 

company in April 1996, Max Reindl gave an impressive early 

answer. His vision: the dream of letting perfect vision become 

reality and sustainably improving the medical treatment stan-

dards in laser-based refractive surgery. Mainly inspired by the 

idea of making possible an ideal treatment result for the patient 

and relaxed working for the physician, the highly motivated 

WaveLight team successfully confronted the challenging task. 

WaveLight excimer lasers for the refractive surgery of ophthal-

mologists are recognised world wide as technologically leading 

for the precise and gentle correction of sight defects. 

For example, the implementation of the groundbreaking 

wavefront principle for refractive surgery in 1999 represented 

a groundbreaking achievement. WaveLight can also claim a 

cutting edge position for the clinical application of the wavefront 

principle. The Erlangen specialists were the first company in the 

world to develop the technical feasibility for wavefront-optimised 

LASIK procedures. The crucial factor here: the individual patient 

adaptation for the corneal tissue removal makes possible an 

optimum quality of view due to the reduction of contrast vision.

 

ALLEGRETTO WAVE: The first European excimer laser 

for refractive surgery applications approved in the USA

However, the year 1999 is also an extremely important one 

from another point of view. The stock exchange flotation 

happened in September and thus the change in legal form to 

a stock corporation. About one month later, in October 1999, 

the foundation was laid for the ambitious “FDA Approval 

ALLEGRETTO WAVE” project. At the end of the time and 

resource intensive approval process, WaveLight received 

the final “Approval Letter” of the FDA (USA Food and Drug 

Administration) in October 2003 and could start the sale of 

its ALLEGRETTO WAVE excimer laser in the USA as the first 

European manufacturer. Thus, an important foundation for 

successful marketing in the largest medical technology market 

in the world was laid.

Diversified product range opens up development 

opportunities

However, at the beginning in Erlangen, ophthalmology was not 

the only focus of the company strategy. With the diversifica-

tion of the product range into the Ophthalmology, Aesthetics, 

Urology and Industry divisions, WaveLight mainly wanted 

to participate in the development opportunities in different 

segments of laser technology. Several acquisitions followed 

with the objective of further expanding the technological 

company competence. Particularly in the area of aesthetic laser 

applications, large potentials for growth were opened up as 

early as the start of the company activity which WaveLight also 

utilised successfully.
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Strong growth due to entrepreneurial excellence 

It was not only at the technological level using innovative 

treatment solutions that the company made itself noticeable; 

WaveLight also knew how to impress from the economic 

viewpoint. The company developed rapidly – and was distin-

guished several times for its growth dynamics. A particular 

highlight here is the award of the “German Founder’s Award” 

in 2002. Max Reindl, the company founder and CEO, accepted 

the distinction on behalf of the complete WaveLight team as 

recognition of the extraordinary growth and the potential for 

market leadership.

Investment in the company future and in the Germany 

location

Sustainable growth needs not only visions but also the neces-

sary production capacities for the implementation of the 

strategic long-term view. With the start-up of a new produc-

tion facility for medical lasers planned from the ground up, 

WaveLight established a future-oriented production location in 

November 2004 which complies with all international important 

medical technology quality standards. 

The modular design, the implementation of future-oriented 

production standards and the production flow oriented basic 

concept make the WaveLight medical laser production facility 

one of the most modern of its kind in Europe. The decision in 

the course of the location selection for a production facility in 

Pressath, Upper Palatinate was deliberate – WaveLight’s endur-

ing commitment to the Germany location. Efficient production 

with low cycle and assembly times is the basis for the “made 

by WaveLight” product quality recognised world wide. The  

generously designed production capacities and further expansion 

possibilities also facilitate sustainable growth in the future. 

In focus: the core competence of ophthalmology

Four business divisions – four pillars of the success. Since the 

1999/2000 fiscal year the main focus in Erlangen has been the 

objective of generating growth based on a diversified product 

range. As well as the Urology and Industrial Laser Applications 

divisions, the Aesthetics division was mainly impressive with  

solid increases in sales and thus supplemented the Ophthal-

mology business division as another strong, key pillar of the 

company. 

In the following years, however, the concentration on the core 

competence of ophthalmology became more and more appar-

ent as the entrepreneurial ideal way – an above average growth 

potential world wide and WaveLight’s technological leading 

position provided powerful arguments for focussing on intra-

ocular surgery. Consequently, not only the consistent expansion 

of ophthalmology but also the divestment of the business areas 

not belonging to the core business were also decided. As the 

first step in this direction, the Aesthetics division was spun off 

into a wholly owned subsidiary and the Urology division was 

also sold in the 2005/2006 fiscal year. The sale of the Industrial 

Lasers division in October 2006 and the sale of the Aesthetics 

subsidiary in September 2007 were further important steps 

on the way to the “pure“ refractive company. Against this 

background, the divestment of the still young business unit 

of intraocular surgery was also completed in the fiscal year 

2007/2008. 
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On growth course with strong partner

A new chapter was added to the history of the WaveLight 

company with the engagement of Alcon Inc. which acquired the 

majority of shares in WaveLight in Autumn 2007 in the course 

of a voluntary public takeover bid. Alcon currently holds more 

than 77 percent of the voting rights in WaveLight AG. 

Important for the collaboration of both companies: the Domina-

tion Agreement concluded between Alcon and WaveLight in 

March 2008 which, however, still needs to be recorded in the 

commercial register to become legally effective. The seamless 

integration of WaveLight into the Alcon group of companies  

and the realisation of potential synergies in Research & Deve- 

lopment, Sales and Marketing and in Purchasing and Produc-

tion were formulated as common objectives in the context of 

the agreement. 

The cooperation of both companies is already bearing fruits in 

the USA: WaveLight was able to record a clear increase in sales 

in the largest sales market in the world for medical technol-

ogy after Alcon had taken over the distribution of the “made 

in Germany” laser systems in February 2008. More intensive 

collaboration is planned for the future. The technological com- 

petence of WaveLight in refractive surgery and the market 

strength and world wide resources of the Alcon group of com-

panies form the common basis for this. 

High-tech innovations for a plus in treatment quality 

and safety

Outstanding treatment results, maximum safety and reliability 

for LASIK procedures recognised world wide: the WaveLight 

laser and diagnostic systems product families also impress the 

most demanding users and enjoy an excellent reputation in the 

“Ophthalmic Community”. Thus, the best prerequisites in order 

to create the visions for tomorrow’s groundbreaking treatment 

solutions based on today’s state-of-the-art technology. 

With the new development of a concept laser system, the 

Erlangen company has raised the bar a little higher for ground-

breaking innovations in refractive surgery. The optimisation of 

numerous technical parameters without compromises was the 

most important item in the requirements specification of the 

WaveLight engineers. The concept system officially presented 

for the first time in November 2007 should primarily provide the 

technology carrier for future treatment solutions.

The data sheet of the 1,000 Hz concept laser is already very 

pro-mising. It removes the corneal tissue using approx. 1,000 

high-precision laser pulses per second – faster than any other 

excimer laser in the world. 

Due to this high repetition rate, the concept system is already 

impressive today due to the further clear reduction of the neces-

sary treatment duration. This has not only obvious benefits for 

the patient comfort but mainly for the treatment process. In 

other words: The shorter the effective treatment duration is, the 

“simpler” and more precise the LASIK procedure with respect to 

precisely predictable and reproducible treatment results.
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On the other hand, the superiority of the concept system in the 

further optimised treatment safety is clear. In comparison with 

a “conventional” excimer laser, the number of eye movements 

to be compensated for drops to only one fifth. In turn, these 

are compensated for extremely quickly by an also optimised 

high performance “Eye Tracking System”. The groundbreaking 

result for future device generations: a previously unattained 

high quality standard for precision, gentle and at the same time 

completely safe LASIK procedure. 

The completion of the new WaveLight femtolaser system is also 

currently a focus of the company’s activities. While a microkera-

tome is used for the “conventional” preparation of the corneal 

flap in the course of a LASIK procedure, an infrared laser is 

used for the femtosecond laser. Typically for WaveLight, the 

new system is distinguished by outstanding treatment results 

and maximum reliability and safety. As a recently developed 

alternative to the already proven WaveLight microkeratome 

RONDO, the femtolaser system will supplement the high-quality 

WaveLight product range for refractive surgery in the future. 

Optimally integrating diagnosis and treatment

The laser beam of an excimer laser can only model the cornea 

so precisely and effectively as the data determined in the course 

of the preliminary examination of the appearance of the eye 

allows. Consequently, the further simplified integration of diag-

nosis and treatment was the focus for the development of the 

new ARTISTA software generation. Basis of the new software: 

the comprehensive networking of WaveLight diagnosis and 

treatment systems via WaveNet Server. For the first time, the 

treating ophthalmologist obtains the possibility with ARTISTA 

to match all relevant steps for the treatment process with each 

other precisely and in an uncomplicated way with only one 

software tool - from the diagnosis to the evaluation of the data 

to the planning and execution of the actual LASIK procedure. 

In addition to the comfortable coordination of the individual 

treatment phases, the new software provides the ophthalmolo-

gist user with other functionalities such as for example an 

integrated patient management system and comprehensive 

backup functions. The reduction of complexity was mainly in 

the foreground for the graphic design and arrangement of the 

user interface. In other words: ARTISTA is distinguished by an 

ergonomic design which facilitates self-explanatory and intuitive 

operation.



 1�
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Medical progress sustainably involved 

Not only reaction to the future challenges of the world wide 

increasing competition in ophthalmology but active participa-

tion in the technological development in refractive surgery: 

WaveLight is already ideally established today to successfully 

meet the increasing requirements for an efficient high-tech 

company in the global competitive environment. 

Technologically, the company is more than only just ahead of 

many of its competitors. The innovative WaveLight concept 

laser system sets not only new technological standards but to-

gether with the new ARTISTA treatment software also provides 

an outlook of future treatment standards in refractive surgery. 

Comprehensive integration of diagnosis and treatment func-

tions, uncomplicated operation and last but not least outstand-

ing treatment results mark the LASIK-OP of tomorrow. 

Strategically, new development perspectives and very promising 

growth potentials are opened up for WaveLight due to the 

collaboration with the economically and administratively strong 

majority shareholder, Alcon. Mainly in the USA, but also in 

the traditional medical technology market in the Far Eastern 

Asia and in Europe, WaveLight laser systems will acquire other 

medium and long term crucial market shares according to the 

objective of the business planning for the future.

In the course of its twelve years of corporate history WaveLight 

has successfully and simultaneously sustainably transformed 

itself from the broad-based laser manufacturer to the highly 

specialised ophthalmology company. More than ever, the 

company in Erlangen is concentrating on the development and 

production of groundbreaking treatment solutions for refractive 

surgery. However, with all the efforts for technological perfec-

tion and commercial success, the improvement of human sight 

is the ultimate benchmark. The dream of perfect vision: it is the 

most important motivation for “made by WaveLight” innova-

tions which the company founder and CEO, Max Reindl, and his 

team have already today come a great deal closer to.
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Max Reindl, Chairman of the Board of Directors of 

WaveLight AG, on the financial year 2007/2008 and the 

future growth and development prospects in light of 

the successful Alcon takeover bid and company 

reorientation.

Interview with  
Max Reindl,  
CEO of WaveLight AG

CompanyA
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Mr Reindl, you can look back on an eventful financial  

year 2007/2008. In your opinion, what was of special  

significance for WaveLight AG?

The preceding reporting period was shaped by a number of 

events which were of fundamental importance for WaveLight 

AG’s strategic and operational corporate activities. And they 

will continue to play this role in the future. Of special signifi-

cance, without doubt, was the successful takeover bid made to 

WaveLight AG’s share holders by the ophthalmology company 

Alcon. Also of decisive importance were naturally our efforts to 

push forward the strategic and operational reorientation and 

the associated concentration on our core competence in refrac-

tive surgery.

Could you briefly explain the most important features  

of the Alcon, Inc. takeover bid?

On August 10, 2007 Alcon, Inc. submitted its voluntary public 

takeover bid to WaveLight shareholders. Alcon offered a cash 

payment of € 15.00 for each WaveLight AG bearer share. 

Within an acceptance period, extended by two weeks due to a 

change to the takeover bid and ending on September 25, 2007, 

WaveLight AG share holders had the opportunity to tender their 

shares to Alcon, Inc. Within the framework of an additional ac-

ceptance period, those shareholders who hadn’t yet made a de-

cision had the opportunity to tender their shares to Alcon, Inc. 

by October 12, 2007 at the latest.

What was the nature of this change? What conditions 

were attached to the takeover bid?

In addition to the fulfilment of the usual conditions, the acqui-

sition of 75 percent of WaveLight shares by Alcon as well as  

the approval of a number of antitrust authorities represent-

ed important preconditions for a successful takeover. On 

September 10, 2007 Alcon made known that it had waived 

the condition that it purchase a minimum of 75 percent of 

WaveLight shares. As this change was made during the last  

two weeks of the acceptance period, it was extended by a  

further two weeks. It finally ended on September 25, 2007.

Did you, together with the Supervisory Board, support 

the takeover bid?

Yes, the Board of Directors as well as the WaveLight Super-

visory Board were in support of the takeover bid. They issued  

a joint statement to WaveLight shareholders recommending 

that they accept the offer.

The advantages for both companies are clear to see: WaveLight 

is a global leader in the refractive surgery sector, Alcon, as a 

successful international ophthalmology company, has a close-

meshed and highly effective sales network, especially in the 

USA. In combination, Alcon’s global economic strength and 

highly effective sales structure, together with WaveLight’s high-

end refractive surgery technology, form a solid and extremely 

promising foundation for the further expansion of the market 

activities of both companies on the global ophthalmology 

market.

What effect has Alcon’s commitment had on  

WaveLight AG’s corporate activity?

The cooperation with the Alcon group has the explicit aim  

of ensuring that we continue our intensive research and  

development work as a means to both defending and exten-

ding our lead in the field of refractive surgery technology.

Following the successful takeover bid, an agreement was 

signed between WaveLight AG and the Alcon group in Febru-

ary 2008 on the restructuring of WaveLight’s sales activities in 

the USA. Since then, Alcon Laboratories has been responsible 

for sales activities in the USA, as previously conducted by our 

WaveLight subsidiary, WaveLight, Inc. As a consequence, the 

leading technology of WaveLight’s laser and diagnosis systems, 

“made in Germany”, will be sold in the USA through Alcon’s 

close-meshed and efficient distribution network. 

The agreement covers a guaranteed order volume for laser  

systems to be purchased by Alcon within a three year period. 

We will also receive the revenue from the equipment base of 

over 125 WaveLight laser systems already installed in the USA, 

according to the customary “Per Procedure Fee”.
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In March 2008 you concluded a Domination Agreement 

with Alcon, Inc. When does it come into force? 

We concluded the Domination Agreement with Alcon on March 

20, 2008. In order for it to come into force it had to be appro-

ved by the WaveLight AG’s Extraordinary General Meeting. All 

share holders were invited to attend the meeting on May 7,  

2008 in Munich. The Domination Agreement was accepted 

at the Extraordinary General Meeting by a large majority. 

However, it hasn’t been entered into the Commercial Register 

yet due to the fact that a suit filed by individual WaveLight 

shareholders against the resolution of the Extraordinary General 

Meeting is pending at the regional court of Nuremberg-Fürth. 

The Domination Agreement is only effective once it has been 

entered into the Commercial Register, consequently it hasn’t 

yet come into force. However, on August 15, 2008, WaveLight 

AG filed a court application for the release of the resolution on 

the agreement to the Domination Agreement for entry into the 

Commercial Register.

What significance does the Domination Agreement  

have for your company?

With the singing of the Domination Agreement Alcon and 

WaveLight have set themselves the goal of a smooth opera- 

tional integration of the two companies and the provision of  

full minority rights to Wavelight AG’s outside shareholders in 

accordance with stock corporation law. The interests of the  

outside shareholders have been fully met through a cash ten- 

der and a fixed annual compensatory payment in the form of  

a guaranteed dividend.

Will WaveLight AG’s corporate structure change  

as a result?

Within the framework of the Domination Agreement WaveLight 

remains a legally independent unit. However, the management 

of the Company will be placed under the control of Alcon, Inc. 

Furthermore, the majority shareholder Alcon has committed 

itself within the terms of the agreement to balancing any losses 

incurred by WaveLight.

Which important synergy effects do you anticipate from 

the implementation of the Domination Agreement?

Above all, I expect the consolidation of the two companies’ 

competences to have a positive effect on the areas of research 

and development in lasers for the correction of visual impair-

ments, global sales and marketing as well as on purchasing and 

production.

What goals have you set yourself with the reorientation 

of your company and which operational measures were 

concretely implemented in the financial year 2007/2008?

Without doubt, the focus of our reorientation was the explicit 

concentration on our core competence in refractive surgery,  

as well as the sale of those sectors outside our core business.  

Back in July 2006 we sold off our urology division and in Octo-

ber 2006 this was followed by the sale of our industrial laser 

division. In the financial year 2007/2008 we largely completed 

the strategic and operational reorientation of the WaveLight AG. 

In September 2007 we sold off our Aesthetic subsidiary. 

Furthermore, in December 2007 we sold off our holding in the 

WaveLight GmbH in Berlin as well as our holding in the Dutch 

Medical Device Production B.V. The conclusion of the last two 

transactions represented the end of our association with the 

business field of intraocular surgical applications. Now, and 

in future, after all these transactions and as a pure refractive 

surgery company, we will return to concentrating on what has 

enabled us to set global technological standards: The develop-

ment and production of high quality treatment solutions for 

refractive surgery.

What were the main reasons for selling off the  

intraocular surgery business division, which you  

actually rebuilt as late as 2005/2006?

First of all I would like to briefly explain why our decision  

to rebuild the intraocular surgery division in 2006 was  

absolutely correct and expedient according to our corporate 

strategy at that time.
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Our aim was to provide ophthalmologists working in practices 

and clinics with innovative products for intraocular surgery – in 

addition to the globally renowned and successful WaveLight 

systems for refractive surgery. Within the context of a highly 

competitive market, which has been characterised by a clear 

trend towards consolidation for a number of years, our inten-

tion was to meet the existing demand structure for high quality 

complete solutions from WaveLight as a single provider, simul-

taneously taking advantage of the market’s synergy potential.

However, following Alcon’s successful takeover bid the basis for 

our activities in this business sector underwent a fundamental 

change. Firstly, Alcon has a broad palette of high quality prod-

ucts in the field of intraocular surgery. Consequently, further 

capital intensive measures for the expansion of this business 

sector, required for a successful international market presence,  

no longer appeared expedient. Secondly, Alcon’s financial 

strength and efficient sales structure enabled us to completely 

focus our business activities on our core competence in refrac-

tive surgery. 

What are the advantages resulting from the  

reorientation? Why do you believe you will be  

successful with this strategy?

Our portfolio of ophthalmological products is not just responsi-

ble for our international reputation for maximum reliability and 

safety. It also stands for trend-setting technological innovations 

in the field of the laser based correction of visual impairments. 

In the past we have repeatedly demonstrated, in an impressive 

fashion, that we are capable of developing, producing and suc-

cessfully marketing groundbreaking product innovations in the 

field of refractive surgery. The agreement concluded between 

ourselves and the Alcon group on the restructuring of US sales 

has already opened up turnover potential which we wouldn’t 

have realised on the basis of our subsidiary in the USA alone. 

For this reason, we are convinced that we have taken the cor-

rect strategic measures, which ultimately have placed us back 

on our accustomed growth path. The significant improvement  

in sales revenue for the financial year 2007/2008 makes this 

more than clear.

Doesn’t the focus on refractive surgery bring risks  

with it too?

All entrepreneurial activities are inseparably connected with 

both economic risks and opportunities. However, the successful 

results for the financial year 2007/2008 already prove that the 

focus on refractive surgery was correct. We are also convinced 

that the future will see a global rise in demand for refractive 

surgery laser systems “made by WaveLight”.

The company reorientation in the USA has now  

been carried through. What is the situation in other  

regions of the world?

Although the USA is an important focus of WaveLight’s stra-

tegic and operational corporate activity, we naturally have a 

strong presence in other parts of the world and intend to con-

tinue growing in these areas too. For example, in the financial 

year 2007/2008 we succeeded in consolidating our presence in 

the Asian medical technology market, a market that has tradi-

tionally been very important for us. We are also expanding our 

position in the European market for medical technology, step 

by step. In the long term, we see the contact to the ophthal-

mologists as an important building block for a successful and 

sustainable development of the global market. Accordingly, we 

vigorously cultivate regular dialog with the global user com-

munity. Through our regular presence at important national and 

international trade fairs and congresses we present our ground-

breaking products to the international specialist audience, pro-

viding information on the innovations, reliability and safety of 

WaveLight applications. We make it clear that we are optimis-

ing LASIK treatment for both the patient and the physician.

What role does the market environment play for 

WaveLight’s corporate development? 

It goes without saying that even a global technology leader 

such as WaveLight AG doesn’t operate independently of market 

conditions. In the medical technology sector the mechanisms  

of the much quoted globalisation are primarily visible in the 
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increasing worldwide integration of business and market pro-

cesses. Against this background, the respective regional market 

environments play a decisive role in WaveLight’s corporate suc-

cess. However, they are something we have no direct influence 

on. Accordingly, we conduct a careful, exhaustive monitoring 

and analysis of market developments. This forms the basis for 

the development of an appropriate operational strategy for the 

regional markets, markets which often differ greatly. 

In your estimation, can we look forward to further 

growth in the ophthalmology sector in the future?

Market experts predict that the global market for ophthal- 

mology will continue to grow. However, we have observed  

that the global medical technology market has been in up- 

heaval for a number of years. The market structure is increas-

ingly dominated by large, internationally operative suppliers 

with a broad product palette. We have adjusted to these  

changes in good time with the high quality, innovative and 

global leading-edge technology of our product palette of treat-

ment and diagnosis systems in the field of refractive surgery.

It is the Asian medical technology market which, above all, is 

characterised by both strong growth and increasing competition 

and price pressure. All in all, we anticipate continued, signifi-

cant growth potential in the field of refractive surgery in Asia. 

Important factors will be, above all, the positive development in 

purchasing power combined with the continued growth in the 

population.

However, we also see a positive trend in Europe with a growth 

in demand for the correction of visual impairments. Here too, 

we intend to invest all our energy in taking advantage of avail-

able opportunities. 

How do WaveLight shareholders assess your  

strategic reorientation? What is the situation with  

the outside shareholders? Do they also have  

confidence in the new strategy? 

The vast majority of the WaveLight outside shareholders clearly 

expressed their confidence in WaveLight AG’s repositioning 

with their voting behaviour at the two General Meetings in the 

financial year 2007/2008. 

I would like to emphasise once again that the outside share-

holders will not suffer any disadvantages as a result of the 

Domination Agreement between Alcon, Inc. and WaveLight AG. 

In fact, they will enjoy full minority rights according to stock  

corporation law.

What goals and plans do you have for strengthening 

the position of WaveLight AG on the capital market?

Whoever is familiar with the company WaveLight, knows that 

an active and sustainable capital market communication in the 

interests of our shareholders has been one of our company’s 

basic principles from the very beginning. Consequently, it is also 

our current aim to gain the trust of shareholders and the inter-

ested public in WaveLight AG, strengthening this trust. We aim 

to make up-to-date and transparent information on WaveLight 

available to all shareholders and interest groups.

What role does Germany play as a location and what  

future do you see for WaveLight AG employees?

Not only have we continued to emphasise that promoting and 

supporting Germany as a business location is very important to 

us, we have also put our convictions into action. With the con-

struction of our state-of-the-art production plant in Pressath in 

the Upper Palatinate we consciously chose Germany as a loca-

tion with its site-specific advantages – as opposed to transfer-

ring production to cheaper, neighbouring countries. It is here 

that we are able to realise our sustainable production concept, 

a concept fit for the future. We are convinced that Germany as 

a production location still offers the best conditions for the pro-

duction of our laser systems, and that at the highest level.

Human resources play a decisive role here. Essentially, it is the 

know-how and commitment of our highly motivated and well 

qualified staff that has enabled us to build our position as pre-

mium supplier for refractive surgery over the years. Not only do 

we create the necessary preconditions for a constructive work-

ing environment for existing employees, we also cultivate an 
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intensive dialog with future scientific staff members. This will 

continue to be the case in the future.

Are you satisfied with the progress and results of the 

financial year 2007/2008? What can we expect from 

WaveLight in the medium term?

Overall, the financial year 2007/2008 was highly successful. We 

were able to continue our customary growth course, which we 

returned to in the financial year 2006/2007. The successful re-

positioning of our company and the commitment of our majority 

shareholder formed the foundation on which we continued to 

significantly increase both our sales revenue and EBIT. We  

generated a turnover of € 90,876 thousands in the period to 

July 31, 2008. This is equivalent to an increase of approximately 

29 percent. We succeeded in improving the EBIT by 853 percent 

to a figure of € 6,292 thousands.

One-off effects against the background of the Alcon take-

over and expenses associated with the rest restructuring have 

had a downward pressure on the EBIT. Without these effects, 

WaveLight can report an adjusted EBIT of over € 12 million.

In the new financial year, which as a short financial year only 

lasts five months, we will continue to concentrate on our core 

competence in refractive surgery as well as vigorously extend-

ing our technology leadership. Furthermore, we will continue 

to surprise the growing international community of WaveLight 

users with a range of new technical specifications which will 

produce a further optimisation of both the treatment results and 

safety of LASIK operations.

You founded WaveLight twelve years ago. Were you able 

to predict the future development of WaveLight? What 

do you wish for the future?

A lot has happened in the twelve years since the founding of 

WaveLight AG, and overall we can look back on a very success-

ful period. This began with our listing on the stock exchange in 

1999, continued with the first FDA approval for our ALLEGRETTO 

WAVE in October 2003, the product launch of our trend-setting, 

state-of-the-art CONCERTO laser and the development of new 

and improved, trend-setting treatment and diagnosis systems.

Yes, I am proud of the fact that we have developed laser and 

diagnosis systems for refractive surgery, which, thanks to their 

technological pre-eminence, are well ahead of the competition 

and have defined our global technology leadership in this field 

for a number of years. However, we have never lost sight of our 

vision to provide the patient with an optimal treatment result 

and to make the work of the treating physician as comfort-

able as possible. It is clear to us that we must strengthen our 

technological leadership position and open up new markets in 

order to generate a sustainable increase in value and continue 

our successful company story. As Chairman of the Board of 

Directors, company founder and initiator, I will continue to play 

my part. There is still much to be done.
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Report of the 
Supervisory Board

CompanyA

The Supervisory Board of WaveLight AG has also moni-

tored the Board of Directors during the management of 

the company in the fiscal year 2007/2008 in accordance 

with its obligations and rights according to the law and 

the Articles and advised the Board of Directors accord-

ingly. In doing so, it has informed itself regularly, 

promptly and comprehensively about the business 

development and activities of WaveLight AG and was 

directly involved in all particularly important decisions 

for the company. 



 27

The Board of Directors informed the Supervisory Board in writ-

ten and oral reports regularly, comprehensively and in a timely 

manner about the development of the business activity of the 

company including the risk management and the strategic 

further development of WaveLight AG. All procedures which 

required the approval of the Supervisory Board according to the 

law or the company‘s articles were submitted to the Supervisory 

Board by the Board of Directors accordingly. The Supervisory 

Board has approved all plans requiring its approval.

Fourteen Supervisory Board meetings were held in the fiscal 

year 2007/2008 in which the Supervisory Board concerned 

itself in detail with important business procedures based on the 

report created by the Board of Directors. Furthermore, the mem-

bers of the Supervisory Board regularly informed themselves in 

the course of telephone conferences with the Board of Directors 

about the current business development and the financial posi-

tion of the company.

The Supervisory Board established an Audit Committee in June 

2008. The members of the committee, Richard J. Croarkin, 

Martin Schneider and Dr. Daniel Daeniker, were unanimously 

elected by the complete Supervisory Board.

Takeover bid by Alcon, Inc.

An important part in the course of the supervision and advisory 

activities of the Supervisory Board of WaveLight AG was taken 

up by the takeover bid of Alcon, Inc. to the shareholders of 

WaveLight AG. 

On August 10, 2007 at the start of the 2007/2008 fiscal 

year, Alcon, Inc. published its voluntary take-over bid after it 

had already notified its intention to takeover the WaveLight 

shares on July 16, 2007. The offer document of Alcon, Inc. 

contained an offer to purchase all bearer shares of WaveLight 

AG in return for cash payment of € 15.00 per share. Both the 

Board of Directors as well as the Supervisory Board examined 

the offer from the Alcon Group and issued a joint opinion in 

accordance with section 27 of the Wertpapiererwerbs- und 

Übernahmegesetz (WpÜG) (German Securities Acquisition and 

Takeover Law). In the opinion, both executive bodies supported 

the offer and recommended acceptance by the shareholders. 

They also agreed their support of the offer from Alcon, Inc.

The original acceptance deadline for the offer from Alcon, Inc.  

expired at midnight on September 11, 2007. As well as the 

largely standard conditions for completion with respect to 

WaveLight’s economic position and various approval require-

ments under cartel law in selected countries, the offer was 

also subject to the condition that at least 75 percent of the 

shares in WaveLight be acquired. One day prior to expiry of the 

acceptance period, Alcon, Inc. dispensed with the 75 percent 

minimum acceptance threshold. As this amendment to the 

offer document was made within the last two weeks of the 

acceptance period, the acceptance period was extended by two 

weeks to end on September 25, 2007 in accordance with sec-

tion 22(5)(1) of the WpÜG. 

After the successful completion of the public takeover bid from 

Alcon, Inc., WaveLight AG signed a distribution agreement 

with Alcon Laboratories, Inc. in February 2008. This has the 

objective of realising the takeover by Alcon Laboratories, Inc. 

of all business activities in the USA medical technology market 

which were previously the responsibility of the USA subsidiary, 

WaveLight, Inc. The agreement also includes a guaranteed 

acceptance volume of WaveLight laser systems within a period 

of three years. The Supervisory Board approved this distribution 

agreement in accordance with its obligations according to the 

law and the Articles of the company.

In March 2008, WaveLight AG concluded a Domination Agree-

ment according to § 291 AktG (German Securities Trading Law) 

with its majority shareholder Alcon which in the meantime 

holds 77.28 percent of the WaveLight shares. The Supervisory 

Board also approved this agreement, however approval was still 

required by the Annual General Meeting of WaveLight AG.  

An Extraordinary General Meeting was convened for this 
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purpose which approved the Domination Agreement between 

WaveLight AG and the majority shareholder Alcon, Inc. on May 7, 

2008. To date, the Domination Agreement has not yet been 

registered in the Fürth commercial register due to still pending 

appeals of individual shareholders against the resolutions of 

the Extraordinary General Meeting. It does not become legally 

effective until recorded in the commercial register.

Note for the report about relations with affiliated 

companies 

As no Domination Agreement with the majority shareholder, 

Alcon, Inc. exists, the Board of Directors is obligated to prepare 

a report about the relations with affiliated companies for the 

fiscal year 2007/2008 in accordance with § 312(3) AktG which 

has been audited by KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft 

Aktiengesellschaft, Berlin and issued with an unqualified audit 

opinion. The relations with the Alcon Group have been recorded 

in this report. The Board of Directors declares in the report that 

WaveLight AG received a reasonable consideration for the legal 

transactions listed in the report about the relations to affiliated 

companies according to the circumstances known at the time 

when the legal transactions were made.

The report about relations with affiliated companies was sub-

mitted to the Supervisory Board which examined it and the listed 

legal transactions and actions independently in accordance with 

§ 314 (2) AktG. This did not result in any complaints. 

German Corporate Governance Code

The important tasks of the Supervisory Board of WaveLight AG 

also include regular discussion of the standards and recom-

mendations for responsible company management contained 

in the German Corporate Governance Code. After the Board 

of Directors and Supervisory Board of WaveLight AG had 

signed the declaration of conformity on September 19, 2007 

in accordance with § 161 AktG and thus declared that both 

management bodies have largely complied with the recom-

mendations of the German Corporate Governance Code in the 

version of September 12, 2006 and also in the updated version 

of June 14, 2007, the Board of Directors and the Supervisory 

Board signed the declaration of conformity with the German 

Corporate Governance Code for the year 2008 on August 5, 

2008. A detailed presentation of the corporate governance of 

WaveLight AG can be found in the annual report on pages 34 

to 38. The current declaration of conformity can be viewed on 

the website of the company at www.wavelight.com .

Annual financial statements and consolidated financial 

statements as of July 31, 2008.

The annual financial statement and management report of 

WaveLight AG for the fiscal year 2007/2008 in accordance with 

the principles of the German Commercial Code and the consoli-

dated financial statement and consolidated management report 

of WaveLight AG in accordance with the International Financial 

Reporting Standards (IFRS) prepared by the Board of Directors 

have been audited and issued with an unqualified opinion by 

KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft, 

Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Berlin. 

The single-entity financial statements, the management report 

and the long-form audit reports prepared by the auditors 

were presented to all members of the Supervisory Board. The 

Supervisory Board acknowledged the long-form audit reports 

prepared by the auditors and sees no reason to raise any objec-

tions to the financial statements. The financial statements of 

the AG and the Group have thus been established in accor-

dance with § 172 AktG.

Changes in the Supervisory Board

The Annual General Meeting of WaveLight AG, held on March 3, 

2008 in Nuremberg, resolved by an amendment of the Articles 

to increase the number of Supervisory Board members from 

three to six persons. The previous members of the Supervisory 

Board, Dr. Dietmar Bychowski and Dr. Peter Berndsen resigned 

from their respective offices as members of the Supervisory 

Board with effect from the end of the Annual General Meeting 

on March 3, 2008. Richard J. Croarkin and Dr. Daniel Daeniker 

were elected by the Annual General Meeting to the Supervisory 
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Board of WaveLight AG as successors. Furthermore, the 

Annual General Meeting elected three additional members 

to the Supervisory Board of WaveLight AG as representatives 

of the majority shareholder, Alcon: Kevin J. Buehler, Elaine E. 

Whitbeck and Martin Schneider whereby their mandate did not 

start until entry of the proposed amendments to the Articles in 

the commercial register of the Fürth District Court on March 27, 

2008.

The Supervisory Board expresses its thanks to the former 

Supervisory Board members Dr. Dietmar Bychowski and Dr. 

Peter Berndsen for their great commitment in the Supervisory 

Board of WaveLight AG and wishes them all the best for their 

further professional activities. 

The Supervisory Board also expresses its thanks to the Board 

of Directors and all employees of the WaveLight Group for 

their untiring commitment in the course of their assigned 

tasks. Furthermore, the Supervisory Board expresses its high 

recognition of their conscientious dedication in the fiscal year 

2007/2008 – a fiscal year which was extremely eventful. 

We wish the company, the Board of Directors and all employees 

of WaveLight AG every success for the company’s continuing 

development in the new 2008 fiscal year.

Erlangen, October 2008 

The Supervisory Board

Rudolf P. Franz

Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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The WaveLight share listed in the Prime Standard of the German 

Stock Exchange started the fiscal year on August 1, 2007 with a  

closing price in the XETRA trading of € 10.14, however was able to 

improve to a price of € 15.26 and thus by approx. 54 percent by 

August 14, 2007. The WaveLight share price stayed at the level of  

€ 15.00 for some weeks. On November 29, 2007 the share price  

reached its highest level in the 2007/2008 fiscal year of € 20.00. 

Afterwards, the WaveLight share moved within a share price range  

of € 15.00 to approx. € 17.00 and closed on July 31, 2008 with a  

share price of € 15.95. Thus the closing price of the WaveLight share 

in the XETRA trading as of July 31, 2008 with a share price increase 

of around 50 percent was still clearly above the previous year’s share 

price (€ 10.60).

The WaveLight share
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The reason that the WaveLight share could largely avoid the 

downward trends on the stock exchanges world wide was 

certainly that the official takeover bid by Alcon, Inc. to the 

WaveLight shareholders was published in August 2007. At this 

time, the capital market was marked by the first uncertainties 

against the background of the property crisis in the United 

States, new oil price records, all-time highs of the Euro against 

the US dollar and initial pessimistic appraisals about the falling 

growth dynamics of the world economy. Thus, the fiscal year 

2007/2008 was characterised by a very turbulent and event-

ful stock exchange environment which the WaveLight share 

showed itself to be largely unaffected by. 

Annual General Meeting in Nuremberg

The Annual General Meeting of WaveLight AG this year did not 

take place as usual in January but not until March 3, 2008 in 

Nuremberg. The Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board of  

WaveLight AG had planned a longer time than usual for the pre- 

paration of the eighth Annual General Meeting since the company 

founding in order to be able to comprehensively explain the new 

perspectives to the shareholders after the successful takeover bid. 

As Chairman for the meeting, the Chairman of the Supervisory 

Board, Rudolf P. Franz, welcome approx. 80 shareholders and 

numerous bank representatives, journalists and guests who had 

found their way to Nuremberg.

The CEO, Max Reindl, explained the business development 

in detail in the fiscal year 2006/2007 and the successfully 

completed restructuring of WaveLight AG and the associated 

focus on refractive surgery in his annual report. Afterwards, 

the shareholder and shareholder representatives had sufficient 

time in the following discussion to put their questions to the 

CEO. Thereby, the shareholders’ questions mainly concentrated 

on the consequences of the takeover bid from Alcon, Inc. for 

the WaveLight company. The CEO and the Chairman of the 

Supervisory Board answered all the questions put to them in 

detail to the satisfaction of the shareholders. 

In the following resolution, the individual items of the agenda 

of the Annual General Meeting were approved: thus both 

the Supervisory Board as well as the Board of Directors were 

formally discharged from responsibility for the fiscal year 

2006/2007 with a large majority by the Annual General Meeting. 

The increase in the number of members of the Supervisory 

Board was also approved in an amendment to the Articles. 

The previous members of the Supervisory Board, Dr. Dietmar 

Bychowski and Dr. Peter Berndsen, resigned from their 

respective offices as members of the Supervisory Board with 

effect from the end of the Annual General Meeting. Richard J. 

Croarkin and Dr. Daniel Daeniker were elected with a large ma-

jority to the Supervisory Board of WaveLight AG as successors. 

Kevin J. Buehler, Elaine E. Whitbeck and Martin Schneider were 

also elected with a clear majority as additional new members 

of the Supervisory Board as representatives of the majority 

shareholder, Alcon Inc.

The changeover of the fiscal year of WaveLight AG to date from 

August 1 up to and including July 31 of the following year to 

the calendar year was another agenda item. A large majority 

of the shareholders accepted the management proposal and 

approved the amendment to the Articles for the changeover of 

the fiscal year. This means that the period from August 1 up to 

and including December 31, 2008 will be a short fiscal year of 

WaveLight AG.

Another agenda item was the vote for amendment of the 

Articles to limit the time allowed for speaking and questions. 

The Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board proposed 

being able to reasonably limit the time allowed for speaking 

and questions if this is necessary for the proper execution of 

the Annual General Meeting. The Annual General Meeting also 

approved this resolution with a large majority.

The Transparency Directive Implementation Law has been in 

force since January 20, 2007. According to this, corporations 

are only permitted after December 31, 2007 to transmit infor-

mation electronically to their shareholders if in addition to the 

individual agreement of the shareholder concerned and meeting 

other, particularly specified technical requirements, the Annual 

General Meeting has also approved this type of information 

dissemination. The WaveLight shareholders also accepted the 
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management proposal for this agenda item and voted with a 

large majority in favour of transmitting information electroni-

cally to the shareholders of WaveLight AG. Thus, WaveLight AG  

has taken the necessary actions in the context of the new 

legislation to ensure transmitting information electronically 

(e-mails) or in the form of fax transmissions to the shareholders 

in the future. 

Extraordinary General Meeting in Munich

WaveLight AG and Alcon, Inc. concluded a Domination Agree-

ment according to § 291 AktG on March 20, 2008 whose 

effectiveness was dependent on approval by a majority of the 

shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. Against this back-

ground, an Extraordinary General Meeting took place in Munich 

on May 7, 2008 where the only agenda item was the resolution 

for the approval of the conclusion of the Domination Agreement 

between WaveLight AG and Alcon, Inc. 

The CEO of WaveLight AG, Max Reindl, explained the agreed 

Domination Agreement in detail at the Extraordinary General 

Meeting. He informed the shareholders present about the com-

mercial and legal reasons for the conclusion of the Domination 

Agreement and emphasised that this represented a splendid 

instrument in order to be able to efficiently implement the 

intended integration of WaveLight AG in the Alcon group of 

companies. Among other things, the agreement provides that 

WaveLight AG remains a legally independent unit, however the 

management of its company is subordinate to that of Alcon, 

Inc. For its part, the majority shareholder, Alcon, has commit-

ted itself by the Domination Agreement to the takeover of any 

losses by WaveLight AG. 

Furthermore, the interests of the minority WaveLight sharehold-

ers are guaranteed in the context of the Domination Agreement 

by a cash compensation of € 15.68 per share or alternatively by 

the payment of a fixed annual compensation payment for each 

complete fiscal year of € 0.89 (gross) (€ 0.76 net) per share.

After detailed discussion, the Extraordinary General Meeting 

approved the Domination Agreement concluded between 

WaveLight AG and Alcon, Inc. on March 20, 2008 with a 

large majority. The Domination Agreement has not yet been 

registered in the Fürth commercial register due to still pending 

appeals of individual shareholders against the resolutions of the 

Extraordinary General Meeting. It has therefore not yet come 

into force.

Capital market communication unchanged

The communication with all shareholders and the financial 

community always belonged to the most important tasks of the 

Investor Relations activities of WaveLight AG. In the context of 

its Investor Relations activities, WaveLight also actively sought 

dialogue with its shareholders and the wider financial com-

munity in the fiscal year 2007/2008. 

As well as the Annual General Meeting which, among other 

things, represents an important platform for direct dialogue 

with the shareholders for the company, WaveLight AG informed 

financial analysts and economics journalists at the annual 

press and analysts conference for the publication of the annual 

financial statements on October 24, 2007 in Frankfurt in detail 

about the business development of WaveLight AG. WaveLight 

AG also regularly publishes press releases in order to promptly 

and comprehensively inform the interested financial commu-

nity about the business development of WaveLight AG. The 

company also maintains comprehensive information about 

the company which is regularly updated on its website in the 

Investor Relations section. 

In the course of the takeover bid from Alcon, Inc., WaveLight 

AG set up a call centre for the complete duration of the 

acceptance period for all enquiries from shareholders in con-

nection with the takeover bid by Alcon. Numerous national 

and international private investors made use of the opportunity 

in this period to ask their questions about the takeover bid. 

The competent employees from the IR team responded in 

detail and conscientiously to all questions from the WaveLight 

shareholders.
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Share Performance: WaveLight vs. DAX and TecDAX  
for the Fiscal Year 2007/2008

     DAX 

TecDax reassessed 

WaveLight reassessed 

Index August 1, 2007 July 31, 2008 Change 

DAX 7,473.93 6,479.56 -13.3 %

TecDAX 905.32 766.36 -15.3 %

WaveLight 10.14 15.95 +57.3 % 

Comparison of Share Performance: WaveLight, DAX and TecDAX
in Fiscal Year 2007/2008, prices in €

 

Number of shares issued   6,586,026

Number of stock options issued   53,000

Earnings per share in € (diluted)   (1.53)

High in € (52-week period)   20.00

Low in € (52-week period)   10.14

WaveLight Stock: Key Data

August 2, 2007 November 1, 2007 February 2, 2008 May 1, 2008 July 31, 2008



 Annual Report for the 2007/2008 Fiscal Year · August 1, 2007 – July 31, 20083�

Dear shareholders,

WaveLight AG also committed itself to high Corporate Governance 

standards in the 2007/2008 fiscal year and pursued an unchanged, 

proactive and open information policy aligned with the interests of 

the shareholders and the capital market. A responsible, transparent 

and fair business management and control has been determining 

the action of the Executive Committee and the Supervisory Board of 

WaveLight AG since the first stock exchange listing. 

Corporate Governance 
for the fiscal year 
2007/2008

CompanyA
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Cooperation between the Executive Committee and the 

Supervisory Board

The Executive Committee of WaveLight AG collaborated closely 

and confidingly with the members of the Supervisory Board 

all year round. The Supervisory Board was always involved as 

control entity for all important actions and operations. The 

strategic alignment of WaveLight AG and the realisation of its 

corporate objectives were subject to close coordination between 

the Executive Committee and Supervisory Board. The Executive 

Committee informed the Supervisory Board regularly and 

promptly in written and verbal form about all relevant issues 

of the business development, the corporate planning includ-

ing the risk position and the risk management. One focus in 

the 2007/2008 fiscal year was the takeover bid by Alcon, Inc. 

Further information for this can be found in the report of the 

Supervisory Board on pages 26 to 29. 

The members of the Supervisory Board changed in the course 

of the 2007/2008 fiscal year. Against the background of the 

successfully completed takeover bid by Alcon, Inc., the Annual 

General Meeting on March 3, 2008 resolved to increase the 

number of the members of the Supervisory Board from three 

to six. The previous members of the Supervisory Board, Dr. 

Dietmar Bychowski and Dr. Peter Berndsen resigned from their 

respective offices as members of the Supervisory Board with 

effect from the end of the Annual General Meeting on March 3,  

2008. Richard J. Croarkin and Dr. Daniel Daeniker have been 

elected to the Supervisory Board of WaveLight AG as succes-

sors. Furthermore, the Annual General Meeting elected three 

additional members to the Supervisory Board as representatives 

of the majority shareholder, Alcon: Kevin J. Buehler, Elaine E. 

Whitbeck and Martin Schneider.

Shareholders and Annual General Meeting

The shareholders of WaveLight AG exercise their rights in the 

Annual General Meeting. At the Annual General Meeting, 

they elect the members of the Supervisory Board and resolve 

to discharge the actions of the Executive Committee and the 

Supervisory Board. In addition, the Annual General Meeting 

decides about the appropriation of the net retained profit, 

capital transactions (authorised capital) and the approval of key 

company agreements. Each share carries one vote.

The Annual General Meeting in the 2007/2008 fiscal year did 

not take place as usual in January but not until March 3, in 

Nuremberg. Due to the successful takeover bid of Alcon, Inc., 

both the Executive Committee as well as the Supervisory Board 

needed more time for the preparation of the Annual General 

Meeting in order to be able to comprehensively explain the 

new perspectives after the takeover to the shareholders of 

WaveLight AG. The shareholders and shareholder representa-

tives were invited to the Annual General Meeting in good time. 

All reports and documents required by law were made available 

in printed form in advance in compliance with the relevant 

deadlines and were also published together with the agenda on 

the World Wide Web at www.wavelight.com .

The Annual General Meeting of WaveLight AG approved the in-

crease of the number of members of the Supervisory Board with 

a large majority. In another point of the agenda, the sharehold-

ers voted with a large majority for the changeover of the fiscal 

year of WaveLight AG to the calendar year as the fiscal year of 

the majority shareholder Alcon also corresponds to the calendar 

year. Against this background, the period from August 1 up to 

and including December 31, 2008 is a short fiscal year.
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An Extraordinary General Meeting of WaveLight AG was also 

held in the 2007/2008 fiscal year on May 7, 2008 in Munich, 

the invitations to which were issued in good time. The only 

agenda item for the General Meeting was the resolution for 

the shareholder to approve the conclusion of a Domination 

Agreement between WaveLight AG and Alcon, Inc. The 

Extraordinary General Meeting approved the Domination 

Agreement with a large majority. 

WaveLight and the ophthalmology company Alcon domi-

ciled in Hünenberg, Switzerland had already concluded the 

Domination Agreement according to § 291 AktG (German 

Securities Trading Law) on March 20, 2008 whose effectiveness 

required approval by the majority of the WaveLight AG General 

Meeting. Previously the Domination Agreement was not yet 

registered in the Fürth commercial register due to still pending 

appeals of individual shareholders against the resolutions of the 

Extraordinary General Meeting of May 7, 2008. It does not be-

come legally effective until recorded in the commercial register.

Transparency – prompt and proactive communication

The Supervisory Board and the Executive Committee of 

WaveLight pursue the requirement of providing all information  

concerning the company development promptly to the share-

holders and the interested general public. In doing so, it is 

important that all interest groups receive the same information 

at the same time. Furthermore, every interested party can view 

all corporate communications on the website of WaveLight AG 

(www.wavelight.com).

In the course of careful compliance with the Corporate Gover-

nance standards, the company publishes all transactions with 

WaveLight AG shares made by the Executive Committee and  

Supervisory Board. If members of the Executive Committee and 

the Supervisory Board acquire or sell shares in the company and 

the transactions exceed € 5,000.00 per year, this is immediately 

notified to the issuer and the Bundesanstalt für Finanzdienstlei

stungsaufsicht (BaFin) (Federal Financial Supervisory Authority). 

Information about so-called “Director’s Dealings” according 

to § 15a WpHG (German Securities Trading Law) is always 

published on the WaveLight website. 

Financial reporting and audits

The financial statements of the WaveLight Group are prepared 

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS). The single-entity financial statements are prepared in 

accordance with the provisions of the Handelsgesetzbuch (HGB) 

(German Commercial Code).

On March 3, 2008, the Annual General Meeting of WaveLight AG 

appointed KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft Aktiengesell-

schaft, Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Berlin as auditors for 

the fiscal year 2007/2008. Before submission of the proposal 

for the election of KPMG as the auditor, the auditing company 

confirmed in a declaration of independence that no profession-

al, financial, personal or other relationships existed between the 

auditor, its organs and the audit management on the one hand 

and WaveLight AG and the members of its management bodies 

on the other hand. 

The Executive Committee prepares the single-entity and the 

consolidated financial statements which is approved by the 

Supervisory Board afterwards. An internal control system and 

uniform accounting principles ensure that a true and fair view 

of the company’s net assets and results of operations is given in 

all key respects. 
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Transparent remuneration

The remuneration of the Executive Committee and Supervisory 

Board of WaveLight AG has been subject to clear and transpar-

ent criteria for many years. All information in this respect is part 

of the Appendix of the consolidated financial statement and can 

be seen on pages 125 to 128 of the annual report.

Declaration of conformity

In the fiscal year 2007/2008, the Executive Committee and 

Supervisory Board made the declaration of conformity according 

to § 161 AktG (German Stock Corporation Law) on September 

19, 2007. The Executive Committee and Supervisory Board 

declared that both management bodies of the stock corpora-

tion have complied with the recommendations of the German 

Corporate Governance Code in the version of June 14, 2007 

and also largely with the updated version of June 6, 2008. 

Both the Executive Committee as well as the Supervisory Board 

understand good corporate governance as a continuous process 

which requires regular checking and adaptation against the 

background of new experiences, legal requirements and further 

developed national and international standards.

The Executive Committee and Supervisory Board signed the 

declaration of conformity for the year 2008 on August 5, 2008. 

The Supervisory Board and the Executive Committee also con-

firm in this declaration that WaveLight AG will also comply with 

the requirements of the German Corporate Governance Code in 

the future with the following exceptions: 

Section 3.8 of the German Corporate Governance Code 

recommends that a suitable excess be agreed in the event that 

a Directors & Officers liability insurance policy (D&O insur-

ance policy) is taken out for the Executive Committee and the 

Supervisory Board. In this case, the Executive Committee and 

Supervisory Board have decided not to agree any excess for the 

existing D&O insurance policy as the Executive Committee and 

the Supervisory Board do not consider the excess necessary to 

motivate and encourage responsible behaviour by the members 

of the Executive Committee and Supervisory Board in their 

conscientious and responsible management of the company.

The D&O insurance policy taken out by WaveLight AG is a 

group insurance policy for a relatively large number of manage-

rial staff working in Germany and abroad. In particular, the 

company’s management bodies (members of the Executive 

Committee, directors) and the Supervisory Board are covered.

According to section 4.2.1 of the German Corporate 

Governance Code, the company’s Executive Committee 

should consist of more than one person with a Chairman or 

Spokesperson. Following personnel and structural changes 

in the 2006/2007 fiscal year, the Executive Committee of 

WaveLight AG is represented by Max Reindl. He has been re-

sponsible for the operations of WaveLight AG as sole Executive 

Committee member since January 10, 2007.

Section 5.3.3 recommends that the Supervisory Board forms a 

Nomination Committee composed exclusively of shareholder 

representatives which proposes suitable candidates to the 

Supervisory Board for recommendation to the General Meeting. 

The Executive Committee and Supervisory Board hold the view 

here that the formation of a Nomination Committee is not 

necessary because no representatives of the employees are 

members of the Supervisory Board. Therefore WaveLight consid-

ers the spirit and purpose of this recommendation of the current 

Code as not applicable for the company. This deviation from the 

currently applicable Corporate Governance Code is thus pointed 

out here as a precautionary measure.

According to section 5.4.2 of the German Corporate 

Governance Code, a sufficient number according to its discre-

tion of independent members should belong to the Supervisory 

Board. A Supervisory Board member is considered as inde-

pendent if there is no business or personal relationship to the 

company or its Executive Committee which constitutes a conflict 

of interests. Furthermore, no more than two former members of 
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the Executive Committee should be members of the Supervisory 

Board. In addition, Supervisory Board members should not 

exercise any executive or consultancy function for important 

competitors of the company.

WaveLight AG also deviates here from the recommendations 

of the German Corporate Governance Code as the Supervisory 

Board members Kevin J. Buehler, Richard Croarkin, Martin 

Schneider and Elaine E. Whitbeck have management functions 

for different group companies of the Alcon Group.

The last difference from the currently applicable German 

Corporate Governance Code concerns section 5.4.7 (2). It is 

recommended that the remuneration of the Supervisory Board 

members consists of a fixed part and a performance-related 

variable component. The remuneration of the WaveLight AG 

Supervisory Board members is fixed and does not include a per-

formance-based variable component. The amount of the fixed 

remuneration for the Supervisory Board members is resolved by 

the Annual General Meeting.

The complete declaration of conformity can be viewed on the 

website of WaveLight AG at www.wavelight.com.

Erlangen, September 2008

Maximilian Reindl Rudolf P. Franz

Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the 

Chairman of the Board  Supervisory Board 

of Directors
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A. Business and general conditions

Overview of the fiscal year

The 2007/2008 fiscal year was influenced in the first place by 

a consequential, strategic and operative new orientation of 

the WaveLight Group, which was successfully completed in the 

last quarter of the reporting period. Thus, the central focus of 

the Company activities was on the core competence, refractive 

surgery, and on the associated separation of areas that do not 

belong to the core business. In September 2007, WaveLight AG 

sold its aesthetic subsidiary, WaveLight Aesthetic GmbH, and 

in December 2007 divested itself of its shares in WaveLight 

GmbH in Berlin as well as of its holding in the Dutch Medical 

Device Production B.V. (MDP). Hence, with this the sale of the 

Aesthetics and Intraocular Surgery units took place after the 

sale of the urology and industrial laser business divisions during 

the 2006/2007 fiscal year.

Alcon, Inc.’s takeover bid to the WaveLight shareholders was 

of extreme importance for the development of the 2007/2008 

fiscal year. After July 16, 2007, when the ophthalmology 

company based in Switzerland announced its intention to make 

a takeover bid to the WaveLight shareholders, on August 10, 

2007, Alcon, Inc. published its tender document, which was 

a purchase offer for all WaveLight AG bearer shares at a price 

of €15.00 cash per share. On September 25, 2007, the official 

acceptance period ended and after the implementation of the 

take-over bid on November 9, 2007, Alcon, Inc. announced 

that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG amounted to 

77.38%.

At the end of the financial year, on July 31, 2008, the 

WaveLight Group was able not only to achieve its turnover 

targets, but also to surpass them clearly. Compared with the 

previous year, the WaveLight Group generated clear growth in 

turnover of 29% and closed the 2007/2008 fiscal year most 

successfully, with a turnover of €90,876 thousand (previous 

year €70,370 thousand). On July 31, 2008, earnings before in-

terest and taxes (EBIT) amounted to €6,292 thousand (previous 

year €660 thousand). This result was burdened by one-off 

items in the light of Alcon‘s take-over bid and by the corre-

sponding restructuring measures. 

Worldwide cutting edge product range

With its comprehensive product portfolio of treatment and 

diagnosis systems for the correction of visual impairments, 

increasingly sophisticated over the years, technologically 

advanced and optimally matched, WaveLight AG has a most 

important competitive advantage, which plays a comprehensive 

role in the success of the Group. Thus, with the re-orientation 

of the Company and with the concentration on the associated 

core competence, refractive surgery, WaveLight AG focused 

solely and completely on its Company activity, on the develop-

ment and manufacture of high quality treatment solutions with 

which the Company had already set worldwide technological 

standards in previous years.

Globally, WaveLight was able to install a total of 1,112 laser 

systems before July 31, 2008. In this way, the Group was 

further able to consolidate its position in the 2007/2008 fiscal 

year, as an innovative supplier of high quality treatment systems 

for the correction of visual impairments.

Also in the future, WaveLight will not only offer the highest 

treatment quality, safety and reliability to practising ophthal-

mologists, but also, yet again, worldwide, valid, technology 

standards in refractive surgery. While the new WaveLight laser 

system concept, with its repetition rate of 1,000 Hz and an eye 

tracking system with still further enhancement, points to future 

treatment standards in refractive surgery, the innovative diag-

nosis system, ALLEGRO BioGraph, has already been developed 

to the point of marketability and was presented to the public 

during the ESCRS 2008 in Berlin. Likewise, the new system 

stands out, owing to its flexible, practical diagnosis solution for 

refractive and intraocular surgery treatments.  

The new WaveLight Femto Laser System will also be introduced 

shortly. As is typical with WaveLight, the new system for the 

gentle preparation of actual surgery will distinguish itself by its 

excellent treatment results and high reliability, as well as safety, 
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and in the product portfolio will represent a contemporary alter-

native to the already proven WaveLight Microkeratome RONDO.

Research and development expenses of WaveLight AG amounted 

to €6.7 million during the 2007/2008 fiscal year, an increase 

from €5.4 million in the previous year.

WaveLight, the “pure“ ophthalmological Group with 

its core competence refractive surgery

During the 2007/2008 fiscal year, WaveLight AG consequently 

and successfully followed its target of concentrating exclusively 

on its core competence, refractive surgery. Thus, the Company 

was able to complete successfully its re-orientation towards 

refractive surgery, already started in the 2006/2007 fiscal 

year: in September, 2007, WaveLight AG sold its independent 

aesthetics subsidiary, WaveLight Aesthetic GmbH, already 

separated in April, 2006, to Atlas Laser SARL, a holding of the 

French Quantel Group.

The divestment of the intraocular surgery business division 

took place as a further step in the wake of the repositioning.  

In December, 2007, WaveLight‘s 100% stake in Berlin-based 

WaveLight GmbH was sold to the Dutch company, Medical 

Device Production B.V. (MDP B.V.) and its 30% stake in the 

manufacturing company, MDP was sold to the Dutch company, 

Procornea Holding B.V.

The decision to focus the business activity completely on the 

core competence, refractive surgery, is positively reflected in the 

clearly improved turnover and operating profit figures for the 

2007/2008 fiscal year. 

Against the background of the reorientation of the WaveLight 

Group and the take-over bid of Alcon, Inc., a restructuring 

of the US sales by the WaveLight Group took place. For this 

purpose, a comprehensive distribution concept was agreed 

between WaveLight AG and Alcon Laboratories, Inc. As early as 

February 2008, as part of the successful implementation of the 

concept, which already formed the basis for sustainable growth 

of turnover and operating profit in the 2007/2008 fiscal year, 

all customer service and support activities, which had hitherto 

been the responsibility of WaveLight, Inc., were also transferred 

to Alcon Laboratories, Inc. The sales and all additional services 

for the cutting edge, WaveLight laser systems for refractive sur-

gery in the USA take place accordingly and exclusively through 

the efficient distribution network of Alcon Laboratories, Inc. 

In the light of this, further investment in the sales structure of 

WaveLight, Inc. was dispensed with. 

WaveLight, Inc. will continue to generate sales for the already 

installed equipment base of WaveLight laser systems in the USA 

from the per procedure fee usual there. Furthermore, within the 

scope of the sales agreement, Alcon, Inc. has also guaranteed 

a significant number of sales of laser systems within a period of 

three years.

In the course of the agreement, Wave Light, Inc. has sold mis-

cellaneous assets to Alcon Laboratories, Inc. Alcon, Inc. has 

assured WaveLight AG that it will take over fiscal disadvantages 

from the transfer of the US business activities.

Market and competitive environment

As one of the few European suppliers of treatment and diag-

nosis systems in the field of refractive surgery, WaveLight AG is 

renowned for its high quality product portfolio. Considering the 

markets that are strongly differentiated to some extent in the 

respective sales regions, WaveLight AG orientates its handling 

of the market strategically and operatively to the corresponding 

conditions on site in order to use each opportunity arising to 

best advantage and to guarantee sustainable success.

Characterised by a demographic development by which the 

population of the world continues to grow and the percentage 

of elderly people in relation to the total population increases  

in many regions of the world, the whole market for refractive  

surgery is very rich in opportunities and full of promise. In addi-

tion to the increasing average age of the population, the level 

of education and the technological progress of a region show 

important factors for growing demand for the correction of 

visual impairments. 
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Hence, market analysts expect that the worldwide demand for 

the correction of visual impairments will increase by approxi-

mately 5.3% from 3.7 million to 4.8 million operations during 

the period of 2007 to 2012. Within this period, an increase of 

a total of 7.4% is expected with turnover of Excimer lasers for 

refractive surgery applications.

In economically higher developed regions of the world with 

a correspondingly high living, educational and technological 

standards, such as those in North America, Western Europe and 

parts of Asia, the percentage of people in relation to the total 

population with visual impairments is between 50% and 60%, 

on an upward trend. 

In these regions, not only will the demand for innovative laser 

systems increase, but so also will the expectations of the quality 

results of treatment of patients and doctors treating them. On 

the one hand, high pressure on cost dominates in these regions, 

which obliges the manufacturers of diagnosis and treatment 

systems to be more efficient in the production of laser systems. 

But on the other hand, excellent conditions are also given to 

the manufacturers there for an above-average sale of their 

products. In North America, Europe and in some parts of Asia, 

with a very good infrastructure and a large number of practising 

ophthalmologists who have specialised in refractive surgery, the 

best conditions are given to cover the high demand for correct-

ing visual impairments.

In particular, as a worldwide large market for refractive surgery, 

the USA combines all important conditions for above-aver-

age development of demand and offers companies such as 

WaveLight AG a substantial sales potential. Hence, most of the 

ophthalmologists in the world practise in the USA. In addi-

tion, they carry out refractive surgery operations very regularly. 

Correspondingly, the largest marketing efforts are being taken 

there and the price level is comparatively high.  

Market experts anticipate that the demand for Excimer lasers in 

American ophthalmological surgeries and clinics will increase 

strongly in the next few years, because a large part of the 

treatment systems already installed are at least five years old 

and, predictably, will be replaced by new lasers. According to 
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a 2007 “Market Scope“ study (source: Market Scope: 2007 

Comprehensive Report on the Global Refractive Surgery Market) 

a laser system from the ALLEGRETTO product family would be 

the first choice for many ophthalmologists looking to make a 

new purchase. In these circumstances, observers of the market 

expect that the successful take-over bid of Alcon, Inc. for 

WaveLight AG will considerably influence the American market 

structure in the area of refractive surgery. 

European health systems show totally different structures: in 

the predominantly state health systems in Europe, the majority 

of the people insured are accustomed to the health insurance 

companies taking over the costs and, thus, treatment appears 

“free of charge“. Moreover, on the basis of the respective 

national legislation, doctors are prohibited from practising 

aggressive marketing of medical services. Additionally, this 

makes it difficult for patients to take a decision for LASIK 

treatment, especially because the costs of conventional visual 

aids are borne partially by the health insurance companies. 

This situation provides the explanation for the saturation of the 

West European market for refractive surgery and the rather low 

growth rates, compared with Asia, for example. It is expected 

that total sales will increase in the next five years, by 5.2%. 

The highest growing demand for correction of visual impair-

ments is recorded in the so-called “emerging economies“, 

such as China, India and in other fast growing countries. A 

clear connection can be identified here between the increasing 

demand for laser-based visual correction, on the one hand, 

and increases in the level of education, improvement of health 

care, population growth, rising incomes and the higher life 

expectancy, on the other. All in all, the highest growth potential 

for refractive surgery exists in those fast growing national 

economies, in which a total of more than 56% of the world 

population live. 

In particular, the population structure of China features an 

increasingly growing middle class, which, in future, will cre-

ate a promising market for correction of visual impairments, 

with above-average demand. However, the specific market 

conditions have to be taken into consideration there, such as 

a comparatively less organized and structured market than in 

Europe, and strong government involvement, the total effect of 

which is to make the financing of laser systems more difficult. 

Furthermore, refractive surgeons already practising are limited 

through omitted or low level training and further educational 

opportunities in this area. Market observers expect an increase 

in the demand in China for laser-based visual corrections of 

about 13% over the next five years.

WaveLight Group with further improved market position

The reorientation of the WaveLight Group completed in the  

2007/2008 fiscal year, and the successful focus on the refrac-

tive surgery connected with it, are clearly mirrored in the sales 

revenues generated by the Group. Hence, as of July 31, 2008,  

the WaveLight Group was able to improve its turnover by 

29% to €90,876 thousand compared with the previous year 

(€70,370 thousand). All in all, the WaveLight Group expanded 

its globally installed laser systems base by a total of 1,112 items 

(previous year: 856 items).

The regional development of sales revenues and market 

positioning in the refractive business area during the reporting 

period is as follows:

The WaveLight Group was able to expand its market position 

successfully in the USA with an installed devices base of 244 

systems. Thus, in this most important market, the WaveLight 

Group generated turnover of €41,513 thousand (previous year: 

€23,525 thousand), which represents a growth of 76%. The 

existing distribution agreement with Alcon Laboratories, Inc. 

made at the beginning of February, 2008, constitutes an impor-

tant basis for the distinct improvement in the US market. This 

includes a guaranteed, significant order volume of WaveLight 

laser systems within a period of three years. 

By the July 31, 2008, the WaveLight Group had sold an in-

stalled device base of 319 laser systems on the European  

market. In the 2007/2008 fiscal year, the WaveLight Group 

generated turnover in this area of €21,932 thousand, and 

thereby improved on the previous year (€20,711 thousand)  

by 6%.
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Also in the 2007/2008 fiscal year, the Asiatic market proved 

itself to be a most important and sales-strong region. Thus, by 

July 31, 2008, the WaveLight Group generated sales revenues 

of €17,130 thousand (previous year: €13,753 thousand) and in-

creased these by 25%. Altogether, so far, the WaveLight Group 

has installed 453 laser systems in Asia (as of July 31, 2008). 

Research and Development – Expanding cutting edge 

technology

Ever since the founding of the Company, WaveLight AG 

has consequently and successfully followed the objective of 

establishing globally recognised standards for a highly precise, 

gentle and reliable correction of visual impairments within the 

area of refractive surgery.  In these circumstances, in November 

2007, the WaveLight Group presented for the first time at the 

largest worldwide AAO (American Academy of Ophthalmology) 

Ophthalmology Trade Fair in New Orleans their newly devel-

oped laser system concept for the correction of visual impair-

ments, which plainly reinforces the Company‘s claim to world 

wide technological leadership. Thus, a repetition rate increased 

to 1,000 Hz, in combination with a further optimized eye 

tracking system, which provides highly precise and extremely 

fast correction to the smallest movements of the patient’s 

eye during the operation, forms the technological basis of the 

trend-setting concept laser system. In comparison with a “con-

ventional” Excimer laser, the number of eye movements to be 

compensated for during the greatly shortened treatment period 

drops to a mere one fifth. The new WaveLight AG concept laser 

system thus sets a new world wide technological standard for 

the highly precise, gentle and at the same time reliable correc-

tion of visual impairments.

In addition, with its cutting edge ALLEGRETTO laser systems, 

WaveLight AG has developed the new generation of ARTISTA 

software, through which the focus is on the further simpli-

fied integration of diagnosis and treatment. A comprehensive 

networking of diagnosis and treatment systems from the 

WaveLight Company via WaveNet Server enables the practis-

ing ophthalmologist to co-ordinate precisely and simply all the 

relevant steps, with only one software tool for the treatment 

process. Moreover, an integrated patient management system 
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with the new software and extensive back-up functions are 

available to the ophthalmologist. 

With the development of the ALLEGRO BioGraph, a new type of 

diagnosis system, WaveLight has yet again reinforced its claim 

to global technological leadership in the area of ophthalmology. 

Presented to the public for the first time within the ESCRS 2008, 

the innovative measurement system allows, for example, the 

exact definition of the axial dimension of the eye and supplies 

reliable data of the entire anterior segment of the eye in just 

one measurement procedure. The risk of false measurements 

is automatically minimized by the use of the advanced OLCR 

(Optical Low Coherence Reflectometry) measurement principle. 

Furthermore, the diagnosis system proves itself by means of  

a most user-friendly application and navigation of the software 

interface, through which necessary training and induction 

times can be clearly reduced. Originally developed for use in 

the area of intraocular surgery, it has also been planned for the 

diagnosis device to be connected in the future to the WaveLight 

Excimer laser systems for refractive surgery. In this way, too, the 

new system stands out, owing to its flexible, practical diagnosis 

solution for refractive and intraocular surgery treatments.  

Moreover, the current development activity of the Company 

is focused on the new WaveLight Femto Laser System. The 

Femto-second laser is used within the preparation of the actual 

LASIK treatment instead of the conventional microkeratome in 

order to prepare the patient‘s cornea for the formation of an 

extremely fine corneal lamella for the treatment itself, by means 

of the Excimer laser. As is typical with WaveLight, the new 

WaveLight Femto Laser System will prove itself by its excellent 

treatment results and high reliability, as well as safety, and 

represents a contemporary alternative to the already proven 

WaveLight Microkeratome RONDO in the product portfolio.

Highly motivated personnel

In the 2007/2008 fiscal year, the worldwide average number 

of staff employed by the WaveLight Group was 174, and thus 

about 34% lower than the previous year (previous year: 262 

employees). 
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The strategic and operational re-orientation of the US business 

and the transfer to Alcon Laboratories, Inc. of all the commer-

cial sales activities that have been the responsibility of the US 

subsidiary, WaveLight, Inc. have played a comprehensive role in 

the decrease of the staff numbers in the Group.

In the 2007/2008 fiscal year, WaveLight AG employed an aver-

age of 152 staff (previous year:160 employees). At the date of 

the balance sheet on July 31, 2008, there were 154 WaveLight 

AG staff active, compared with 146 employees on July 31, 2007.

Changes to the Supervisory Board

On March 3, 2008, the Annual General Meeting of WaveLight AG 

decided to increase the number of the Supervisory Board 

members from three to six by means of an amendment in the 

Articles of Association. The members of the Supervisory Board, 

Dr. Dietmar Bychowski and Dr. Peter Berndsen, resigned from 

their respective offices with effect from the end of the Annual 

General Meeting on March 3, 2008. The General Meeting 

elected Richard J. Croarkin and Dr. Daniel Daeniker to the 

Supervisory Board. While Mr. Croarkin is Chief Financial Officer 

(CFO) of Alcon, Inc., Dr. Daeniker is a self employed lawyer and 

partner in a Zurich-based corporate law firm, pro-viding legal 

advice to the Alcon Group. Moreover, three additional persons 

were elected to the Supervisory Board of WaveLight AG: Mr. 

Kevin J. Buehler, Mrs. Elaine E. Whitbeck and Mr. Martin 

Schneider, who occupy senior management positions in the 

Alcon Group in the fields of sales and marketing, legal, finance 

and financial control. Their term of office began with the entry 

of the proposed amendment to the Articles of Association in 

the commercial register at the District Court in Fürth on March 

27, 2008.

Remuneration structure for the members of the  

executive body

The Board of Directors of WaveLight AG receives for its work 

a fixed monthly base remuneration and a variable payment 

(bonus), paid on achieving certain targets. A company car is 

available to the Board of Directors.

Furthermore, in the fiscal year, the Board of Directors received 

an initial compensation payment for the stock options formerly 

held by it. The expense of this compensation for the termination 

of almost all stock options was borne by Alcon, Inc.

The members of the Supervisory Board of WaveLight AG 

receive fixed remuneration for their work. The Chairman of 

the Supervisory Board receives annual remuneration of €60 

thousand, the Deputy Chairman €45 thousand and the other 

Supervisory Board members receive annual remuneration of 

€30 thousand. All remuneration is calculated pro rata temporis 

according to the amount of time worked by a supervisory board 

during one year. In July 2008, in respective declarations, the 

Supervisory Board members, Buehler, Croarkin, Schneider and 

Whitbeck renounced their entitlement to remuneration until 

further notice.

Two General Meetings in the 2007/2008 fiscal year

This year, the Annual General Meeting of WaveLight AG took 

place in Nuremberg, on March 3, 2008. The Chairman of the 

Supervisory Board, Rudolf P. Franz, opened the Annual General 

Meeting as Chairman of the Meeting, greeting 80 sharehold-

ers as well as numerous bank representatives, members of the 

press and guests.

After the Chairman of the Board of Directors, Max Reindl, 

had given details of the development of WaveLight AG in the 

2006/2007 fiscal year in the course of his annual report, the 

shareholders were able to direct their questions to the Board  

of Directors and Supervisory Board in the general debate.

In the subsequent voting on the resolutions, the Annual  

General Meeting agreed the individual items of the agenda.  

The activities of the Supervisory Board and of the Board of 

Directors were approved for the 2006/2007 financial year by 

a large majority. In addition, in the course of amending the 

Articles of Association, the increase in the number of mem-

bers of the Supervisory Board from three to six was voted on. 

Instead of the previous three members, the Supervisory Board 

of WaveLight AG now constitutes six members. 
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Another item in the agenda was the changeover of the fiscal 

year of WaveLight AG. Whilst the previous fiscal year included 

the period from the August 1 to July 31 of the following year, 

the General Meeting approved by a large majority the change-

over of the fiscal year to align with the calendar year. This 

means that the period from August 1, to December 31, 2008, 

will constitute a short fiscal year for WaveLightAG.

The next item on the agenda was a vote on an amendment 

to the Articles of Association calling for a restriction of the 

speaking and question time. The Board of Directors and the 

Supervisory Board proposed introducing reasonable restrictions 

on the speaking and question time, similar to the procedures in 

other public companies listed in the stock exchange, insofar as 

this is necessary for the proper running of the General Meeting. 

This, too, was approved by the General Meeting by a large 

majority.

The German Transparency Directive Implementation Law has 

been in force since January 20, 2007. This stipulates that after 

the December 31, 2007 stock corporations are permitted to 

send information to their shareholders only by means of elec-

tronic data transmission if, in addition to the individual approval 

of the shareholders and the fulfilment of a series of additional 

technical requirements, the General Meeting has approved this 

form of information sharing. Also at the point of the agenda, 

the WaveLight shareholders followed the management proposal 

and voted by a large majority for transmission of information 

electronically to the WaveLight AG shareholders. In this way, 

WaveLight AG took the necessary measures to be consistent 

with the new law, and also to guarantee in future the transmis-

sion of information for the shareholders by electronic means 

(e-mails) or in the form of fax transmissions.

The Domination Agreement made on March 20, 2008 in ac-

cordance with Section 291 of the German Securities Trading 

Law (AktG) between WaveLight AG and Alcon, Inc., required 

the approval by the General Meeting of WaveLight AG in 

order to be effective. To this end, on the May 7, 2008, an 

Extraordinary General Meeting took place in Munich. The only 

agenda item was the motion for the approval of the making of 

this Domination Agreement. 

After several hours of detailed discussion, the General Meeting 

approved the Domination Agreement between WaveLight AG 

and Alcon, Inc. with the required qualified majority. Pending 

complaints of individual shareholders against the resolutions of 

the Extraordinary General Meeting of May 7, 2008, had been 

an obstacle until then to the registration of the Domination 

Agreement in the Commercial Register at the District Court in 

Fürth and thereby its coming into force.

Corporate Governance

In the 2007/2008 fiscal year, on September 19, 2007, the 

Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board of WaveLight AG 

gave the declaration of conformity in accordance with Section 

161 German Securities Trading Law (AktG). Hence, both bodies 

of the public limited Company declared that they had compre-

hensively met the recommendations of the German Corporate 

Governance Code valid at that time. On August 5, 2008, the 

Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board signed the dec-

laration of conformity for the year of 2008. Both bodies gave 

assurances in this declaration of conformity that WaveLight AG 

would continue in the future to follow the current Corporate 

Governance Code with few exceptions. The complete declara-

tion of conformity can be found on the WaveLight AG website 

at www.wavelight.com. Moreover, as in the previous year, 

the 2007/2008 Annual Report of WaveLight AG includes an 

independent Corporate Governance Report.

Alcon, Inc.’s takeover bid

On July 16, 2007, Alcon, Inc. announced its intention, namely 

to submit a voluntary public takeover bid to the shareholders of 

WaveLight AG. On August 10, 2007, Alcon, Inc. published its 

tender document, which was a purchase offer for all WaveLight 

AG bearer shares at a price of €15.00 cash per share. On 

August 20, 2007, in a joint statement published in accordance 

with Section 27 German Securities Acquisition and Takeover Act 

(WpÜG), both the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board 

of WaveLight AG announced their support for Alcon, Inc.’s offer 

and recommended share holders to take up the offer.

In addition to the largely standard completion conditions in 



 �1

respect of WaveLight’s economic development and various  

approval conditions as laid down by antitrust law in the select-

ed countries, the offer was also dependent on the acquisition  

of at least 75% of WaveLight shares. One day before the expiry 

of the acceptance period, Alcon, Inc. waived the minimum  

acceptance threshold. As this amendment to the tender docu-

ment was made within the last two weeks of the acceptance 

period, the acceptance period did not end on September 11, 

2007, but was extended by two weeks to September 25, 2007.

After the implementation of the take-over bid on November 9, 

2007, Alcon, Inc. announced that its voting rights percentage in 

WaveLight AG amounted to 77.38%.

Domination Agreement

On March 20, 2008, WaveLight AG and Alcon Inc. made a 

Domination Agreement in accordance with Section 291 German 

Securities Trading Law (AktG), which still required the approval 

of the General Meeting of WaveLight AG. For this purpose, an 

Extraordinary General Meeting was called, which approved on 

May 7, 2008, by a great majority, the Domination Agreement 

between WaveLight AG and the majority shareholder, Alcon, 

Inc. By reason of outstanding complaints of individual share-

holders against the resolutions of the Extraordinary General 

Meeting, the Domination Agreement had not yet been regis-

tered in the Commercial Register at the District Court in Fürth.

Dependency Report

Because there was not yet a Domination Agreement with the 

majority shareholder, Alcon, Inc. in the 2007/2008 fiscal year, 

the Board of Directors set up a Dependency Report for the 

2007/2008 fiscal year, in accordance with Section 312 German 

Securities Trading Law (AktG). The relationship with the Alcon 

Group as well as with the own subsidiaries was described in 

this report. The Report is subject to the auditing duty by the 

Auditor.

The Dependency Report contains at the end, in accordance with 

Section 312(3) German Securities Trading Law (AktG), the  

following declaration of the Board of Directors of WaveLight AG:
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“As stated in the report, in the course of the relationships with 

affiliated companies, we declare that our Company has received 

appropriate remuneration for the legal transactions performed 

and measures taken according to the circumstances, which 

were known to us at the time when the transactions were made 

or the measures were taken or omitted in respect of each legal 

transaction, and our Company has not suffered any disadvan-

tage as a result of the taking or omission of such measures.“

The Dependency Report was submitted to the Supervisory 

Board, which underwent an independent examination of the 

same and of the legal transactions and measures listed in it in 

accordance with Section 314 (2) AktG. This did not give rise to 

any objections.

Capital structure – information relevant to the take-over 

According to Sections 289 (4) and 315 (4) German Commercial 

Code (HGB), it is compulsory for all stock exchange listed com-

panies to report certain information relevant to a take-over.

Composition of the capital

On the date of the balance sheet, the subscribed capital of 

WaveLight AG amounted to € 6,586,026 and it was distributed 

in 6,586,026 bearer shares in the form of ordinary shares with 

a value of €1.00 each. Each share entitles the owner to one 

vote.
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Restrictions to voting rights and transfer of shares

So far as the Board of Directors is aware, there are no restric-

tions that apply to voting rights or to the transfer of shares. 

Moreover, the Board of Directors is not aware of any agree-

ments between shareholders, which comprise restrictions to 

voting rights and to the transfer of shares.

Shareholding structure 

The Board of Directors of WaveLight AG is aware that Alcon, 

Inc. in Hünenberg, Switzerland has a shareholding of about 

77.28% in WaveLight AG and thus holds a direct or indirect 

holding in the subscribed capital of WaveLight AG, which is 

higher than 10%.

Holders of shares with special rights

WaveLight AG has not issued any shares that confer special 

rights with supervisory powers.

Staff participation in capital

There are no staff participations in capital, by which supervisory 

rights are not directly exercised.

Appointment and dismissal of members of the  

Board of Directors

According to Art. 6 of the WaveLight AG Articles of Association, 

the Board of Directors can be made up of one or more persons. 

The Supervisory Board appoints the members of the Board of 

Directors and determines their number. The appointment and 

dismissal of the members of the Board of Directors take place 

in accordance with the legal requirements of Sections 84 and 

85 AktG. The Supervisory Board appoints the Chairman of the 

Board of Directors. The Supervisory Board may appoint deputy 

members of the Board of Directors. The Supervisory Board 

appoints members of the Board of Directors for a maximum of 

five years. Multiple appointments or prolonged terms in office is 

permissible, in each case subject to a maximum of five years.

Amendments to the Articles of Association

The resolutions of the General Meetings shall be adopted by a 

simple majority of the votes cast unless the law does not require 

a voting majority. In addition, insofar as the German Stock 

Corporation Act requires a majority of the capital stock to be 

represented in the making of the resolution, a simple majority 

of the capital represented shall be sufficient for the decision, 

insofar as the law allows. Moreover, the legal requirements 

(Sections 133, 179 AktG) shall apply to amendments of the 

Articles of Association.

Share buy-back programme, conditional and  

authorised capital

An authorisation to buy back shares in the Company does 

not exist. Subject to the approval of the Supervisory Board, 

the Board of Directors is authorised to increase the capital 

stock until January 11, 2010, by issuing up to 3,008,102 new 

bearer shares, in return for non-cash contributions or contribu-

tions in cash, on one or more occasions, by up to a total of 

€3,008,102.00 (Authorised Capital 1). Under certain condi-

tions, with the approval of the Supervisory Board, the pre-emp-

tive rights of the shareholders may be excluded. 

The capital stock is subject to a contingent increase of up 

to €244,258.00 by issuing up to 244,258 bearer shares 

(Contingent Capital III). The contingent capital increase serves 

to grant the rights to the holders of share option rights, the 

issue of which was authorised by the Board of Directors, 

by resolution of the General Meeting on January 14, 2004. 

The contingent capital increase shall be effected only to the 

extent that the holders of share option rights, granted on the 

basis of the authorisation resolved by the General Meeting of 

Shareholders of January 14, 2004, exercise those rights.
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Furthermore, the capital stock is subject to a contingent 

increase of up to €369,380.00 by issuing up to 369,380 bearer 

shares (Contingent Capital IV). The contingent capital increase 

serves to grant the rights to the holders of share option rights, 

the issue of which was authorised by the Board of Directors, 

by resolution of the General Meeting on January 18, 2006. 

The contingent capital increase shall be effected only to the 

extent that the holders of share option rights, granted on the 

basis of the authorisation resolved by the General Meeting of 

Shareholders of January 18, 2006, exercise those rights.

Change of Control

Essential agreements of the Company, subject to a change of 

control as a consequence of the take-over bid (the so-called 

change of control clauses) and compensation agreements for a 

possible take-over bid with members of the Board of Directors 

or employees, do not exist.

Both parties to the Domination Agreement between WaveLight 

AG and Alcon, Inc. of March 20, 2008, are entitled to terminate 

the Domination Agreement for an important reason, especially 

if Alcon, Inc. does not have a majority of voting rights directly or 

indirectly in WaveLight AG.

B. Financial Report

Results of operations

The most important WaveLight Group earnings figures for the 

financial year 2007/2008 changed against the figures for the 

previous year as listed below:

In the 2007/2008 fiscal year, the WaveLight Group generated 

turnover of €90,876 thousand and was able to increase the same 

clearly, compared with the previous year (€70,370 thousand).

Against this background of a sales volume increase of 29%, 

the WaveLight Group has not only increased its gross profit in 

absolute terms, but also significantly in relative terms. By means 

of corresponding measures and effects of increases in volume,  

it was possible to counter the price fall, caused especially by  

rising competition and by the dollar rate development. The 

gross earnings margin was 42.6%, while the corresponding 

previous year‘s value was 36.9%. 

Compared with the previous year, expenses in the 2007/2008 

fiscal year increased only negligibly. In these circumstances,  

the growth in turnover generated represents a considerable  

increase in productivity. Thus, up to July 31, 2008, the 

WaveLight Group was again able to achieve a demonstrably 

positive result before interest and taxes (EBIT). With an EBIT  

  

Sales revenue 90,876 70,370 +29.1%

Gross profit on turnover 38,753 25,984 +49.1% 

as a percentage of performance 42.6% 36.9%

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 6,292 660 +853.3%

Financial results	 -3,324	 -3,970	 +16.3%

Taxes on income	 -7,129	 763	 -1,034.3%

Income from discontinued operations less tax effect	 -6,089	 -11,087	 +45.1%

Group annual result	 -10,072	 -13,490	 +25.3%

2007/2008 2006/2007 ChangeAll amounts in thousand €

WaveLight Group earnings figures



 ��

of €6,292 thousand the Group was definitely able to improve, 

in comparison with the previous year‘s results (€660 thousand). 

Without single items as a consequence of the involvement 

of Alcon, Inc., as majority shareholder in WaveLight AG and 

corresponding restructuring measures, the WaveLight Group is 

able to present an “adjusted“ EBIT of more than €11.7 million. 

The corresponding yield on turnover of about 13% proved the 

productivity of the WaveLight Group beyond doubt.

By means of a positive cash flow and a new finance structure, 

the WaveLight Group was clearly able to improve its financial 

results to a level of €-3,324 thousand in the reporting period. 

This represents an increase of 16.3% compared with the finan-

cial results of the previous year at €-3,970 thousand.

The expenses for taxes on income amounted to €7,129 thousand 

(previous year €+763 thousand). In the first place, this value was 

influenced by valuation allowances of active deferred taxes. 

The background for this valuation adjustment was the published  

agreement between Nestlé S.A. and Novartis AG on April 7, 

2008. There, it was provided, that Novartis, in a first step 

purchased 24.85 % of the shares of the WaveLight majority 

shareholder, Alcon, Inc. Between January 1, 2010 and July 31, 

2011, the remaining part of about 52% of Alcon, Inc. may be 

transferred to Novartis AG.

After the 2006/2007 fiscal year, the WaveLight Group account-

ed for negative results from discontinued business operations, 

also in the 2007/2008 fiscal year. In the first place, the results 

were influenced by the sale of the intraocular surgery division, 

with a value of €4,722 thousand. In addition, the separation 

of the Aesthetic business division, at €1,367 thousand, had a 

negative effect on the results. 

  

Earnings	before	interest	and	taxes (EBIT)   6,292

Single items 

-  Income and expenses from the withdrawal of the share   +1,486 

 option plan in connection with the take-over by Alcon, Inc. 

-  Legal and consultancy fees in connection with the   -2,577 

 take-over by Alcon, Inc- 

-  Staff expenses in connection with the take-over by Alcon, Inc.  -1,824 

-  Expenses due to the planned reorientation of the   -1,873 

 Spanish business activities 

-  Other income and expenses  -673 

Total   -5,461

„Adjusted“ earnings before interest and taxes („adjusted“ EBIT)   11,753

All amounts in thousand €

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) of WaveLight Group for the financial year 2007/2008
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Net assets

Financial position

In the 2007/2008 fiscal year, the cash flow from current busi-

ness activity, at €10,665 thousand, very clearly exceeded the 

previous year‘s level of €410 thousand.

Above all, the improved results as well as a significant reduc-

tion to receivables and the monetary receipts from the sale of 

WaveLight Aesthetic GmbH all contributed to this.  

As of July 31, 2008, the cash flow from investment activi-

ties amounted to €-5,471 thousand (previous year: €-1,990 

thousand). 

It contains essentially the payments for investments for the 

reinforced research and development activity.

The cash flow amounting to €-2,012 thousand (previous year 

€624 thousand) from financing activity shows the debt relief of 

the WaveLight Group in the 2007/08 fiscal year. The increase in 

the financial resources funds to €3,182 thousand as of July 31, 

2008, compared with the previous year, underlines additionally 

the improved financial situation of the WaveLight Group.

In spite of a clear increase in the volume of business, the 

WaveLight Group achieved a lower balance sheet total than in 

the previous year. It was €62,048 thousand in the 2007/2008 

fiscal year, while in the previous year, it was €74,398 thousand. 

The reasons for a lower balance sheet total compared with the 

previous year, well worth mentioning, are the reorientation of 

the Company activity and the valuation adjustment of deferred 

taxes. 

  

Inflow of funds from current business activity 10,665 410 +2,501.2%

Outflow of funds from investment activity -5,471 -1,990 -174.9%

Inflow of funds from financing activity -2,012 624 -422.4%

Increase in the financial resources funds	 3,182	 -956	 +432.8%

2007/2008 2006/2007 ChangeAll amounts in thousand €

The most important WaveLight Group financial figures have developed as follows:

  

Equity 11,787 22,995 -48.7%

Liabilities 50,261 51,403 -2.2%

Balance sheet total 62,048 74,398 -16.6%

Equity ratio	 19.0%	 30.9%

2007/2008 2006/2007 Change All amounts in thousand €

The most important WaveLight Group figures have developed as follows:
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The liabilities of the WaveLight Group amounted to €50,261 

thousand at the reporting date, and with this they were slightly 

below the level of the previous year (€51,403 thousand), in 

spite of a clear increase in the business volume. Taking into  

account the ABS Programme, still contained in the result of  

the previous year, the fall of the balance sheet total at about 

€8.1 million would have been higher.  

On the July 31, 2008, the equity capital base of the WaveLight 

Group was €11,787 thousand (previous year €22,995 thou-

sand), which equals an equity capital base of 19% (previous 

year 31%). 

 

C. Report on post balance sheet date events for the 

financial year 2007/2008

Prolongation of the loan agreement with Alcon, Inc.

On August 14, 2008, WaveLight AG had issued a supple- 

ment to the loan agreement made with Alcon, Inc. in Decem-

ber 2007. The prolongation of the credit line amounting to €50 

million to one year was agreed in the supplement, so that now 

the financing of the WaveLight Group is secure until Novem- 

ber 30, 2009. In the future, WaveLight AG will enter negotia-

tions with Alcon, Inc. as soon as possible, concerning the 

prolongation and the conditions of the credit line, in order to  

be able to build timely alternative financing, in case of need.

Together with the prolongation of the credit line, WaveLight AG 

was furthermore given the possibility to use the credits also 

in US dollars. The target of this contractual supplement is to 

hedge the US dollar assets in the balance of WaveLight AG.

Ultimate separation of Aesthetic and Urology

On September 18, 2008 WaveLight AG and Quantel S.A. made  

an amendment to a contract for transfer of the aesthetics produc-

tion activities. Important components of this agreement are essen-

tially the phasing out of the production until December 2008,  

the transfer of supplies, the discontinuation of a variable pur- 

chase price right and the subsequent regulation of guarantee 

promises.
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With exception of the discontinuation of the variable purchase 

price right, the agreement made corresponds as far as possible 

to the balanced values at the time of sale in September 2007. 

In addition, it was agreed that the second purchase price  

instalment amounting to €1.6 million should be set off against 

the claims of Quantel S.A. of €0.4 million. By means of the 

agreement made with Quantel S.A., WaveLight AG secures its 

exit from the aesthetics business division until the end of 2008.

With the rescission of both production contracts carried out in 

the meantime as of December 31, 2008 in the business area of 

urology, the WaveLight Group will not present “any more activi-

ties carried forward“ until the end of 2008.

Reorientation of the Spanish business activities

On September 23, 2008, the Board of Directors of WaveLight AG 

decided to reorientate the Spanish business activities of the 

WaveLight Group. Accordingly, WaveLight AG intends to sell 

its holding in WaveLight S.A. of 51% to its managing directors.  

Moreover, WaveLight AG plans to use the sales presence of the 

Alcon Group in this market. To this end, the marketing and the 

sales of laser systems in this market should be transferred to the 

Spanish Alcon distribution organisation. The expected balance 

effects from the reorientation of the Spanish distribution struc-

tures were accordingly taken into account in the 2007/2008 

annual accounts.

Registration of the Domination Agreement

Currently, the registration in the Commercial Register at the 

District Court in Fürth of the Domination Agreement dated 

March 20, 2008, between WaveLight AG and Alcon, Inc. has 

still not been carried out, owing to outstanding complaints 

of individual shareholders against the resolutions of the 

Extraordinary General Meeting.

Several shareholders have filed actions of opposition and alter-

natively partial actions of nullity towards the single item of the 

agenda of the Extraordinary General Meeting of the company 

of the May 7, 2008, namely the motion for the approval of 

the making of this Domination Agreement. Moreover, some 
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of these shareholders have filed at the same time actions of 

opposition and in one case alternatively an action of nullity, as 

well as positive action for a declaration that the resolution was 

right regarding the decision taken in the General Meeting about 

commissioning a special auditor.  The proceedings are currently 

taking place. In the same connection, three shareholders have 

started proceedings to enforce the disclosure of information, 

which likewise are still taking place.

Because WaveLight AG is of the opinion that the outstanding 

actions and proceedings will be resolved in favour of  

WaveLight AG, on the August 15, 2008, the Company made an 

application to the competent Nuremberg-Fürth Regional Court 

under Section 246a AktG for it to allow the passing of the reso-

lution relating to the approval of the Domination Agreement, in 

order for it to be entered in the commercial register.

 

D. Opportunities and risks report 

As an internationally operating group of companies, the 

WaveLight Group is exposed to a range of different risks that 

are inextricably connected with business activity. A responsible 

approach to managing such risks is essential.

With its optimised risk management, WaveLight AG pursues the 

goal of identifying all potential risks at an early stage in order to 

analyse, avoid or contain them accordingly. Risk management 

constitutes a fundamental component of WaveLight AG’s cor-

porate management. The basis of the risk management system 

is a detailed medium term plan covering a period of several 

years, drawn up for all planning-relevant units of the Company. 

The annual planning process is completed on a regular basis in 

the last three months of each fiscal year.

As in the 2007/2008 fiscal year, WaveLight AG constantly 

checks the practicability and efficiency of their control and 

risk management systems. Compliance with the EUs medical 

directives as well as the Food and Drug Administration’s (FDA) 
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standards and certified quality management also contribute to 

the virtual elimination of potential risks, in advance.

The risk management system consists of a two-stage organi-

sation, the central risk management unit and decentralised 

responsibility for risk taken by individuals in all areas of the 

Company. The task of the reporting and control of the risk man-

agement process are taken on by the central risk management 

unit. The investigation of risks, their assessment and monitoring 

as well as their minimisation by corresponding measures is the 

duty of the respective risk responsibility personnel.

The process is supported by the use of risk management soft- 

ware, which accompanies the whole procedure for the identifi-

cation of risks, through the analysis and assessment up to the 

documentation and determination of risk statistics. The flow of 

information to the decision makers is assured through regular 

reports to the Board of Directors and to the Supervisory Board, 

concerning the current and expected business trends, as well 

as the up-to-date assessment of opportunities and risks in each 

case.

The relevant risks for the company are set out below:

Market risks

WaveLight AG operates within a highly competitive global mar-

ket for innovative refractive surgery products. A weak economic 

environment or even changes to the general legal conditions 

on the sales markets can negatively affect demand for medical 

technology products for refractive surgery. 

In previous financial years, WaveLight AG reacted to the down-

ward price pressure on the international sales market with the 

introduction of the new ALLEGRETTO product family. The aim 

was to supply medical users employing a range of different laser 

applications with the best solution for their needs, while also 

taking into account the prevailing cost factor. 
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Along with advancing use of the global sales strength of the 

Alcon Group by WaveLight AG comes an increasing dependence 

by WaveLight AG on the successful handling of the market by 

the Alcon Group. According to current plans, the share of sales 

by the Alcon Group of the total turnover of WaveLight AG will 

increase to more than 70% during the next few years. This 

fact involves opportunities as well as risks in equal measure, 

whereby, according to current assessments, the international 

market presence and the sales strength of the Alcon Group will 

promote the business development of WaveLight AG. Changes 

to company strategies and management decisions in the Alcon 

Group will thus have an increasing effect on the economic 

development of WaveLight AG. For this reason, WaveLight AG 

finds itself in a continuing strategic and operational planning 

and co-ordinating process with the Alcon Group, so as to be 

able to react as early as possible to changes and to take ap-

propriate action.

Legal risks

As a globally operating medical technological company, 

WaveLight AG cannot completely rule out legal risks. WaveLight AG 

has adopted a preventative approach to possible product liabil-

ity risks via permanent market monitoring and the appropriate 

insurance cover.

In the case of new developments, it cannot to be ruled out that 

WaveLight AG will be confronted with legal claims from market 

competitors on the basis of existing patents and utility model 

property rights. For this reason WaveLight AG has been suc-

cessfully working with internationally experienced patent agents 

since its foundation. In addition, WaveLight AG is increasingly 

making use of its industrial property rights on innovations 

developed within the Group, where a patent is pending as a 

means of distinguishing itself from and securing its market 

advantage against competitors.

Furthermore, approval of newly developed products can be de-

layed and finally granted at a later date than originally planned. 

Approvals which have already been granted are also subject to 

regular audits and may, under certain circumstances, no longer 

comply with the changed requirements. To date, the WaveLight 

Group has been able to pass successfully all the yearly audits 

conducted within the framework of the FDA approval, required 

for the US market.

After comprehensive legal inspection, the Board of Directors 

estimates that the pending proceedings and actions, in connec-

tion with the resolutions of the Extraordinary General Meeting 

on the May 7, 2008, will be decided in favour of WaveLight AG 

and that no essential legal risks will remain for the Company. 

Accordingly, in the assessment of the Board of Directors, the 

pending legal proceedings will not have any notable effect on 

the group’s assets or operating results. Should these proceed-

ings be decided wholly or partially against WaveLight AG, 

contrary to expectation, the Company would be burdened with 

not insignificant procedural costs.

Development project risks

In line with its claim to technology and innovation leadership in the 

global refractive surgery market, WaveLight AG will also conduct 

intensive research and development activities in the future. 

Hence, the WaveLight Group must continue to deal with risks 

from non-compliance with the research and development targets. 

Although WaveLight AG is in close contact all over the world 

with practising ophthalmologists, and develops and produces 

its medical technology products to ensure they are user friendly 

and practice-oriented, their acceptance on the part of customers 

and their consequent market success can only be estimated. 

This applies in particular to new developments.

Furthermore, the development and approval of new WaveLight 

products is also subject to product-immanent risks. When devel-

oping new products their timely entry into the market, while ob-

serving the strict approval conditions of the respective country 

is an important goal. EC directives as well as the provisions of 

the German Medical Devices Act (Gesetz über Medizinprodukte 

(MPG)) as well as the approval conditions of the US Food and 

Drug Administration (FDA) all need to be taken into account 

during the development process.
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Procurement risks

In the area of procurement, WaveLight AG has set itself the 

goal of reducing its dependence on suppliers to a minimum.  

In order to realise this goal, especially in light of the innovative 

product pallet and the required input factors, additional effort 

and expenditure are required. Finding a balance between a 

smooth procurement process and observing WaveLight AG’s 

high quality standards remains of central importance in this 

context.

Furthermore, WaveLight AG is able to meet fluctuations in  

demand, because the medical technology company deploys 

rolling planning instruments, and secures demand for compo-

nents required for the manufacture of treatment and diagno-

sis systems through appropriate supply contracts and basic 

agreements. 

WaveLight AG obtains some of its components from highly spe-

cialised manufacturers. WaveLight’s high quality standards have 

been correspondingly implemented by suppliers and are guaran-

teed by regular on-site quality audits conducted by WaveLight 

AG. However, in particular cases, only one manufacturer is able 

to supply to WaveLight AG, owing to the extremely high quality 

demands on individual components. A substitution or drop out 

of these suppliers would cause substantial tie-ups in the service 

process of WaveLight AG. For this reason, the consequent 

implementation or the expansion of dual source provisions to 

the maximum possible extent, remain of crucial importance. 

Also with new developments, it is essential to observe this im-

portant regulation so that the risk relevance for future product 

generations and thus the dependence on individual suppliers 

will be reduced further. 

Resource risks

Qualified and highly motivated specialist personnel and manage-

ment staff form an important foundation for the development 

and manufacture of high quality and innovative product solutions 

in the medical technology field. However the recruitment of 

qualified staff at a regional and global level can prove difficult. 
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To secure the need for personnel, WaveLight AG is investing 

both in remuneration of staff in line with the market and in staff 

loyalty programmes, in order to bind suitable skilled person-

nel to the Company, on the basis of a personnel development 

concept and financial inducements. Furthermore, professional 

training and promotion concepts, as well as the creation of 

attractive working conditions, should secure the existing know-

how and acquisition of knowledge.

The emphasis in the area of information technology is on the 

improvement of the organisational workflow through intensive 

usage of the existing integrated computer system, with an 

increased focus on security against unauthorised access and 

virus attacks. Corresponding measures were implemented and 

networks adjusted to meet the company’s increased needs. 

Environmental risks 

Apart from low quantities of technical gases and dyes, 

WaveLight AG does not employ any environmentally damaging 

materials in the production of its laser systems. On the basis of 

current knowledge, the production process does not present a 

significant threat to the environment. WaveLight AG’s produc-

tion facilities are also located on uncontaminated sites, which 

again pose no threat to the environment.

Financial risks

After the successful take-over bid of Alcon, Inc. to the 

WaveLight shareholders in December, 2007, WaveLight AG 

agreed a loan of €50 million from Alcon, Inc. to repay liabilities 

to banks, to terminate the ABS programme (Asset-Backed 

Securities-Programme) and to finance the Company‘s further 

development. With this, the financial commitments so far 

financed with credit institutions for the period up to December 

20, 2007, were repaid and the company finances were 

restructured.

At the end of the financial year on July 31, 2008, WaveLight AG 

had drawn down €34.2 million under the loan agreement with 

Alcon, Inc. The interest on the loan agreement with Alcon, Inc. 

was 7.38% at the time of the refinancing of the bank liabilities. 

At this time, the average interest on the bank liabilities was 

about 9.2%, so that with the loan agreement, an commercial 

advantage of just two percentage points was achieved.

In August, 2008, the loan agreement was prolonged by an 

additional year so that the financing of the WaveLight Group 

is secure from now until November 30, 2009. In the future, 

WaveLight AG will also enter corresponding negotiations with 

Alcon, Inc. as soon as possible, concerning the prolongation 

and the conditions, in order to be able to build timely alterna-

tive financing, in case of need.

In addition to the customary credit risks, financial risks also 

arise as a consequence of fluctuations in the currency exchange 

rate between the Euro and the US dollar. The dollar rate devel-

opment had a negative influence on the results in the closed 

fiscal year. Through appropriate hedging measures, WaveLight AG 

seeks to counteract this trend. However, it will not be possible 

to mitigate this effect entirely. As a consequence of the change-

over of the calculation of turnover for the US market in Euros, 

through corresponding agreements with Alcon, Inc., it was 

possible for a considerable part of the US dollar exchange rate 

risks to be reduced. Moreover, in August, 2008, WaveLight AG 

had used the possibility to secure its US dollar assets through 

restructuring a part of the loan from Alcon, Inc. from Euros to 

dollars, so that, in total, it was possible for the dependency on 

dollars of the WaveLight Group to be reduced.

In the receivables area, the development of the receivables 

portfolio is constantly monitored in order to detect potential 

default risks as early as possible and take appropriate measures 

to secure these receivables.
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Opportunities

Future opportunities of the WaveLight Group arise in the first 

place from the innovative product range in the area of refractive 

surgery. WaveLight AG has a comprehensive, cutting edge and 

optimally matched product portfolio of treatment and diagnosis 

systems for the correction of visual impairments. On this basis, 

the Company was able to set not only worldwide recognised 

treatment standards in recent years, but also to design actively 

and successfully the technological development in refractive 

surgery. Comprehensive activities in the areas of research and 

development and the consequent implementation of optimisa-

tion proposals from medical practice offer WaveLight AG, now 

and in the future, excellent opportunities to position itself 

successfully as the worldwide technology leader in the area of 

refractive surgery.  

Through the collaboration with Alcon, Inc., a wholly positive 

business development will be expected. The liquidity situation 

of the company has clearly stabilised itself following the take-

over of financing by Alcon, Inc. However, should the collabora-

tion with Alcon, Inc. not develop as expected, factors could 

arise and affect that development.
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E. Outlook

In the 2007/2008 fiscal year, WaveLight AG was able to 

complete successfully its strategic reorientation. The divest-

ment of the intraocular surgery business division having taken 

place in December 2007, in the future, the Company will focus 

completely on the expansion of its refractive competence. 

Against this background, the positive growing development for 

the WaveLight Group will almost certainly also continue in the 

2008 short financial year.

From a technological view, the next few months will be much 

influenced by the successful concentration on the core compe-

tence, refractive surgery, too. The diagnosis system, ALLEGRO 

BioGraph, presented to the technical community in September 

2008, is  extremely flexible and can be used in a versatile way, 

both in refractive and also in cataract surgery and, in the future, 

will complete the WaveLight product portfolio appropriately.

With the anticipated presentation of the new Femto laser 

system, which complements to best effect the WaveLight laser 

systems for the correction of visual impairments, WaveLight will 

complete its product range with an effective and contemporary 

system, for the preparation of the actual LASIK treatment.

Still closer co-operation with the majority shareholder, Alcon, 

Inc., will likewise take priority in future business activities. The 

already successful co-operation should be further intensified 

and used effectively, in order to realise corresponding synergy 

potential in research and development, as well as in marketing 

and sales. 

The WaveLight Group is extremely well positioned to grow prof-

itably in the target markets. Thus, in order to meet successfully 

the challenges of the worldwide markets, the WaveLight Group 

has set the basic course with the reorientation and focus on the 

associated core competence, refractive surgery. Trend-setting 

innovations will also confirm in the future the worldwide tech-

nology leadership of WaveLight AG. Moreover, the co-operation 

with the Alcon Group will lead to sustainable growth.

The period from August 1 to December 31, 2008 will be a 

short fiscal year because the General Meeting has approved 

the change of the fiscal year to the calendar year. Starting from 

January 1, 2009, the fiscal year of WaveLight AG will corre-

spond with the calendar year.

In the five months of the 2008 short fiscal year, the WaveLight 

Group expects further growth in turnover and positive results 

of interest and tax (EBIT). In the medium term the WaveLight 

Group aims for an EBIT margin of 10%.

Erlangen, October 6, 2008

WaveLight AG

The Board of Directors 
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1. Earnings
 
 Gross operating profit   
Gross operating margin in % Revenues  42.6% 36.9% 46.7%
 
 R&D Costs   
R&D Costs in % Revenues  7.4% 7.7% 9.5%
 
  Earnings before interest and taxes    
EBIT margin in % Revenues  6.9% 0.9% -17.6%
 
 Profit after taxes  
 (including minority interests)   
Return on equity in % Average equity  -57.9% -45.6% -46.1%
 
Return on  EBIT   
capital employed in % Average total equity  
 (less liquid assets)  9.2% 0.8% -12.1%
 
  
2. Assets
 
 Noncurrent assets 
Fixed assets ratio in % Total assets  31.5% 33.8% 32.6%
 
 Depreciation and amortization 
Financing ratio in % Investments  92.1%  106.4% 22.3%

 Equity    
Equity ratio in % Total capital  19.0%  30.9% 38.8%
 
 Stockholders‘ equity   
Investment cover in %  Noncurrent assets  60.3% 91.5% 118.8%
 
 Short-term debt    
Debit structure in % Total debt  96.4% 91.0% 85.8%

Key Performance Ratios are not part of the consolidated financial statement (according to IFRS).

Key Performance Ratios

 Fiscal Year  Fiscal Year Fiscal Year 
 2007/2008 2006/2007 200�/2006
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The notes are an integral component of the group consolidated financial statement.

Consolidated Balance Sheet 
for the period ended July 31, 2008 (IFRS)

  
Noncurrent assets
  
Intangible assets 1  14,932 20,183  
Property, plant, and equipment 2 4,608 4,115 
Noncurrent financial assets 3 - 828 
Accounts receivable for deliveries 
and services to third parties 5 2,653 4,321 
Other noncurrent assets against third parties 6 - 80 
Other assets from affliated companies  6 873 - 
Deferred tax assets 9 1,651 8,258
 
Total noncurrent assets   2�,717 37,78�
 
Current assets
  
Inventories  4  6,676 7,888 
Accounts receivable for deliveries and services to third parties  5  14,311 16,195 
Accounts receivable for deliveries 
and services to affliated companies 5 5,679 - 
Current tax receivables  176 474 
Other current assets against third parties  6  2,002 5,376 
Other assets from affliated companies 6 941 - 
Cash and cash equivalents  7  4,416 1,263
 
Subtotal current assets  3�,201 31,196
 
Assets in relation to disposal of 
business divisions  8  3,130 5,417
 
Total current assets  37,331 36,613
 
Total assets  62,0�8 7�,398

Amounts in € thousands

Assets Note July 31, 2008   July 31, 2007 
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The notes are an integral component of the group consolidated financial statement.

  
Equity  
 
Subscribed capital 10  6,586  6,577  
Capital reserves 10 48,018 49,188 
Other reserves  262 59 
Profit/loss brought forward  (33,018) (19,528) 
Consolidated profit/loss  (10,072) (13,490)  
Minority interest  11  11 189 
 
Total equity  11,787 22,99�
  
 
Noncurrent liabilities
    
Liabilities to credit institutions 12  116 461 
Other liabilities  13 1,161 2,340  
 
Total noncurrent liabilities  1,277 2,801
 
    
Current liabilities
    
Provisions 14  1,025 782 
Liabilities to credit institutions 12   363 28,227  
Financial liabilities to affiliated companies 12 34,183 - 
Accounts payable for deliveries and services to third parties 13   2,995 7,444 
Accounts payable for deliveries and services to affiliated companies 13 532 - 
Prepayments received 13 26 2,189  
Other liabilities 13  9,241 9,128 
 
Subtotal current liabilities   �8,36� �7,770 
 
Liabilities in relation to disposal  
of business divisions  15  619 832
 
Total current liabilities  �8,98� �8,602
    
Total liabilities  62,0�8 7�,398

Liabilities Note July 31, 2008  July 31, 2007 
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Consolidated Statements of Income in accordance with IFRS
August 1, 2007 – July 31, 2008

Amounts in € thousands Note  Fiscal Year Fiscal Year  
   2007/2008 2006/2007

  
Revenues 16 90,876 70,370
 
Production costs of the revenue 17 (�2,123) (��,386)
 
Gross profit  38,7�3 2�,98�
 
Costs of sales and product marketing  18 (15,660) (17,303) 
Costs of corporate marketing / 
investor relations  19 (1,526) (1,247) 
Research and development costs 20 (6,742) (5,429) 
General and administrative costs 21 (3,571) (3,259) 
Other operating expenditure 22 (11,638) (1,386)  
Other operating income 23 6,676 3,300
 
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT)  6,292 660
 
Financial income 24 363 420 
Finance costs 25 (3,687) (4,390) 
 
Net finance costs  (3,32�) (3,970)
 
Earnings before taxes (EBT)  2,968 (3,310)
 
Income tax expense 26 (7,129) 763 
 
Profit after taxes  (�,161) (2,��7)
 
Loss from discontinued operations,  
net of tax 27 (6,089) (11,087)
 
Profit/loss attributable to minority interest 28 178 144 
 
Consolidated earnings  (10,072) (13,�90) 
 
Accumulated losses from prior period brought forward  (33,018) (19,528)
 
Accumulated deficit  (�3,090) (33,018)
 
Earnings/loss per share in € (basic) 29 (1.53) (2.05) 
Earnings/loss per share in € (diluted) 29 (1.53) (2.05)
 
Earnings/loss per share from discontinued operations 
in € (basic) 29 (0.93) (1.69) 
Earnings/loss per share from discontinued operations 
in € (diluted) 29 (0.92) (1.69)

The notes are an integral component of the group consolidated financial statement.
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Statement of Changes in Consolidated Equity

The notes are an integral component of the group consolidated financial statement.

 
As of July 31, 2006   6,�77   �9,032  (19,�28)   (�99)  288 3�,870 333  333   36,203  
 
Remaining changes - 156 - 270 - 426 - - 426
Group annual result - - (13,490) - - (13,490) (144) (144) (13,634)
Group total result - - (13,490) - - (13,490) (144) (144) (13,634)
          
As of July 31, 2007  6,�77 �9,188 (33,018) (229) 288 22,806 189 189 22,99�
          
Issue of shares 9 107 - - - 116 - - 116
Remaining changes - (1,277) - 203 - (1,074) - - (1,074)
Group annual result  - - (10,072) - - (10,072) (178) (178) (10,250)
Group total result - - (10,072) - - (10,072) (178) (178) (10,250)
 
As of July 31, 2008  6,�86 �8,018 (�3,090) (26) 288 11,776 11 11 11,787

Equity

Amounts in € thousands

Group 
equity

Minority 
capital

Balancing 
items from 
the foreign 

currency 
conversion

Generated 
group equity

Capital 
reserveCommon stock

Other  
neutral 

transactions Equity

Minority shareholderParent company

Subscribed 
capital

Cumulated remaining  
group result
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
for the fiscal year 2007/2008 in accordance with IFRS

 
 
Cash flows from operating activities
 
Consolidated profit/loss (10,072) (13,�90)
 
Minority interest (179) (144)
Profit/Loss attributable to minority interest:
+ Depreciation on property, plant, and equipment 5,508 4,295
-/+ Profit/loss on disposal of assets 816 960
+ Expenses from stock options 815 156
+/- Other non-cash income / expense 11,852 9,399

Change in assets and liabilities
-/+ Increase/decrease of inventories (132) 2,980
-/+ Increase/decrease in accounts receivable for deliveries and services 5,030 (966)
-/+ Increase/decrease in other liabilities 4,630 83
+/- Increase/decrease of provisions (1,233) 407
+/- Increase/decrease in accounts payable for deliveries and services (4,894) (4,170)
+/- Increase/decrease of other liabilities (1,476) 900
= Cash flows from operating activities 10,66� �10
 
Cash flows from investing activities

+ Proceeds from disposal of intangible and fixed assets 510 2,047
-  Payments for investments in intangible assets (3,150) (3,338)
-  Payments for investments in property, plant, and equipment (2,556) (699)
- Sale of subsidiaries, net of cash disposals (275) -
= Cash flows from investing activities (�,�71) (1,990)
 
Cash flows from financing activities

+ Proceeds from capital increases 116 -
+/- Change in financial liabilities (2,128) 624
= Cash flows from financing activities (2,012) 62�
 
Increase/reduction in capital funds 3,182 (9�6)
+/-  Influence of exchange rate fluctuations (29) (54)
 
Capital funds at the beginning of the fiscal year  1,263 2,273
 
Capital funds at the end of the fiscal year �,�16 1,263

Amounts in € thousands   Fiscal Year Fiscal Year  
  2007/2008 2006/2007

The notes are an integral component of the group consolidated financial statement.
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I. General Notes

WaveLight Aktiengesellschaft (WaveLight AG) located in Erlangen, Germany is a public limited company listed in the stock exchange 

in accordance with German law. The company is registered in the commercial register at the District Court in Fürth under No. HRB 

7532 and has its registered office at Wolfsmantel 5, 91058 Erlangen. 

The WaveLight AG consolidated accounts comprise WaveLight AG as well as all its consolidated subsidiaries. 

The basis of the compilation of the consolidated accounts 

The WaveLight AG consolidated accounts were prepared in accordance with Section 315a of the German Commercial Code (HGB) 

(“Annual accounts in accordance with international accounting standards“) complying with the International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS) of the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as well as the associated announcements of the 

International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), as they have to be applied in accordance with Article 4 of the 

Directive (EC) No. 1606/2002 of the European Parliament and the Council of July 19, 2002 in the European Union. The supplemen-

tary regulations required to be applied under Section 315a (1) German Commercial Code (HGB) were taken into account. 

All authoritative International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the announcements of the IFRIC were applied in the fiscal 

year, insofar as they were adopted by the European Union. 

The consolidated accounts have been prepared as of July 31, 2008. The annual accounts of WaveLight AG and its subsidiaries, 

WaveLight, Inc. (USA) and WaveLight S.A. (Spain) were prepared for the same reporting date. All consolidated accounts of the 

WaveLight Group are prepared on the basis of standardised accounting and valuation principles. 

The annual accounts of the parent company, WaveLight AG, were prepared in accordance with the regulations of the German 

Commercial Code (HGB). They are published in the electronic Federal Gazette under HRB 7532. 

The consolidated accounts were prepared in Euros and rounded up to thousand Euros. All figures are specified in thousand Euros 

unless otherwise noted. 

The balance sheet has been classified by maturity in accordance with IAS 1, and the income statement has been prepared using the 

function of expense method. Where items in the balance sheet and profit and loss account have been combined to enhance the 

clarity of presentation, they are disclosed separately in the notes. The structuring corresponds to the current valid regulations. The 

previous year’s presentation was adjusted accordingly. 

In accordance with IFRS 5, the Aesthetic business and Intraocular divisions, which were either discontinued or sold, are presented 

separately. The results of the discontinued operations have been shown in the profit and loss account in a single amount and the 

breakdown was given in the notes. Previous year amounts on the profit and loss account were adjusted to the changes in the 

company structure. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The following standards and interpretations were first applied in the 2007/2008 fiscal year, insofar as they are of importance to 

WaveLight AG and its subsidiaries: 

IAS 1 “Presentation of the annual accounts“

IFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Other declarations”

IFRIC 8 “Area of application of IFRS 2“

IFRIC 9 “Re-evaluation of embedded derivatives“

IFRIC 10 “Interim reporting and diminution in value“

The first application of the standards and interpretations has partially required expanded disclosures in the consolidated accounts of 

WaveLight AG. 

The compilation of the consolidated accounts of WaveLight AG excludes certain financial instruments recorded at their fair values on 

the basis of historical purchase and manufacturing costs. 

On October 6, 2008, the Executive Board of WaveLight AG released the WaveLight AG consolidated accounts for forwarding to the 

Supervisory Board. It is the task of the Supervisory Board to examine the consolidated accounts and to declare if it approves them. 

II. Basis of consolidation

1. Consolidated group

The consolidated accounts of WaveLight AG constitute the annual accounts of WaveLight AG and of all its essential subsidiaries over 

which control may be exercised on their business and finance policy, directly or indirectly. The annual accounts of all companies 

included in the consolidated accounts had been prepared in accordance with standard accounting principles. 

Companies in which the WaveLight Group has a shareholding of no more than 50%, but on which a comprehensive influence may be 

exercised are accounted for as associated companies at equity. All remaining companies of the WaveLight Group are accounted for at 

their acquisition costs. 

The number of companies included in the consolidated accounts has been reduced in the 2007/2008 fiscal year. On September 18, 

2007, WaveLight AG sold its 100% stake in WaveLight Aesthetic GmbH, Erlangen. WaveLight Aesthetic GmbH and its subsidiary, 

WaveLight Aesthetic, Inc. were deconsolidated at the end of September 2007. The remaining business activities in the Aesthetics 

Division, which will continue until the current production agreement between WaveLight AG and WaveLight Aesthetic GmbH expires, 

are reported as discontinued operations within the Group. 

On December 14, 2007, WaveLight‘s 100% stake in WaveLight GmbH, with its registered office in Berlin, was sold to the Dutch 

Medical Device Production B.V (MDP B.V.) and its 30% stake in MDP B.V was sold to Procornea Holding B.V., based in Eerbeek, in 

the Netherlands. 

In view of the sale of holdings, earnings in this sector are shown under the discontinued business divisions. Previous year‘s figures in 

the profit and loss account were restated accordingly. 
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On February 4, 2008, WaveLight AG transferred the business activities of WaveLight, Inc. to Alcon Laboratories, Inc. In addition to 

sales, service, and support functions, Alcon Laboratories, Inc. will also be responsible for marketing the technologically leading laser 

and diagnostic systems of WaveLight in the U.S.A. 

The following table provides an overview of WaveLight AG‘s associated subsidiaries. 

The following holdings were accounted for at their acquisition costs on the balance sheet date:

The holdings in e-EyeCare GmbH, Erlangen, that had already been adjusted in value in the previous year after completion of the 

liquidation proceedings were omitted in the last fiscal year. 

2. Consolidation methods

Capital consolidation is carried out using the purchase method in accordance with IFRS 3, “Business Combinations“ (purchase 

accounting). In the process, the acquisition costs of the holding are set off against the newly valued equity in the subsidiary, apportion-

able to the parent company at the acquisition date. Intangible assets, acquired through business combinations and identified in the 

course of purchase price allocation are taken into account at fair value. If an active difference remains after this set off and distribution of 

acquisition costs, it is accounted for as business value or goodwill under long-term assets. All transactions and balances between the 

companies of the WaveLight Group, comprising the consolidated accounts, are eliminated in the preparation of those accounts.

Differences in the debt consolidation are treated as affecting profit or loss. When of major importance, inter-company profit and loss 

from inter-company exchanges of services or from inter-company fixed asset transactions are eliminated from profit or loss. 

  

WaveLight, Inc., Dover, DE,  100% 1 3,801  (6,898) (2,005) 

USA (as of: July 31, 2008)

WaveLight S.A., Madrid, Spain 51% 191 1,861 (901) (1,342) 

(as of: July 31, 2008)

Amounts  in € thousands Holding in capital stock

  % in € thousands Balance sheet Equity Total

 

WaveLight Japan Co., Ltd., Tokyo, Japan 99.99% 0 2 2 0 

in liquidation (as of: July 31, 2008) 

Wavelight AsiaPacific Sdn Bhd,  99.99% 0 14 (122) (75) 

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia 

in liquidation (as of: July 31, 2008)

Amounts in € thousands Holding in capital stock

 %  Carrying amount  Total assets Equity Total
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At least once each year, an examination for impairments is carried out (impairment-only approach). Any excess of the acquirer’s share 

in the net fair value of the recognized assets and liabilities over the cost of the business combination must be reassessed and 

recognized immediately in profit or loss. 

Minority interests in equity of the subsidiaries are reported separately within the equity item. Minority interest shares in the income of 

the subsidiaries are shown separately in the Profit and Loss account as Allocation of Earnings. 

Receivables and liabilities between consolidated companies are eliminated. The valuation of assets resulting from deliveries of inter-

company goods and services is adjusted for unrealized inter-company profits or losses; such assets must therefore be measured at 

consolidated cost. On de minimis grounds, an elimination of inter-company profit and loss is waived with associated companies. 

Inter-company revenues are eliminated, as are all other inter-company income and expenses. Deferred taxes are recognized for 

consolidation adjustments to the extent that differences in tax expenses are expected to reverse in future periods. 

3. Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale, discontinued operations

The WaveLight Group has almost completed the restructuring resolved in the 2005/2006 fiscal year, with the aim of concentrating on 

its core competency of ophthalmology. The sale of the Aesthetics division was carried out on September 18, 2007. The task of the 

intraocular business division was completed with the sale of WaveLight GmbH and of MDP B.V. The necessary assets for the fulfil-

ment of the production agreement with WaveLight Aesthetic GmbH, the remaining purchase receivable and the allocated accruals 

are reported as discontinued operations. 

Operations that will remain part of the Group’s core competencies are designated “continuing operations”. 

III. Accounting policies 

The annual accounts of WaveLight AG and of the German and foreign companies are prepared in accordance with uniform 

accounting policies and included in the consolidated accounts. The following specific accounting policies have been applied: 

Currency conversion 

Foreign currency conversion is reported on the functional currency concept. The functional currency of the Group accords with the 

currency report.

Foreign currency transactions are converted into the functional currency with the exchange rate valid on the transaction date. On the 

balance sheet date, the conversion of monetary items is carried out within the procedure of subsequent valuation at the closing rate, 

whereas non-monetary items remain valued at the historical exchange rates that prevailed on the transaction date. Currency 

conversion differences are generally recognized as income or expense. 

The accounts of the foreign subsidiaries recognized in the consolidated accounts, whose functional currency is not the Euro, are 

converted from their own functional currency, namely the corresponding currency of their country, into the functional currency of the 

WaveLight Group, i.e. the Euro. Thus, the conversion of the assets and liabilities takes place at the period end exchange rate, while 
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the positions of the Profit and Loss account are converted at the average rate of exchange. Currency conversion differences are 

deferred directly in equity.

Currency differences from the consolidation are recognized in the Profit and Loss account with the exception of the differences from 

non-current net investments (net investment in a foreign operation). The latter are deferred directly in equity.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are generally converted at the closing rate. Currency conversion differences are 

generally recognized as income or expense in the period in which they arise.

Goodwill 

Within this credit item in the consolidated accounts, WaveLight AG reports both goodwill that has arisen from the capital consolida-

tion of subsidiaries and goodwill that was taken over from single accounts of the subsidiaries. 

Goodwill acquired for monetary consideration is capitalized and is subject to an impairment test under IAS 36 at least annually and 

whenever there is good reason to believe that the item could have depreciated in value. The impairment of the goodwill is tested in a 

single procedure at the level of the cash generating units, to which it has been allocated. 

The carrying amount of the cash generating unit is compared with its recoverable amount. If the carrying amount exceeds the 

recoverable amount, then an impairment loss exists and has to be depreciated on the recoverable amount. 

The recoverable amount of a cash generating unit corresponds to the higher of the fair value less costs to sell, on the one hand, and 

its value in use, on the other. 

A later reinstated write-down of the goodwill by reason of a former impairment loss that no longer exists is not permissible. 

 

Research and development expenses 

Research expenditures are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. In accordance with IAS 38, development 

expenditures are capitalized at cost if the criteria set out in IAS 38.57 are met. Cost in such cases includes all expenditures directly 

attributable to the development process, plus appropriate shares of development-related indirect costs. Capitalized development 

expenditure is normally amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected life of the products concerned, which may be between 

three and five years.

 

Period-end exchange rate as of July 31, 2008 1.5611

Average exchange rate from August 1, 2007 to July 31, 2008 1.4870

Period-end exchange rate as of July 31, 2007 1.3707

Average exchange rate from August 1, 2006 to July 31, 2007 1.3139

Foreign currency conversion exchange rates USD / €
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Other intangible assets 

Along with goodwill, other intangible assets exist with a definite useful life, particularly in the form of patents, licences and software. 

The expected useful life of software, patents and similar rights is normally three to five years. The useful lives of intangible assets 

bought in the context of an acquisition may differ on first consolidation. 

Interest on borrowings was not capitalized. Intangible assets with an indeterminate useful life are subject to an impairment test, at 

least once a year. If any intangible assets are impaired, a reversal of the write-down can only occur up to a maximum of the recover-

able amount, in the case of a higher recoverable amount at a later point. However, after a write-up, the carrying amount should not 

exceed the calculated carrying amount that had resulted when the impairment was not applied in the past. The write-up affects profit 

and loss. 

Separately acquired intangible assets are recognized at cost. Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognized at 

their fair value at the date of the business combination. Such assets are carried at amortized cost after initial recognition.

Property, plant, and equipment 

Items of property, plant, and equipment are carried at cost, less straight-line depreciation. The depreciation period is based on the 

useful life of the asset. 

Apart from material and production costs per item, manufacturing costs for self-constructed plant and equipment also contain an 

appropriate share of attributable material and production overheads and, if production takes place over a longer period, interest on 

borrowed capital during the construction period. Administrative costs are only capitalized if there is a direct relation to production. 

Maintenance and repair costs are recognized as expenditure insofar as they have not been capitalized in the application of the 

component approach.

Fixtures added by the tenant and leased plant and equipment are depreciated over the normal useful life assumed by the company 

or, if less, over the respective term of the rental or lease. 

Depreciation in the WaveLight Group is based on the following uniform useful lives:

Gains or losses on the disposal of assets are recognized in profit or loss. 

 
Fixtures added by the tenant 2  - 12 years

Technical equipment   5  -   8 years

Other equipment, operating and office equipment   3  - 10 years
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Leases 

The classification of leasing contracts conforms to IAS 17. Therefore, a distinction is made between finance leases and operating 

leases. A lease is classified as a finance lease when beneficial ownership, and thus substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership of the asset, is attributable to the lessee. Other lease agreements under which beneficial ownership of the leased asset 

remains with the lessor are classified as operating leases. 

To support their sales activities, companies of the WaveLight Group lease various WaveLight products to their customers under short 

term rentals and long-term leases. 

Under the terms of short-term rental agreements, laser systems are rented to physicians as demonstration systems for a period of up 

to 180 days against payment of a licence fee. Some of these agreements include purchase and/or renewal options, but these are not 

classified as bargain purchase options. Under these contractual arrangements, the substantial risks and rewards incidental to owner-

ship of the leased asset remain with the Group Company, which is why, from the lessor’s perspective, such lease transactions are 

classified as operating leases. In such cases, the leased assets are recognized as noncurrent assets at cost and depreciated. Rental 

income is allocated on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreement. 

Under the long term leases, various laser systems are sold to leasing companies. In a second step, the corresponding Group com-

panies lease back the leased assets and transfer them to their customers under a sublease (“sale, leaseback, and sublease”). The 

agreements are entered into for a period of three to four years; any purchase and/or renewal options in the agreements are not 

classified as bargain purchase options. 

If the risks and rewards from leaseback are borne by the Group Company, the leased assets are carried in that company’s noncurrent 

assets. This applies in particular in the case of binding repurchase obligations and residual value guarantees that are granted by the 

Group and issued to the leasing company. 

However, if substantially all the risks and rewards of such transactions are transferred to the leasing company, ownership of the asset 

passes to the third party. 

Such long term customer agreements are generally refinanced at matching maturities and recognized as liabilities. 

In addition to the categories of sales-related leases described above, companies belonging to the WaveLight Group also lease 

buildings, machinery, and operating and office equipment for their own use (procurement-related leases). Such leases are mainly 

classified as operating leases and have terms of between three and twelve years.

Impairment of assets 

Items of property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets (including goodwill) are tested for impairment if events or changes in 

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when the 

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less 

costs to sell and its value in use. Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length 

transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less selling costs. Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash 
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flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Cash flows are deter-

mined in accordance with IAS 36. The recoverable amount is determined separately for each asset or, if this is not possible, for the 

cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated. 

If the reason for previously performed impairments of items of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (excepting 

goodwill) no longer applies, impairment will be reversed to amortize acquisition and manufacturing costs. 

Financial assets 

In the absence of a market and if, as a result, the market value cannot be reliably determined, financial assets are recognized at 

amortized cost less value adjustment or impairment. 

Inventories 

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Raw materials, consumables, and supplies are measured at cost, 

including a percentage mark-up for transaction costs. 

Finished goods and work in progress are measured at cost. This includes direct costs plus an appropriate share of overheads. 

Appropriate valuation allowances are recognized to reflect potential losses owing to obsolete or slow-moving inventories. 

The net present value is the estimated fair value that can be obtained in an arm’s length transaction less the estimated cost until 

completion and required sales’ costs.

Receivables and other current assets 

Receivables and other current assets are carried at amortized cost. Valuation allowances are recognized for identifiable specific risks 

and the general credit risk. 

First recognition is at fair value. In future periods, the carrying amount corresponds to depreciated cost less value adjustments or 

impairments. 

In December 2007, the asset-backed security programme finished, in the context of which receivables from deliveries and services 

were sold to third parties. On the day of the termination of the contract, sold receivables of €8,251 thousand were repurchased by 

WaveLight AG in this context.

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances. They are recognized at depreciated cost. 

Cash and cash equivalents whose availability is restricted are presented for the first time in other current and other noncurrent assets 

according to their maturity. In the current financial year, €0 (previous year € 2,967 thousand) are included in short term and €0 

(previous year €0) in long term assets.
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Deferred taxes 

In accordance with the balance sheet liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in the amount at which assets 

are expected to be recovered or liabilities settled. 

Deferred taxes are recognized for all temporary differences between the tax base of an asset or liability and its carrying amount in the 

consolidated balance sheet. Deferred tax credits are recognized for loss carry forwards if it is probable that they will be available for 

use in future periods. Deferred taxes are recognized in the amount of the probable tax expense or benefit in future fiscal years on the 

basis of the tax rate enacted in the period in which they will be realized. Tax effects of dividend distributions are only recognized 

when the dividend has been resolved. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured on the basis of the tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in 

which these temporary differences are expected to reverse. If tax rates change, the effects on deferred tax assets and liabilities are 

recognized in profit or loss of the period to which the new tax rate applies.

Other provisions 

In accordance with IAS 37, provisions are recognized for present obligations to third parties arising from past events, the settlement 

of which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits, and which can be estimated reliably. 

Provisions that will not lead to an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in the subsequent fiscal year are carried at the 

settlement amount discounted to the balance sheet date. Discounting uses market rates of interest. The settlement amount also 

reflects expected future cost increases. Claims for reimbursement are not deducted from the carrying amount of provisions.

Provisions for warranty expenditures are recognized as soon as the revenues in question have been recognized. The carrying amount 

of the provision is measured on the basis of the entity’s experience of the estimated costs needed to settle the warranty obligation, 

including handling and transportation costs. 

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include interest bearing liabilities of a financial nature, particularly loans from banks or other loan providers, 

finance lease liabilities as well as other interest bearing liabilities. They are recognized at present value if they bear no or little 

interest. They are further valued at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

Trade account receivables, other receivables

Trade account receivables as well as other receivables are recognized at the redemption amount. Long term receivables bearing no or 

little interest are discounted and recognized at present value. Liabilities are first recognized at the time when the obligation arises. 

Share-based payment 

Accounting for employee equity compensation models is governed by IFRS 2 (Share-based Payment). IFRS 2 is effective for reporting 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2005. Under IFRS 2, equity instruments granted under the terms of share-based payment 
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plans are measured at fair value at the grant date by reference to an option pricing model. The resulting amount is recognized as an 

expense over the vesting period.

In the course of the majority takeover of Alcon, Inc, WaveLight AG has come to an agreement with the majority of its employees 

regarding the renouncement of share option plans from share options granted in the past. The corresponding agreements contained 

cash compensations to the sum of €9 per option. Alcon, Inc. has confirmed the transfer costs resulting from the end of the share 

option plans. 

No new stock options were granted in this financial year. 

Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing profit for the period by the weighted average number of shares outstanding. 

Diluted earnings per share are computed using the treasury stock method and include the number of stock options outstanding.

Derivatives 

WaveLight AG uses forward exchange contracts to hedge foreign currency risks from receivables or liabilities. These financial 

instruments are not employed for speculative purposes. 

The Company had entered into forward exchange contracts as of July 31, 2007 to hedge foreign currency risks from trade receiv-

ables. Changes in the value of these forward exchange contracts are recognized immediately in profit or loss. 

Interest rate swaps and interest rate caps were entered into in both the reporting period and previous years in order to manage the 

interest rate risk from short-term interest-bearing liabilities to banks. All changes in value of these interest rate swaps and interest 

rate caps are immediately recognized in profit or loss. 

Fair value of financial instruments 

Where financial instruments are recognized at fair value, this is estimated by reference to quoted market prices. In the absence of 

such market prices, fair value is estimated by applying recognized financial techniques and market parameters at the balance sheet 

date. 

 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs for the acquisition or production of qualifying assets are capitalized in accordance with IAS 23.20. 

Revenue recognition 

Revenue primarily stems from product deliveries and secondarily from services. Revenues are reported net of value added tax and less 

sales deductions such as bonuses, discounts or rebates at the time that they are regarded as realisable under IFRS. This is generally 
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the case if the main risks and rewards connected with the ownership of the sold goods and products have passed to the buyer, if the 

entity does not retain effective control of the sold goods and products, if there is unambiguous evidence that delivery has taken place 

or services were performed, if the price has been firmly agreed or if it can be determined unambiguously, if actual payment is 

reasonably secure and if the costs incurred or costs still to be incurred in relation to the sale can be reliably determined. 

Use of estimates 

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires management to make estimates and assump-

tions that could affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 

the balance sheet date, as well as the reported amounts of income and expenses during the reporting period. Such estimates and 

assumptions are based on assumptions that are in turn based on management’s current knowledge. Actual results could differ from 

these estimates and assumptions. 

Group consolidated cash flow statement 

The consolidated cash flow statement shows changes in the balance sheet entry “cash and cash equivalents“, from operating 

activities, investment activities and financing activities. 

Cash flow from operating activities is determined indirectly based on changes in the balance sheet entries. These are adjusted for 

exchange rate effects and changes due to consolidation. As a result, a reconciliation of the changes of balance sheet entries from the 

group consolidated cash flow statement with the computed changes from the consolidated balance sheet, asset overview or other 

disclosures is only possible within limits. 

 

Sector reporting 

Sector reporting is compiled in accordance with IAS 14 “Sector reporting”. Sector classification at the WaveLight Group is determined 

according to Business areas (ophthalmology and other sectors) and according to regions. Sector results are shown as earnings before 

interest and taxes (EBIT). 

Changes in interpretations of IFRS standards 

First application of standards and interpretations 

The new IFRS 7 (“Financial Instruments: Disclosures”), published by the IASB in August 2005, requires information about the 

significance of financial instruments for the entity‘s assets, financial and profit position and also contains new requirements regarding 

qualitative and quantitative reporting of the risks relating to financial instruments. The European Union recognized this standard in 

January 2006 and it is compulsory to apply it in financial years starting on or after January 1, 2007. The WaveLight Group has 

extended its disclosures about financial instrument risk as a result of IFRS 7, for example by sensitivity analyses on currency and 

interest. 

The amendment to IAS 1 (“Presentation of Financial Statements: Capital Disclosures”) published by the IASB in August 2005 was 

recognized by the European Union in January 2006. This amendment stipulates additional information that allows the final recipients 
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to evaluate the aims, methods and processes of capital management. The amendments to IAS 1 must be applied in financial years 

starting on or after January 1, 2007. Initial application has led to enhanced information in the notes added to the accounts of the 

WaveLight Group. 

IFRIC 10 was previously used by the WaveLight Group and there are no further effects on the accounts of the WaveLight Group. 

Standards or interpretations that have been recognized by the EU but that have yet to be applied

Under IFRS 8 (“Operating Sectors”), sector reporting is changed from the so-called “risk and reward approach“ to the “management 

approach“ in relation to sector identification under IAS 14. Information that the so-called “chief operating decision maker“ receives 

regularly for decision making is material in this respect. At the same time, sector evaluation switches from the “financial accounting 

approach” of IAS 14 to the “management approach”. IFRS 8 was published in November 2006 and recognized by the European 

Union in November 2007. The standard must be applied in financial years starting on or after January 1, 2009. Earlier applica-tion is 

permissible. On initial application, IFRS 8 will lead to changed information in sector reporting for the WaveLight Group. 

IFRIC 11 (“IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions“) deals with the questions of how company-wide share-based payment is 

to be recognized on the balance sheet, what would be the effects of staff changes in the group and how to treat share-based 

payment for which the entity issues new shares or acquires third-party shares. IFRIC 11 was published in November 2006 and 

recognized by the European Union in June 2007. The interpretation must be applied in financial years starting on or after March 1, 

2007. Earlier application is advised. We do not expect IFRIC 11 to have an effect on future results of the WaveLight Group. 

Standards or interpretations whose recognition by the EU is still pending and have yet to be applied 

IFRIC 14 (“IAS 19 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction”) suggests how to 

determine the limit of a surplus under IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” that can be used as a defined benefit asset. It also explains the 

effects on the valuation of assets and provisions from defined benefit pension plans of a legal obligation of a minimum payment 

amount, for example by law or due to plan regulations. IFRIC 14 was published by the IASB in July 2007 and must be applied in 

financial years starting on or after January 1, 2008. Recognition by the European Union is still pending, however. IFRIC 14 will not 

have a material effect on the results of the WaveLight Group. 

In September 2007, the IASB published a revised version of IAS 1 (“Presentation of Financial Statements: A revised Presentation“), 

which makes it easier for users to analyse and compare accounts. Among other things, all changes in equity relating to the 

shareholders are to be presented in a single “statement of comprehensive income” or in two separate reporting components with a 

profit and loss statement that was previously separate from the “statement of comprehensive income”. For the single components of 

the “other comprehensive income”, the corresponding profit tax effect must be shown. The new version of IAS 1 must be applied in 

financial years starting on or after January 1, 2009. Recognition by the European Union is still pending, however. The presentation of 

changes in equity of the WaveLight Group will be adjusted in accordance with the requirements of IAS 1. 

By publishing the revised version of IFRS 3 (“Business Combinations“) and the amendments of IAS 27 (“Consolidated and Separate 

Financial Statements“) in January 2008, the IASB ends the second phase of its project, “Business Combinations“. Among others,  

the main changes relate to the balance sheet representation of minority interests as well as the initial recognition in profit or loss of 

previously existing shares in gradual acquisitions at the time of gaining control. Changes in shareholding quota without loss of con-
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trol are to be accounted for exclusively as transactions of shares. Ancillary acquisition costs are to be recognized as expenditure in the 

future. In future valuations, goodwill must no longer be adjusted for possible provisions for acquisition costs dependent on future 

events that are recognized as liabilities at the time of acquisition. The new version of IFRS 3 must be prospectively applied to business 

combinations starting on or after July 1, 2009. Earlier application is permissible. However, it is limited to reporting periods starting on 

or after June 30, 2007. The amendments to IAS 27 must be applied to financial years starting on or after July 1, 2009, even though 

earlier application is permissible. Early application of one of the standards must, however, occur alongside early application of the 

other corresponding standard. Recognition by the European Union is still pending, however. The WaveLight Group expects additional 

expenditure owing to the fact that ancillary acquisition costs are recognized as an expense the amount of which depends, among 

other things, on the size of the acquisitions made. The effects of recognizing, in profit or loss acquisition, adjustments to the cost of 

purchase, dependent on future events and recognized as liabilities at the acquisition date, depend on the particular case. 

In January 2008, the IASB published the amendment of IFRS 2 (“Share-based Payment: Vesting Conditions and Cancellations“).  

The amendment clarifies that vesting conditions are service conditions and performance conditions only. As a result of the amended 

definition of vesting conditions, non-vesting conditions must now be included in the grant date fair value of the share-based 

payment. The amendments must be applied in financial years starting on or after January 1, 2009. Early application is permissible as 

long as this is declared. Recognition by the European Union is still pending, however. This will not result in a material effect on the 

profit position of the WaveLight Group. 

In February 2008, the IASB published a document with the title “Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liqui-

dation”, amendments of IAS 32 (“Financial Instruments: Presentation”) and IAS 1 (“Presentation of Financial Statements”). The 

changes primarily relate to the differentiation between equity capital and borrowed capital. In particular, in the context of the new 

version, it is now possible to classify callable instruments as equity capital under particular conditions. The amendments must be 

applied in financial years starting on or after January 1, 2009. Earlier application is permissible. Recognition by the European Union is 

still pending, however. This regulation has no effect on the WaveLight Group. 

Apart from drafts of standards, interpretations and amendments, the IASB or IFRIC published the following statements: 

FRIC 12 (“Service Concession Arrangements”) deals with accounting for infrastructure services by private companies and was 

published in November 2006.

IFRIC 13 (“Customer Loyalty Programmes“), which the IASB published in June 2007, deals with the balance sheet recognition and 

valuation of customer loyalty programmes. 

The IASB published the amendment to IAS 23 (“Borrowing Costs“) in March 2007 and deals with the capitalization of borrowing 

costs. 

These regulations are not relevant to the WaveLight Group at the moment and are therefore not explained in more detail at this 

point. 
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1. Noncurrent and current assets

(1) Intangible assets

Intangible assets changed as follows in fiscal year 2007/2008:

Of the development expenditures incurred in the 2007/2008 fiscal year, €2,381 thousand (previous year: €2,417 thousand) met the 

IFRS capitalization criteria. Capitalized development expenditures relate primarily to expenses for software development and the 

development of prototypes, as well as to upgrades and functional enhancements of the product families. They are amortized over a 

period of three to five years. 

Development expenditure for future series products and other internally generated intangible assets are capitalized at cost if the 

production of these products is expected to generate future economic benefits for the WaveLight Group. These products are 

amortized according to schedule over a period of three to five years. 

Consolidated Balance Sheet Disclosures

 
Carrying amounts  
at August 1, 2007 12,�67 2,�17 8,06� 6,201 29,2�9
Additions 769 2,381 - - 3,150
Disposals (760) - - - (760)
Adjustment consolidation group (63) - - (3,343) (3,406)
Rebooking or reclassifications  
in assets relating to discontinued  
operations (644) (2,417) 2,417 - (644)
 
Gross carrying amounts 
at July 31, 2008 11,869 2,381 10,�81 2,8�8 27,�89
Amortization and impairment losses 
at August 1, 2007 (5,050) - (4,016) - (9,066)
Depreciation and impairment losses 
for 2007/2008 (1,605) - (1,936) (787) (4,328)
Disposals 708 - - - 708
Adjustment consolidation group 29 - - - 29
 
Amortization and impairment losses 
at July 31, 2008 (�,918) - (�,9�2) (787) (12,6�7)
 
Net carrying amount 
at July 31, 2008 �,9�1 2,381 �,�29 2,071 1�,932
 
Net carrying amount 
at July 31, 2007 7,517 2,417 4,048 6,201 20,183

  

Capitalized 
development 
expenditures  

for development 
phase

Capitalized 
expenditures  
for products  

currently in use
Purchased 

goodwill Total

Concessions, industrial 
development and similar 

rights and assets  
and licenses in  

such rights and assets

Amounts in € thousands
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Additional changes relating to the subsidiaries of WaveLight AG are to be expected in connection with the reorientation of the world 

wide distribution structures. It is intended to transfer the supervision of the Spanish market to the subsidiary of Alcon, Inc. based in 

Spain and to sell the holdings in the WaveLight S.A. The expected permanent diminution of the holdings in the WaveLight S.A. was 

taken into account through depreciation equivalent to the goodwill (€ 787 thousand). 

Intangible assets of the Aesthetics division to the extent of € 644 thousand were reclassified in the fiscal year under Assets in 

connection with the disposed operations. 

As of July 31, 2007, WaveLight GmbH was presented under continuing operations. The assets disposed of with the deconsolidation 

of WaveLight GmbH are accounted for under Changes in the Consolidated Group. 

(2) Property, plant, and equipment 

Property, plant, and equipment changed as follows in fiscal year 2007/2008:

Property, plant and equipment are valued at acquisition or manufacturing cost and are reduced by scheduled depreciation. The 

depreciation period is determined by the expected useful life of the assets. The straight-line method of depreciation is applied as in 

the previous year. 

 
Gross amount at August 1, 2007  1,642 10,221 - 11,863
Additions  477 1,940 139 2,556
Disposals  (26) (1,108) - (1,134)
Adjustment consolidation group  - (433) - (433)
Rebooking or reclassifications  
in assets relating to discontinued  
operations  (349) (738) - (1,087)
 
Gross carrying amounts at July 31, 2008  1,7�� 9,882 139 11,76�
 
Depreciation and impairment losses at August 1, 2007  (1,135) (6,614) - (7,749)
Depreciation 2007/2008  (115) (969) - (1,084)
Disposals  24 568 - 592
Adjustment consolidation group  - 274 - 274
Rebooking or reclassifications  
in assets relating to discontinued  
operations  107 703 - 810
 
Depreciation and impairment losses at July 31, 2008 (1,119) (6,038) - (7,1�7)
 
Net carrying amount at July 31, 2008  62� 3,8�� 139 �,608
 
Net carrying amount at July 31, 2007  508 3,607 - 4,115

  
Technical plants 

and machines

Other equipment, 
operating and  

office equipment

Deposits paid 
and plant under 

construction Total

Amounts in € thousands



 89 89

Property, plant, and equipment includes laser devices with a carrying amount of €2,703 thousand (previous year: €2,179 thousand) 

that are required on a permanent basis for research and demonstration purposes at WaveLight AG for key physicians and institutions 

performing clinical trials. The corresponding depreciation charges are allocated to research and development expenses. 

Fixed assets of the Aesthetics division to the extent of €277 thousand were reclassified in the fiscal year under Assets in connection 

with the disposed operations. Interest on borrowings is capitalized at €30 thousand (previous year: €30 thousand) under fixed assets. 

Low-cost assets with an individual purchase price of up to €410 net are depreciated fully in the year of acquisition, 2007 and shown 

as disposals. Against the background of the Company tax reform, from the 2008 calendar year, property, plant and equipment assets 

were fully depreciated immediately with an individual purchase price of up to €150 net and recognized as expenses. Property, plant 

and equipment assets with individual purchase prices of more than €150 net and less than €1 thousand net are collected in a “pool“ 

and amortized to schedule over five years in accordance with German commercial law. 

In the income statement, amortization of intangible assets and depreciation of property, plant, and equipment are allocated to the 

appropriate functions. As of July 31, 2007, WaveLight GmbH was presented under continuing operations. The assets disposed of 

with the deconsolidation of WaveLight GmbH are accounted for under changes in the Consolidated Group. 

In February 2008, within the restructuring of the US sales, WaveLight, Inc, has sold its entire fixed assets to Alcon Laboratories, Inc. 

at carrying amount values. Transfers took place of intangible assets to the extent of €35 thousand and of fixed assets amounting to 

€433 thousand. 

(3) Non-current financial assets 

Non-current financial assets changed as follows:

  
Gross carrying amounts at August 1, 2007  96 23 938 1,057
Additions  - - - -
Disposals  - (23) (938) (961)
 
Gross carrying amounts at July 31, 2008  96 - - 96
 
Impairment losses at August 1, 2007  - (23) (206) (229)
Impairment losses for 2007/2008  (96) - - (96)
Disposals  - 23 206 229
 
Impairment losses at July 31, 2008  (96) - - (96)
 
Net carrying amounts at July 31, 2008  - - - -
 
Net carrying amounts at July 31, 2007  96 - 732 828

Investments 
in affiliated 
companies

Loans to  
investments Total

Amounts in € thousands Changements in 
Investments using  
the equity method
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Investments in unconsolidated companies and investees are generally carried at cost. The carrying amounts are tested for impairment 

if there are indications of it, and an impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount is impaired. 

The holdings in WaveLight Japan Co., Ltd., Tokyo, Japan and in WaveLight Asia Pacific Sdn Bhd, Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia were 

adjusted in value to the full amount (€96 thousand). Both companies are in the process of liquidation. 

(�) Inventories 

Inventories are classified into:

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Inventories of raw materials, consumables, and supplies are recognized at purchase prices, including a percentage mark-up for 

transaction costs. 

Finished goods and work in progress are measured at cost using the unit cost method. In addition to directly attributable material 

costs and direct labour, cost also includes proportionate indirect production and labour costs, as well as proportionate production-

related administrative expenses. 

Due to insufficient movement rate, turnover frequency and lack of marketability, valuation adjustments were made totalling €951 

thousand (previous year €261 thousand). These arise from changes in the product portfolio, the adjustment of excess inventories,  

the lower turnover of individual components, and obsolete or slow-moving inventories. 

(�) Trade receivables 

Trade receivables:

Receivables and other current assets are carried at their principal amounts. 

   
Raw materials, consumables and supplies 4,275 3,932
Unfinished goods 368 362
Finished goods and merchandise 2,001 3,497
Advances paid 32 97
 
Total inventories 6,676 7,888

Amounts in € thousands  2007/2008 2006/2007 

 
Trade receivables 14,311 2,653 16,964 16,195 4,321 20,516  

  Carrying
amount at

July 31, 2008
Due within

1 year

Due after 
more than

 1 year

Carrying
amount at

July 31, 2007
Due within

1 year

Due after 
more than

 1 year
Amounts in € thousands
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Under an Asset-Backed Security programme (ABS Programme), revolving trade receivables have been sold to a financial services 

provider since October 2004. In December 2007, the ABS Programme was terminated by mutual agreement of the parties. In this 

connection, the receivables originally sold were retransferred in the sum of €8,251 thousand. 

All receivables exposed to risks are accounted for by recognizing appropriate valuation allowances. The expense was recognized 

under other operating expenses. The valuation adjustments amount to €1,161 thousand (previous year €668 thousand). Trade 

receivables with long credit terms are discounted at a rate of 5.5% (previous year 4.4 to 4,6%). 

Trade receivables from affiliated companies 

Trade receivables amounting to €5,679 thousands, derive exclusively from companies of the Alcon Group. 

(6) Non-current and current assets

Receivables are the main item under other tax receivables. Receivables from affiliated companies contain receivables from Alcon, Inc., 

that arise from the take-over of the expenses from the termination of the share option programme. 

 
Other assets 
 
Other taxes receivables  686 - 686 823 - 823
Positive fair values or  
devirative financial instruments 5 - 5 105 80 185
Prepayments and accured income 528 - 528 1,409 - 1,409
Other receivables from  
associated companies 941 873 1,814 - - -
Remaining assets 783 - 783 3,039 - 3,039

Total  2,9�3 873 3,816 �,376 80 �,��6

  Carrying 
amount at

July 31, 2008
Due within

1 year

Due after 
more than

1 year

Carrying 
amount at

July 31, 2007
Due within

1 year

Due after 
more than

1 year

Amounts in € thousands

 

Trade receivables from associated companies 5,679 - 5,679 - - -

Amounts in € thousands Carrying 
amount at

July 31, 2008
Due within

1 year

Due after 
more than

1 year

Carrying 
amount at

July 31, 2007
Due within

1 year

Due after 
more than

1 year
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(7) Cash and cash equivalents 

Bank balances at the reporting date amounted to €4,401 thousand (previous year €1,247) and a cash balance of €15 thousand 

(previous year €16 thousand). Of these amounts, €586 thousand (previous year: €773 thousand) relates to foreign currency.

 

(8) Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale 

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale relate primarily to the following amounts: 

At the balance sheet date of July 31, 2008, the only items presented were assets attributable to the Aesthetics Division. These are 

valued on the expected proceeds of sale, taking into account the current production agreement. The second purchase price 

amounting to €1,600 thousand, is reported under Other Assets. 

(9) Deferred Taxes 

Positive and negative deferred taxes are reported in accordance with IAS12 “Income Taxes“, if future tax effects are to be expected, 

which on the one hand are due to differences limited in period between the carrying amounts of the existing credit and debit and 

their tax base values or on the other hand due to deficits carried forward. 

Regarding the balance sheet approach of deferred taxes, we refer to position (26) of the notes.

 
Intangible assets  155 590
Property, plant, and equipment 18 600
Inventories 404 2,055
Trade receivables 953 1,669
Other assets 1,600 194
Deferred taxes - 181
Cash and cash equivalents - 128
 
Assets in connection with the disposed operations 3,130 �,�17

Amounts in € thousands 2007/2008 2006/2007
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2. Equity

(10) Subscribed capital 

The subscribed capital is divided into 6,586,026 bearer shares. All shares are made out in the name of the bearer. 

The authorised capital amounts to €3,008,102 and the contingent capital to €627,878 corresponding in each case to the values of 

the previous year. 

On April 15, 2008, 9,000 option rights were exercised. As of July 31, 2008, there remained share options totalling 53,000, which 

may be exercised up to December 31, 2010 subject to the option conditions. The subscribed capital of the Company as of July 31, 

2008 was €6,586,026 (previous year: €6,577,026) after the capital increase had taken place.

 

Development of the subscribed capital in the 2007/2008 fiscal year

In the course of the majority takeover of Alcon, Inc, the WaveLight AG has come to an agreement with the majority of its employees 

regarding the renouncement of share option plans from share options granted in the past. The corresponding agreements contained 

cash compensations to the amount of € 9 per option. Alcon, Inc. has confirmed the transfer costs resulting from the end of the share 

option plans. 

No new stock options were granted in this financial year.

Capital reserve 

The capital reserve on July 31, 2008, amounted to €48,018 thousand (previous year €49,188 thousand). The change results from the 

capital increase that took place in April totalling €107 thousand and the effect of the termination of the existing share option pro-

gramme. 

The capital reserves contain the various premiums from the individual capital increases including their transaction costs, since the  

IPO in September 1999. 

Other reserves consist of all changes in equity not recognized in the income statement. A breakdown is given in the statement of 

changes in share holding.

  
as of: July 31, 2007 -  6,�77,026
 
Increase from contingent capital III  
of the 2004 share option programme April 15, 2008 9,000 -
 
as of: July 31, 2008 - 6,�86,026

Changes
Subscribed 

capital
Development of the subscribed capital 
Amounts in €
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(11) Minority interest 

This item contains the minority interest in equity, including the share of profits attributable to these minority interests.

3. Non-current and current liabilities

(12) Financial liabilities

In the course of the reorientation of the company financing through the majority shareholder, Alcon, Inc., Hünenberg, Switzerland, 

all existing short and long-term liabilities to banks were paid off so that currently, the business relationship with banks is carried out 

on basis of credit. The existing securities due to the liabilities to banks were released in the course of the repayment of the same. 

In December 2007, WaveLight AG agreed a total loan of €50 million with Alcon Inc. to repay liabilities to banks, among other things, 

which was taken initially taken by the Company to the extent of €40 million. During the fiscal year, amortizations amounting to 

€5,817 thousand were made by WaveLight AG. 

With the prolongation of the period of the loan agreement in August 2008 up to November 30, 2009, an optional conversion of the 

loan in US Dollars up to a maximum of $30 million was agreed. 

The interest of the loan takes place under conditions in line with the market and follows the 3-months Euribor and 3-months Libor 

plus a mark-up. 

  
Financial liabilities 34,546 116 - 34,662 28,227 461 - 28,688
to banks 363 116 - 479 28,227 461 - 28,688
to affiliated companies 34,183 - - 34,183 - - - -

  

Due after
more than

1 year

Carrying
amount at

July 31, 2007
Due within

1 year

Due after
more than

5 years

Carrying
amount at

July 31, 2008
Due within

1 year

Due after
more than

1 year

Due after
more than

5 years

Amounts in € thousands
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(13) Non-current and current liabilities 

The other liabilities include all debts that are determined according to time and amount. The amount of €5,310 thousand accounted 

for under provisions in the previous year was reclassified accordingly. 

Tax liabilities of €652 thousand (previous year: €84 thousand) were included in the other short-term liabilities. Tax liabilities of €206 

thousand are based on risks from the findings of the tax audit of WaveLight AG for the years 2001 to 2004, which are the subject of 

ongoing opposition proceedings.

The liabilities from interest for € 218 thousand concern deferred interest to Alcon, Inc.

  
Liabilities  
Trade receivables 2,995 - 2,995 7,444 - 7,444
from affiliated companies  532 - 532 - - -
from advance payments 26 - 26 2,189 - 2,189
 
Other liabilities
ABS liabilities - - - 1,534 - 1,534
Negative fair values of derivatives 271 - 271 7 2.025 2,032
from leasing agreements 92 - 92 153 126 279
Deferred income 735 288 1,023 938 189 1,127
from share option programme  941 873 1,814 - - -
from outstanding invoices 814 - 814 265 - 265
from the restructuring of the company financing 392 - 392 380 - 380
from acquisition costs 153 - 153 70 - 70
from interest 218 - 218 143 - 143
from consultancy services 634 - 634 348 - 348
from bonuses 270 - 270 - - -
from taxes 652 - 652 84 - 84
from sales commissions 953 - 953 1,302 - 1,302
from personnel costs 1,644 - 1,644 1,917 - 1,917
of which, for social security 10 - 10 14 - 14
of which, for wages and salaries 362 - 362 247 - 247
Other liabilities  1,472 - 1,472 1,987 - 1,987
 
Total  12,79� 1,161 13,9�� 18,761 2,3�0 21,101

Amounts in € thousands  
Due after

1 year

Carrying
amount at

July 31, 2007
Due within

1 year

Carrying
amount at

July 31, 2008
Due within

1 year
Due after

1 year
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(1�) Provisions

The reserves take into account all other debts that are not determined according to time and amount. These were accumulated 

especially for warranty claims, licence payments and discontinuation costs. Debts of €5,310 thousand are presented in hundreds 

under Other Liabilities unlike the previous year. 

The provisions described above are expected to be utilized primarily within the next 12 months. 

(1�) Liabilities included in disposal groups held for sale 

Liabilities included in disposal groups held for sale relate primarily to the following amounts:

Legal risks and disputes

As a business that operates globally, WaveLight is regularly exposed to legal risks. It is not possible to predict the outcomes of 

current or future litigation with any certainty. The possibility that expenses may be incurred that are not covered by corresponding 

insurance policies cannot be ruled out. The Executive Board does not believe that the potential risk from currently pending legal 

proceedings will materially affect the Company’s net assets, financial position, and profit position. 

  
As of August 1, 2006   3�7
 
Additions/new provisions   425
  
As of July 31, 2007   782
 
Utilization   (422)
Additions/new provisions   878
Reversals   (213)
  
As of July 31, 2008   1,02�

Amounts in € thousands Accruals

  
Accruals 619 519
Liabilities from deliveries and services - 244
Other liabilities - 69
Liabilities included in discontinued groups held for sale  619 832 

Amounts in € thousands 2007/2008 2006/2007 
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In connection with Alcon, Inc‘s takeover of WaveLight AG, individual shareholders‘ claims against resolutions passed by the Extra-

ordinary General Meeting of May 7, 2008 are pending. In the financial year, expected procedural costs of € 300 thousand were 

included. 

VI. Contingencies and other financial commitments

1. Contingencies

Guarantees and securities of a total of € 708 thousand (previous year €1,120 thousand) were recorded for existing leasing contracts. 

These consist of securities for leasing contracts belonging to the Spanish subsidiary, WaveLight S.A., amounting to € 478 thousand  

(previous year € 859 thousand) and to the American subsidiary, WaveLight, Inc., amounting to € 230 thousand (previous year € 261 

thousand). 

The contract of sale for NWL Laser-Technologie GmbH, Ottensoos, contains guarantee acceptances, also relating to taxation, which 

according to present knowledge do not have an effect on net income. 

2. Other financial commitments

The Group has entered into various rental agreements and leases for buildings and motor vehicles, as well as other agreements. The 

Group’s obligations resulting from these agreements are shown below:

3. Leases 

Deemed depreciation for finance leases in the reporting period are included in depreciation expenditure and amounts to €144 

thousand (previous year €193 thousand). 

In previous years, WaveLight made sale-and-lease-back agreements as operating leases for its lasers.

  
Rent 1,249 3,845 858 5,952
Operating leases 1,480 674 - 2,154
 
Finance leases
future minimum lease payments 74 120 - 194
   of which interest costs 11 27 - 38
   present value of lease payments 63 93 - 156
 
Total rental and leasing payments 2,803 �,639 8�8 8,300

  

from 2013/2014 Total
Amounts in € thousands

2008/2009
2009/2010 to 

2012/2013

 Additional disclosures on finance leases (WaveLight as lessee):
Net carrying amount of leased assets at the balance sheet date   €100 thousand
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The laser systems in question are used within the Company as demonstration, training, and development devices, but are also leased 

to end customers to a small extent. For this, WaveLight has specifically obtained the right to sublease the systems to customers from 

the external leasing companies.

Disclosures on financial instruments

Risk management

The WaveLight Group faces different risks owing to its use of financial instruments that might negatively affect the group‘s net 

assets, financial power and profitability. 

These risks can be separated into credit risks, liquidity risks and market price risk. 

The group‘s risk management ensures that risks are identified in a timely manner and counter measures can be taken. The risk 

management system is made up of two levels, central risk management and the decentralised risk officers in all departments. The 

task of the reporting and control of the risk management process are taken on by the central risk management unit. The investigation 

of risks, their assessment and monitoring as well as their minimisation by corresponding measures is the duty of the respective risk 

responsibility personnel. 

 Additional disclosures on operating leases (WaveLight as lessee):
Payments under leases expensed in the period   € 1,843 thousand

   Financial leasing (WaveLight as lessor) 
Gross investment in the lease 
= Future inflows from finance leases  74 120

Cash value outstanding lease payments  63 93
Unrealized financial income  11 27
 
Operating-Leasing (WaveLight as lessor)
Future lease payments  51 39
Lease payments recognized as income in the fiscal year  140 -

Amounts in € thousands  Within 1 year In 1 to 5 years
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Risks from financial instruments and strategies to hedge for these risks 

1. Credit risks 

In connection with financial assets, credit risks occur whenever a contractual party does not meet its obligations in a financial 

instrument transaction or if it does not meet these for the given deadlines. Credit risk can at most amount to the financial instru-

ment‘s positive fair value. 

Accounts receivables result from the different subsidiaries‘ sales activities from operations. The Group manages credit risk according 

to the guidelines of internal risk management with the help of internal credit guidelines, prepayments, export insurance, letters of 

credit, guarantees and securities. 

Furthermore, the WaveLight Group manages credit risk by recognizing value adjustments for bad debt losses. A concentration of 

credit risks relating to trade receivables is limited owing to the WaveLight Group‘s global activities and the large number of 

customers. 

Owing to WaveLight AG‘s increased use of the Alcon Group‘s global commercial strength, WaveLight AG is becoming more depen-

dent on the Alcon Group. According to current plans, the share of sales by the Alcon Group will increase the total turnover of 

WaveLight AG by more than 70% during the next few years. WaveLight considers the financial strength of the Alcon Group to be 

sound. Bank accounts are exclusively opened with banks that can demonstrate first-rate creditworthiness. WaveLight also chooses 

only banks with first-rate creditworthiness for derivative instruments. 

The maximum default risk (credit risk) consists of the entire loss of the financial instruments‘ positive carrying amount values. In this 

context, the company assumes that the recorded carrying amounts basically correspond to the fair values of the financial instruments. 

The maturity structure at the balance sheet date of accounts receivables that are not value-adjusted and not overdue can be found in 

the table below, which is structured according to the different maturity ranges.

  
Trade receivables 22,534 9,069 3,087 1,233 8,165

 Amounts in € thousands   Payable in Payable in Payable in Payable in 
  as per less than 30 to 90 60 to 90 more than 
  July 31, 2008 30 days days days 90 days

  
Trade receivables 24,854 7,175 2,288 978 9,451

 Amounts in € thousands  Payable in Payable in Payable in Payable in 
  as per less than 30 to 90 60 to 90 more than 
  July 31, 2007 30 days days days 90 days
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The aged analysis of overdue trade receivables that are not value adjusted can be summarized as follows for the balance sheet date:

In terms of the not value-adjusted assets, there are no reasons at the balance sheet date for assuming a possible payment delay by 

the debtors.

2. Liquidity risks 

Liquidity risk basically describes the risk that the companies of the WaveLight Group might have insufficient financial means or might 

not be able to obtain these under the expected conditions in order to meet their payment obligations in connection with financial 

instruments. Such payment obligations consist of interest and amortization payments. In particular, liquidity risk is covered the 

WaveLight AG‘s involvement with the Alcon Group. The Alcon Group currently provides the WaveLight AG with a maximum credit 

limit of €50 million of which €34 million were being used at the balance sheet date. 

The contractually agreed due dates of the financial obligations or those based on experience can be found in the table below which is 

structured according to the different maturity ranges:

  
Trade receivables 3,818 346 772 248 2,452

 Amounts in € thousands   overdue since overdue since overdue since overdue since 
  overdue as per less than 30 to 90 60 to 90 more than 
  July 31, 2008 30 days days days 90 days

  
Trade receivables 7,067 2,871 801 709 2,686

 Amounts in € thousands  overdue since overdue since overdue since overdue since 
  overdue as per less than 30 to 90 60 to 90 more than 
  July 31, 2007 30 days days days 90 days

 
Original financial liabilities 
Long term financial liabilities 116 - 116 - - -
Other long term liabilities 1,161 - 1,082 71 8 -
Short term financial liabilities 34,546 34,546 - - - - 
Trade payables 3,527 3,527 - - - -
Other short term liabilities 9,241 9,241 - - - -
Liabilities from discontinued  
business divisions 619 619 - - - -

Derivative financial liabilites and assets 
Outpayments from derivate financial instruments 
- Interest rate derivates 271 123 57 - - -
- Foreign currency derivates - - - - - -

 Amounts in € thousands  Carrying amount Due dates 
  July 31, 2008 2008  2009 2010 2011 Later
   (Short fiscal year)
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Future outflows of funds are covered by inflows from operations. Particular seasonal and single-amount peaks for finance require-

ments are sufficiently covered by the available liquidity as well as the coordination or short and long-term credit limits. 

In terms of the market liquidity or derivatives, there is a risk that these can only be liquidized or settled with losses. In the financial 

year, market liquidity risk was counteracted by settling most derivates with complex structures.

3. Market price risks 

The WaveLight Group faces market price risks in the shape of interest rate risks as well as in the shape of exchange rate risks 

because of its international approach. Continuous observation of key economic factors and pertinent market information is used to 

appraise and estimate the risks. 

The group specifically hedges against currency and interest rate risk. 

The group established a centrally organized risk management system to systematically record and evaluate these risks. 

Currency risk: 

Currency risks occur if the value of amounts held in a foreign currency changes owing to exchange rate fluctuations. 

The WaveLight Group‘s exchange rate risk basically relates to sales and primarily relates to the US dollar and the Euro. Transaction 

risk which occurs as sales proceeds are received in a foreign currency and related costs are due in Euros can particularly affect the 

group‘s results and liquidity. 

The identification of currency risk is performed with the help of a rolling forecast of outflows and inflows in foreign currencies 

adjusted at regular intervals. 

The dollar rate development had a negative influence on the results in the closed fiscal year. Through appropriate hedging measures, 

WaveLight AG seeks to counteract this trend. However, it will not be possible to mitigate this effect entirely. 

As a consequence of the change-over of the calculation of turnover for the US market in Euros, through corresponding agreements 

with Alcon, Inc., it was possible for a considerable part of the US dollar exchange rate risks to be reduced. Moreover, in August 

2008, WaveLight AG had used the possibility to secure its US dollar assets through restructuring a part of the loan from Alcon, Inc. 

from Euros to dollars, so that, in total, it was possible for the dependency on dollars of the WaveLight Group to be reduced. 

In order to manage US dollar risk, WaveLight AG arranged an FX swap in July 2008, in the context of which it sold $900 thousand  

at spot rate and repurchased them on August 18, 2008. At the balance sheet date, the deal had had a market value of €5 thousand. 

At the previous balance sheet date, there were forwards contracts with a total volume of $5,950 thousand and positive market 

values amounting to €46 thousand. 
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Under IFRS 7, the group conducts sensitivity analyses in relation to market price risks based on which it is possible to determine the 

effects of hypothetical changes of the relevant risk variables on results and equity capital.

The currency sensitivity analyses are based on the following assumptions:

Non-derivative financial instruments denominated in a foreign currency face currency risk and are therefore included in the sensitivity 

analysis.

Exchange-rate-related changes to the market values of currency derivatives that are neither in a hedging relationship in terms of IAS 

39 nor in a natural hedging relationship affect the currency income and they are, therefore, included in the result-focused sensitivity 

analysis. 

A currency appreciation or depreciation of the Euro compared to the value at the balance sheet date of 10% would have had a direct 

effect on equity capital amounting to €-0.1 million or €0.1 million. In the profit or loss statement, a currency appreciation or depre-

ciation of the Euro of 10 % would have had a negative effect of approx. €0.6 million or a positive effect of approx. €0.8 million. 

Interest rate risk: 

Based on changes in market interest rates, interest rate risk can occur owing to value fluctuations of non-derivative financial 

instruments or from the outflow of funds resulting from these. 

For the WaveLight Group, interest rate risk basically results from changes in the 3 month Euribor and the 3 month Libor based on 

which the parent company has determined interest rates for the loans provided. 

At the balance sheet date, the derivatives shown in the table below were employed for interest rate management:

The interest rate swaps all mature in March 2009. 

Under IFRS 7, interest rate risks are presented with the help of sensitivity analyses that show the effects of changes in market interest 

rates on interest payments, interest yield and interest expense, on other sections of the result as well as on equity capital. 

 
Interest rate swaps 10,000  (271) 46,922  (1,996)
Interest rate caps -  - 6,000  103
Total 10,000  (271) �2,922  (1,893)

Amounts in € thousands July 31, 2008  July 31, 2007 

 Nominal  Fair value Nominal  Fair value  
 volume  = carrying value volume  = carrying value
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The interest rate sensitivity analyses are based on the following assumptions:

Changes in market interest rates of non-derivative financial instruments with fixed interest only affect the result if these are carried at 

fair value. As a result, all financial instruments with fixed interest carried at amortized cost are not affected by interest rate risks in 

terms of IFRS 7.

 

Changes in market interest rates affect the net interest income of interest-bearing financial instruments whose interest payments 

have not been elected as hedges against interest rate changes in the context of cash flow hedges and they are therefore included in 

the sensitivity calculations.

Changes in market interest rates of interest rate derivatives that are not in a hedging relationship in terms of IAS 39 affect the net 

interest income and they are therefore included in the sensitivity calculations.

An increase or decrease in the level of the market interest rates in the reporting year by 100 base points would result in a group 

interest income of approx. €0.3 million (previous year approx. €0.1 million) more or less.

Other price risks:

In the context of market risk presentation, IFRS 7 also requires information on the effects of hypothetical changes of other price risk 

variables on the prices of financial instruments. Stock market prices or indices are particularly relevant as risk variables. 

The group neither held such financial instruments in this nor in the previous reporting year.

Disclosures on capital management

The WaveLight Group‘s liabilities, equity capital and balance sheet total at the balance sheet date amounted to: 

Liabilities were reduced by 2% compared with the previous balance sheet date. The basis of this development is taken from the 

positive operational business development.

In spite of the positive development of continued operations, the WaveLight Group‘s equity capital decreased by 49 %. The reduction 

in equity capital basically results from the WaveLight Group‘s reorientation in 2007/2008 as well as from value adjustments of 

deferred taxes amounting to €13,218 thousand in total. This leads to a reduction in the balance sheet total.

  
Current liabilities  48,984 48,602
Non-current liabilities  1,277 2,801
Liabilities  �0,261 �1,�03 -2%

Percentage of balance sheet total  81% 69%
Share capital  11,787 22,99� -�9%
Percentage of balance sheet total  19% 31%
Balance sheet total  62,0�8 7�,398

  

July 31, 2007 Changes in %Amounts in € thousands July 31, 2008
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Equity capitalization is an important condition to secure the continued survival of WaveLight AG or of the WaveLight Group. Based 

on this, equity is managed and supervised regularly on the basis of the key management ratios, the equity to assets ratio and the 

return on equity. 

The WaveLight AG is not bound by any capital requirements set out in the Articles of Association.

VII. Consolidated income statement disclosures

The presentation of the Profit and Loss account of the Company using the function of expense method. 

Income and expenses that are to be allocated to the “Intraocular Ophthalmology“ and “Aesthetics“ business divisions are pre- 

sented separately in the results from the discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS 5 (“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and 

Discontinued Operations”). Previous-year amounts were restated to conform to the new corporate structure.

(16) Revenues by Group sectors

The table below shows the Company’s revenues from continuing operations, broken down by business area and region:

*) previous-year amounts were restated to conform to the new corporate structure.

Sales from the Alcon Group amounting to €31,763 thousand (previous year: €0) were included in the sales revenues.

 
Revenues by product area
 
Refractive Ophthalmology     87,955 67,623
OEM surgery  2,921 2,747
Total  90,876 70,370

Amounts in € thousands  2007/2008 2006/2007*

 
Revenues by region
 
Germany  5,163 4,937
Europe  16,769 15,774
USA  41,513 23,525
Asia  17,130 13,753
Rest of world  10,301 12,381
Total  90,876 70,370

Amounts in € thousands  2007/2008 2006/2007*
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(17) Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes all costs for the products sold in the reporting period. The relevant labour and material costs were included 

using full absorption costing. The costs of research, selling, corporate marketing/investor relations, and administration not attribut-

able to the production function are allocated to the appropriate items.

(18) Selling and product marketing expenses 

Selling and product marketing expenses contain all expenses attributable to the direct and indirect sale of WaveLight products. Most 

of the expenses arise in connection with the provision of support to direct customers, and in particular distributors, for which highly 

qualified product specialists are required.

Due to the reorganization of the US business and the changed presentation of the “Intraocular Ophthalmology“ division, the sales 

cost decreased in relation to the turnover by 24.6% in the previous term (€17,303 thousand) to 17.2% (€15,660 thousand) during 

the 2007/2008 fiscal year.

(19) Corporate marketing/investor relations expenses

All expenses relating to corporate marketing and corporate identity, as well as investor relations expenses are presented under 

corporate marketing/investor relations. The product marketing costs incurred in the product sectors are included in selling and 

product marketing expenses.

(20) Research and development expenses

The Company recognises research and development expenses that do not meet the criteria for capitalization under IAS 38.57 in profit 

or loss when they are incurred. These expenses include both expenses for developing potential clinical applications for the various 

laser systems and current expenses for the maintenance of existing products. The depreciations of capitalized development expenses 

are allocated to the products and thus are components of the cost of sales.

(21) General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses contain expenses not incurred by and not attributable to other functions.

(22) Other operating expenses

This item contains all expenses that are related only indirectly to ordinary business activities. Significant items in other operating expenses 

include exchange rate differences (€2,112 thousand, previous year: €1,168 thousand), expenses in connection with the share buy-back 

programme (€995 thousand, previous year: €0), restructuring expenses of WaveLight AG: (€1,873 thousand, previous year: €0) and legal 

and consultancy fees in connection with the take-over by Alcon, Inc. (€2,577 thousand, previous year: €0), miscellaneous personnel costs 

(€ 1.932 thousand, previous year € 0) and costs of the Extraordinary General Meeting (€ 171 thousand, previous year € 0).

 

(23) Other operating income

The other operating income primarily results from the charging of expenses of the share buy-back programme to Alcon (€2,588 

thousand, previous year €0), ’income from exchange rate differences‘ €1,154 thousand (previous year €719 thousand), government 

grants received for current research projects of €196 thousand (previous year €334 thousand), charging of costs of assets of 

WaveLight, Inc. to Alcon Laboratories, Inc. (€509 thousand, previous year €0) and income from cost transfer of shared costs of the 

company valuation in connection with the domination agreement (€ 70 thousand, previous year € 0) and income from cost transfer 

of operating costs (€ 1,332 thousand, previous year € 0).
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(2�) Financial income 

The financial income of €363 thousand (previous year: €420 thousand) primarily includes income from changes in fair value from 

interest rate swaps and interest on bank balances and time deposits. 

(2�) Finance costs

The utilisation of credit and the directly related additional expenses amounted to €3,687 thousand (previous year: € 4.390 thousand) 

for the WaveLight Group. Of these, €1,862 thousand are made up of interest expenses from liabilities to banks, interest expenses 

from liabilities to associated companies of €1,783 thousand and changes in value of the interest rate derivatives of €42 thousand 

(previous year: €639 thousand). 

(26) Income tax expense

Earnings before taxes amounted to €2,968 thousand (previous year: € -3,310 thousand) and is subject to 51% tax of the Federal 

Republic of Germany.

Income taxes paid or due in the respective countries as well as deferred taxes are reported as income taxes. Deferred taxes are 

recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the IFRS balance sheet and their tax 

base as well as for tax loss carry forwards whose utilisation is probable. Income taxes are computed using the tax rates that have 

been enacted or substantively enacted in each country.

Group income taxes are broken down as follows:

In addition, deferred tax expense of €243 thousand (previous year: €279 thousand) was recorded directly under the revaluation 

reserve in equity.

The tax rate of the individual companies of 25% to 37.96% is applied to the pre-tax income to calculate deferred taxes.

In the case of WaveLight AG, a tax rate of 30.0% applied (previous year: 30.0%). This tax rate is a composite tax rate consisting of 

corporate income tax rate of 15.0% (previous year: 15.0%) plus a 5.5% solidarity charge (previous year: 5.5%) and a trade tax rate 

of 14.2% (previous year: 14.2%). For WaveLight, Inc., a tax rate of 37.96% (previous year: 40.0%) applied and for WaveLight S.A.  

a rate of 25.0 % (previous year: 25.0%).

  
Current taxes  (571) (101)
Deferred taxes  (6,558) 864

Income taxes  (7,129) 763 

Amounts in € thousands  2007/2008 2006/2007
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The difference between the expected and the reported income tax expense is attributable to the following factors:

The Group (excluding discontinued operations) has the following domestic tax loss carry forwards: corporation tax: €34,444 

thousand (previous year: €37,163 thousand), trade tax €31,066 thousand (previous year: €34,501 thousand) and foreign, primarily 

USA, tax loss carry forwards of €3,809 thousand (previous year: €5,287 thousand).

The US losses carry forwards expire by 2023. The so-called minimum taxation has applied in Germany since 2004, under which tax 

loss carry forwards may be set without restriction against profits of up to €1,000 thousand in the following year, and by up to 60% 

on any profits in excess of this amount. Valuation allowances were charged on the deferred tax assets on this loss carry forwards in 

some cases.

Along with the minimum taxation to be applied in Germany since 2004, the interest deduction ceiling rule, which newly regulates 

deduction from taxable income from interest expenses, has to be applied in fiscal years that end after January 1, 2008. The interest 

deduction ceiling rule has no effect on the tax result of WaveLight AG in the 2007/2008 fiscal year.

As a consequence of these new regulations and in spite of existing losses carried forward for the 2007/2008 fiscal year, WaveLight AG 

 has to pay income taxes of €335 thousand. Furthermore, provision of €200 thousand for tax audit risks was set aside in the fiscal year 

2007/2008. 

The actual income tax expenses outside the period amount to €236 thousand (previous year: €76 thousand) for the WaveLight 

Group.

  
Expected tax expense (9�8) 1,277
 
Other tax-free income and non-decuctible expenses  (2,308)   332 
Taxes in previous years  (519)  (396)
Change in tax rate  - (1,517)
Tax effect from discontinued operations 
and consolidation adjustments 1,669 4,004
Valuation allowances on deferred tax assets on tax loss carryforwards (4,992) (2,709)
Miscellaneous (31) (228) 
 
Reported income tax expense (7,129) 763
 
Effective tax rate in % 2�0.2% 23.0%

Amounts in € thousands  2007/2008 2006/2007
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities result from the following:

The deferred taxes on intangible assets and property, plant, and equipment and on the tax loss carry forwards are primarily non-

current. The other deferred taxes are current.

With the exception of the deferred tax assets on tax loss carry forwards, all deferred taxes are based on taxable temporary differences 

between the carrying amounts and the tax base.

The carrying amount of the deferred tax credits on loss carry forwards is based on the completed restructuring and the results already 

taking place in the current fiscal year; from the point of view of tax, in the 2007/2008 fiscal year, WaveLight AG has again achieved 

a positive income to be taxed. The value of deferred tax credits on loss carry forwards is measured on the basis of an assessment by 

the Company using a forecast period of five years. In the course of this, the agreement published on the April 7, 2008 between 

Nestlé S.A. and Novartis AG, has been taken into consideration. It provides that Novartis AG should acquire 24.85% of the shares of 

Alcon Inc., as the first step. Between January 1, 2010 and the July 31, 2011, the take-over of an additional estimate of 52% of the 

shares is planned. On the basis of this assessment, the deferred tax on loss carry forwards on the assets side were written down by 

€6,972 thousand (previous year: €4,225 thousand).

The usability of tax loss carry forwards could be endangered in the future owing to the takeover by Alcon, Inc. More than 50% of the 

shares have been transferred; any significant addition of assets in the future would lead to the lapse of tax loss carry forwards in 

Germany.

Also for WaveLight Inc. the carrying amount of the deferred tax on loss carry forwards on the asset side is based on predictions of 

taxable income for the next five years. The deferred taxes on loss carry forwards on the asset side were recognized in the amount in 

which they are still useful for the remaining operational activity of WaveLight Inc. (€485 thousand; previous year: €1,955 thousand). 

In total, the deferred taxes on loss carry forwards on the asset side were adjusted in value by €961 thousand in the case of 

WaveLight Inc. In addition, currency exchange rate adjustments of €192 thousand were made on the deferred taxes on the assets 

side of WaveLight, Inc.

 
Intangible assets and property, plant, and equipment - 2,255 - 2,117
Current assets 147 554 123 34
Liabilities 956 - 1,916 -
Tax loss carryforwards (after valuation allowances) 3,357 - 8,489 -
Miscellaneous - - - 119
Eliminations (2,809) (2,809) (2,270) (2,270)
  
Total 1,6�1 0 8,2�8 0

Amounts in € thousands  2007/2008 2006/2007

 Credited  Debited Credited  Debited 
 deferred taxes  deferred taxes deferred taxes deferred taxes
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For the first time, for WaveLight, Inc. non-deductible interest expenses of €1,767 thousand were incurred during the reporting year. 

These non-deductible interest expenses are basically deductible in following years, provided that specific earnings indicators and 

equity quotas are achieved. Because it cannot be expected for sure that these indicators can be achieved comprehensively, the 

deferred taxes on the assets side, incurred on the interest carrying amount totalling €671 thousand, were fully adjusted in value.

The deferred taxes on the assets side of WaveLight S.A. were fully adjusted in the value of €421 thousand, considering the 

unforeseen usability.

Deferred tax liabilities are netted against deferred tax assets at Company level. 

(27) Income from discontinued operations 

Income from discontinued operations can be broken down as follows:

The results of the discontinued operation were impacted in particular by expenses, which are related to the discontinuation of the 

Aesthetics Division.

The loss from the discontinued operations amounted to €6,089 thousand, from which €4,722 thousand were allocated to the 

intraocular surgery sector and €1,367 thousand to the disposal of the aesthetics division. The write-down became necessary since 

current unit sales figures in this division mean that it is becoming increasingly unlikely that WaveLight will be able to collect the 

variable purchase price. Furthermore, the result from discontinued operations was hit by depreciations of fixed assets of the 

Aesthetics Division.

  
Turnover  5,873 17,151
Cost of sales  (4,247) (13,412)

Gross profit on turnover  1,626 3,739
Sales costs  (2,433) (6,671)
Corporate marketing/selling expenses  (15) (15)
General administration expenses  (246) (1,252)
Research and development expenses  (289) (1,122)
Other operating expenses  (65) (6,089)
Other operating income  27 542
 
Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT)  (1,39�) (10,868)
Financial results  (221) (1,523)

Result before taxes  (1,616) (12,391)
Corporate marketing/selling expenses  170 1,304
Income tax expense and income from discontinued operations  
less tex effect (deconsolidation)  (4,643) -
 
Results from discontinued operations  (6,089) (11,087)
 
of which from Aesthetics  (1,367) (9,957)
of which from intraocular surgery  (4,722) (1,130)

Amounts in € thousands  2007/2008   2006/2007
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(28) Profit/loss attributable to minority interest

The profit or loss attributable to the minority shareholders in WaveLight S.A. is reported in this item.

(29) Earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share additionally include rights equivalent to shares and options that have already been granted and whose 

exercise price was lower than the average share price of €16.44 in the 2007/2008 fiscal year (previous year: 6.59). This average 

share price and the exercise prices granted result in a dilutive effect attributable to an additional 15,000 shares. The corresponding 

diluted earnings per share are thus €-1.53 (previous year: €-2.05). 

Other declarations

Cost of materials and employee expenses

  
Group annual result, amounts in € thousands (10,072) (13,�90)
Average number of shares (quantity) 6,579,657 6,577,026
Loss per share in € (basic) (1.53) (2.05)
Average number of shares, diluted (quantity) 6,587,861 6,577,173
Loss per share in € (diluted) (1.53) (2.05)
 
Basic earnings per share from the disposal operations
Income from discontinued operations less tax effect, amounts in € thousands (6,089) (11,087)
Average number of shares (quantity) 6,579,657 6,577,026
Loss per share in € (basic) (0.93) (1.69)
Average number of shares, diluted (quantity) 6,587,861 6,577,173
Loss per share in € (diluted) (0.92) (1.69)

Earnings per share  2007/2008 2006/2007

 
Cost of materials  46,937 34,056
  thereof for purchased services  1,790 1,786
Wages and salaries   10,968 12,234
Social security contributions, employee benefit and old-age pension expenses 1,873 1,949

Amounts in € thousands  2007/2008 2006/2007
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VIII. Consolidated cash flow disclosures

The following amounts must be disclosed because the cash flow statement was prepared using the indirect method:

In the fiscal year under review, discontinued operations resulted in cash flows used in operating activities of €2,854 thousand 

(previous year: €12 thousand), an investment activity amounted to €311 thousand (previous year: €976 thousand) and an inflow of 

funds from financing activity to the extent of €0 (previous year: €-1,001 thousand)

Other disclosures to consolidated cash flow statement

Sale of subsidiaries and business divisions:

 
Payments of income taxes  272 -
Payments of interest less interest income  3,069 4,072

Amounts in € thousands  2007/2008 2006/2007

 
Intangible assets  3,376 -
Property, plant, and equipment  159 -
Deferred tax  131 -
Inventories  788 51
Non-current trade receivables  530 327
Other non-current assets  63 -
Liquid funds  251 235
Trade payables  (1,185) (132)
Financial liabilities  - (46)
Accurals  (197) (186)
Other liabilities  (8) -
Disposition gain  (3,908) 2�9
Purchase price received  - 500
Cash disposed  (251) (235)
Reimbursables of sales  (24) -
Inflow of funds from sale of companies, less cash disposed  (27�) 26�

Amounts in € thousands  2007/2008 2006/2007
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IX. Sector information disclosures

Sector reporting by business divisions

 Amounts in € thousands 2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007  2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007

Ophthalmology

 
Sector revenues 87,9�� 67,623 2,921 2,7�7 90,876 70,370 - - 90,876 70,370
 
Export sales 56,192 67,623 2,921 2,747 59,113 70,370 - - 59,113 70,370 
 
Internal group sales 31,763 - - - 31,763 - - - 31,763 -
 
Sector result for continuing operations 6,090 660 202 - 6,292 660 - - 6,292 660
 
Sector result for discontinued operations - - (1,395) (10,868) (1,395) (10,868) - - (1,395) (10,868)
 
Share of profit or loss of equity-accounted companies - (206) - - - (206) - - - (206)
 
 Carrying amount of equity-accounted companies - 732 - - - 732 - - - 732
 
Assets of continuing operations �0,977 �6,�06 1,693 2,29� �2,670 �8,801 6,2�8 10,180 �8,918 68,981
  
Assets of discontinued operations - - 3,130 5,417 3,130 5,417 - - 3,130 5,417
 
Liabilities of continuing operations 1�,02� 18,939 �66 769 1�,�91 19,708 3�,1�1 30,863 �9,6�2 �0,�71
 
Liabilities of discontinued operations - - 619 832 619 832 - - 619 832
 
Sector investments �,�23 3,739 183 1�2 �,706 3,891 - - �,706 3,891
 
Sector depreciation and amortization 5,238 4,073 174 165 5,412 4,238 - - 5,412 4,238
 
Impairment losses 787 57 - - 787 57 - - 787 57
 
Non-cash expenses 8,234 206 273 9,193 8,507 9,399 - - 8,507 9,399

Divisions
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 Amounts in € thousands 2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007  2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007

Total Sectors Reconciliation GroupOther Sectors

 
Sector revenues 87,9�� 67,623 2,921 2,7�7 90,876 70,370 - - 90,876 70,370
 
Export sales 56,192 67,623 2,921 2,747 59,113 70,370 - - 59,113 70,370 
 
Internal group sales 31,763 - - - 31,763 - - - 31,763 -
 
Sector result for continuing operations 6,090 660 202 - 6,292 660 - - 6,292 660
 
Sector result for discontinued operations - - (1,395) (10,868) (1,395) (10,868) - - (1,395) (10,868)
 
Share of profit or loss of equity-accounted companies - (206) - - - (206) - - - (206)
 
 Carrying amount of equity-accounted companies - 732 - - - 732 - - - 732
 
Assets of continuing operations �0,977 �6,�06 1,693 2,29� �2,670 �8,801 6,2�8 10,180 �8,918 68,981
  
Assets of discontinued operations - - 3,130 5,417 3,130 5,417 - - 3,130 5,417
 
Liabilities of continuing operations 1�,02� 18,939 �66 769 1�,�91 19,708 3�,1�1 30,863 �9,6�2 �0,�71
 
Liabilities of discontinued operations - - 619 832 619 832 - - 619 832
 
Sector investments �,�23 3,739 183 1�2 �,706 3,891 - - �,706 3,891
 
Sector depreciation and amortization 5,238 4,073 174 165 5,412 4,238 - - 5,412 4,238
 
Impairment losses 787 57 - - 787 57 - - 787 57
 
Non-cash expenses 8,234 206 273 9,193 8,507 9,399 - - 8,507 9,399
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Revenues by region 

WaveLight is structured into divisions reflecting its internal organizational and management structure. Sector reporting in accordance 

with IFRS is prepared for the Ophthalmology Division and the other sectors. The Aesthetics and Industrial Laser Divisions are reported 

collectively under “Other sectors” since, as sectors held for sale, they are of minor importance to the Group’s further development. 

The OEM Surgery business area is also allocated to “Other sectors” owing to its size.

Sector reporting contains all income and expenses as well as assets and liabilities that are attributable either directly to the sector or 

on the basis of a logical allocation formula. Sector results are reported as EBIT in the reporting year as in the previous year.

 
  Amounts in € thousands 2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007  2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007

Regions Germany Europe

 
Sector revenues   �,163 �,937 16,769 1�,77� �1,�13 23,�2� 17,130 13,7�3 10,301 12,381 90,876 70,370
 
External sales   5,163 4,937 14,799 15,774 11,720 23,525 17,130 13,753 10,301 12,381 59,113 70,370
 
Internal group sales   - - 1,970 - 29,793 - - - - - 31,763 -
 
Sector assets   �7,171 ��,�66 1,28� �,628 �,21� 8,707 - - - - �2,670 �8,801
   
Sector investments   �,��1 3,636 3 19 1�2 236 - - - - �,706 3,891



 11�

In the cases in which an allocation formula was used, this was applied on the basis of the sector revenues.

The ophthalmology sector comprises the activities of the refractive surgery unit. The refractive product portfolio consists of laser 

systems, diagnostic systems, and the associated services for treating visual impairments.

No goods or services were exchanged between the reported sectors.

 
  Amounts in € thousands 2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007  2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007 2007/2008 2006/2007

Asia Rest of world Total sector groupUSA

 
Sector revenues   �,163 �,937 16,769 1�,77� �1,�13 23,�2� 17,130 13,7�3 10,301 12,381 90,876 70,370
 
External sales   5,163 4,937 14,799 15,774 11,720 23,525 17,130 13,753 10,301 12,381 59,113 70,370
 
Internal group sales   - - 1,970 - 29,793 - - - - - 31,763 -
 
Sector assets   �7,171 ��,�66 1,28� �,628 �,21� 8,707 - - - - �2,670 �8,801
   
Sector investments   �,��1 3,636 3 19 1�2 236 - - - - �,706 3,891
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X. Events after the balance sheet date

On August 14, 2008, the credit limit agreement between the WaveLight AG and Alcon, Inc was extended to November 30, 2009. 

Furthermore, in the context of this extension, the company now also has the option of using the above-mentioned credit limit up to 

the maximum amount of $ 30 thousand in US dollars.

On September 18, 2008, WaveLight AG agreed an endorsement with the buyer of WaveLight Aesthetic GmbH in relation to the 

transfer of the company‘s activities in the Aesthetics business area. The content of this agreement basically deals with the production 

phase-out until December 2008, the transfer of inventories, the omission of a variable purchase price claim by WaveLight AG and the 

final regulations on guarantee promises. WaveLight AG‘s withdrawal from the aesthetics business area until the end of 2008 can 

thereby be assured. 

A decision was made on September 23, 2008, to reorganise business activities in Spain. In the course of this, the WaveLight AG 

intends to sell its share in WaveLight S.A. to the Managing Director of the Spanish company. Furthermore, the Alcon Group‘s sales 

presence in the Spanish market will be used by transferring marketing and sales of lasers systems to the Spanish Alcon marketing 

organisation in future.

XI. Employees

The average number of employees was as follows:

Part time employees, undergraduates and temporary workers were accounted for on a pro rata basis.

XII. Related party disclosures

Alcon, Inc informed WaveLight AG on November 9, 2007, that it had 5,089,618 voting rights in WaveLight AG. This corresponds to 

77.38% of voting rights. The voting stock is held directly by Alcon, Inc. Owing to WaveLight AG‘s capital increase, Alcon, Inc holds 

77.28% of voting rights of WaveLight AG at the balance sheet date, with the same number of voting rights, being 5,089,618.

As a result, WaveLight AG and its subsidiaries are dependent on the parent company Alcon, Inc, Hünenberg, Switzerland.

  
Salaried employees 158 233
Part time employees 7 11
Trainees/Undergraduates 6 14
Temporary workers 3 4
 
Total 17� 262

Employees on the date of the balance sheet  July 31, 2008 July 31, 2007
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The WaveLight Group currently entertains business relationships with the following companies in the Alcon Group:

-  Alcon, Inc., Hünenberg, (Switzerland)

-  Alcon Laboratories, Inc., Fort Worth / Texas, USA

-  Alcon Pharmaceuticals, Ltd. (Switzerland)

-  Alcon Pte. Ltd., Singapore

Alcon, Inc, Hünenberg (Switzerland) will provide WaveLight AG with a credit limit of €50 million until November 30, 2009. The grant 

of such a loan is subject to conditions that regulate the use of the funds provided. Interest reflects standard market rate conditions.

WaveLight AG delivers the company‘s entire product portfolio to the Alcon Group. This includes:

-  The delivery of laser systems, diagnosis systems and accessories

-  The delivery of spare parts

-  The performance of services (installations, maintenance, repairs)

-  The delivery of WaveCards, a system for the application of local licensing conditions (per procedure fee) used only on the  

  American market 

WaveLight, Inc‘s current business transactions with Alcon Laboratories, Inc have been limited since February 1, 2008, owing to rental 

costs and “per procedure fees“ that were determined on the US market based on units installed before the takeover by the Alcon Group.

The Alcon Group receives WaveLight products at a price that bears comparison with third party sales from today‘s perspective, 

bearing in mind the quantity structure.

The following presents the extent and manner of the basic business relationship between Alcon, Inc. or its subsidiaries and 

WaveLight AG including its subsidiaries:

Delivery of goods and performance of services by WaveLight Group companies of the Alcon group

Other business relationships and services of the WaveLight Group to companies of the Alcon Group

 
Laser systems and diagnostic systems   23,658
Spare parts, service and WaveCards   8,105
Total   31,763

Product group   Amounts in € thousands

 
Charging of expenses from termination of the share option programmes   705
Sale of assets of WaveLight, Inc. in the course of the reorientation of the US activities   1,812
Other services   1,277
Total   3,79�

Product group   Amounts in € thousands
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Supplies and services from the Alcon Group to companies of the WaveLight Group.

In the business year 2007/2008, the following contracts and agreements were made with companies of the Alcon Group, and they 

are the basis of the above-mentioned legal transactions:

Intra-Group Loan Agreement between WaveLight AG and Alcon, Inc from December 6/18, 2007

Management Service Agreement between WaveLight, Inc. and Alcon Laboratories, Inc. from February 1/4, 2008

Tax Indemnification Agreement between WaveLight AG and Alcon, Inc. from February 1/4, 2008 

Asset Purchase Agreement between WaveLight, Inc. and Alcon Laboratories, Inc. from February 1/4, 2008 

Exclusive Supply and Asset Transfer Agreement between WaveLight AG and Alcon Laboratories, Inc. from February 1/4, 2008. 

As of July 31, 2008, there were claims of € 7,493 thousand against and liabilities of € 34,715 thousand to the Alcon Group.  

These contain financial liabilities of € 34,813 thousand. Furthermore, the miscellaneous liabilities contain deferred interest of  

€ 218 thousand to Alcon, Inc.

Share option plan

In the course of the majority takeover of Alcon, Inc, the WaveLight AG has come to an agreement with the majority of its employees 

regarding the renouncement of share option plans from share options granted in the past. The corresponding agreements contained 

cash compensations to the amount of € 9 per option. Alcon, Inc. has confirmed the transfer costs resulting from the end of the share 

option plans. With the renouncement, all share options of the 2006 programme become INVALID. 53,000 options remain from the 

2004 share option plan whose exercise period expires on December 31, 2010.

No new stock options were granted in this financial year.

The exercise of the remaining options is linked to the development of the relevant branch index. The base price is the average closing 

price of WaveLight shares in Xetra trading on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange in the 20 days preceding the issue date of the options.

WaveLight AG recognized the employee expense at the grant date in the amount of the fair value of the share options calculated 

using the Black/Scholes option-pricing model. 

 
Licence payments in the US market   1,113
Delivery of goods   150
Management fees    135
Interest calculations for the loan from Alcon, Inc. to WaveLight AG   1,566
Total   2,96�

Product group   Amounts in € thousands
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The table below provides detailed information on changes in the grant and exercise of stock options and the weighted average 

exercise prices, which reflect exercise prices adjusted for the capital increase.

The following overview contains information on the remaining option period (in years) and the exercise prices for the share options 

outstanding at July 31, 2007:

Domination agreement

On March 20, 2008 a domination agreement was made between WaveLight AG and Alcon, Inc, in accordance with Section  

291 German Companies Act (AktG). In the course of the Extraordinary General Meeting of WaveLight AG on May 7, 2008, the 

 shareholders approved the domination agreement. The requisite entry in the commercial register has not yet been made. 

Declaration of conformity with the Corporate Governance Code

The Executive Board and the Supervisory Board of WaveLight AG have issued the Declaration of conformity with the Corporate 

Governance Code, required by Section 161 of the German Companies Act (AktG), and have made it available to the shareholders on 

WaveLight AG’s website, where they can have permanent access to it.

 
€ 12.82 Stock option plan 2004 3,000 2.4
€ 12.90 Stock option plan 2004 35,000 2.4
€ 18.10 Stock option plan 2004 15,000 2.4
€ 1�.37 Outstanding share options �3,000
   of which, exercisable 38,000 

Exercise price in € Number of shares Remaining term in years

 
Options at August 1 3�3,�00 12.�� 379,000 12.73
Options granted under 2004 plan 75,000 12.90 -
Options granted under 2004 plan 71,500 18.10 -
Options granted under 2006 plan 125,000 9.22  -
Options granted under 2006 plan 15,000 6.53 -
Expired options under 2004 plan -  5,500 18.10
Expired options under 2006 plan 5,000  35,000 9.22
Options granted under 2006 plan -  15,000 6.53
Options exercised under 2004 plan 9,000  -
Outstanding options at July 31 �3,000 1�.37 3�3,�00 12.��
    
Available for grant at July 31 192,638  192,638

  

Quantity Exercise price in €

2006/2007

Quantity Exercise price in €

2007/2008
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Declarations in accordance with Section 160 (1) No. 8 of the AktG (German Stock Corporation Act)

The following declarations were made to the company in accordance with Section 160 (1) No. 8 German Companies Act (AktG):

January 1�, 2008

On January 2, Merrill Lynch International, London, U.K., informed us in accordance with Section 21(1) and (23) of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on the December 21, 2007, 

exceeded the 3% and 5 % threshold and now amounts to 5.02 % (Voting rights 330,180; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026). 

On January 2, ML UK Capital Holdings, London, U.K., informed us in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German Securities 

Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on December 21, 2007, exceeded the 

3% and 5 % threshold and now amounts to 5.02 % (voting rights: 330,180; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026). All these voting 

rights are attributable to ML UK Capital Holdings in accordance with Section 22(1) Sentence 1 No 1 of the German Securities Trading 

Act (WpHG). The parent companies holding the voting rights are interlinked via: Merrill Lynch International which is controlled by ML 

UK Capital Holdings.

On January 2, Merrill Lynch Holdings Limited, London, U.K., informed us in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on December 21, 2007, 

exceeded the 3% and 5 % threshold and now amounts to 5.02 % (voting rights: 330,180; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026). All 

these voting rights are attributable to Merrill Lynch Holdings in accordance with Section 22(1) Sentence 1 No 1 of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG). The parent companies holding the voting rights are interlinked via: Merrill Lynch International which 

is controlled by ML UK Capital Holdings, which in turn is controlled by Merrill Lynch Holding Limited.

On January 2, Merrill Lynch Europe Intermediate Holdings, London, U.K., informed us in accordance with Section 21(1) of 

the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on December 21, 

2007, exceeded the 3% and 5 % threshold and now amounts to 5.02 % (voting rights: 330,180; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026). 

All these voting rights are attributable to Merrill Lynch Europe Intermediate Holdings in accordance with Section 22 (1) Sentence 1 

No 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). The parent companies holding the voting rights are interlinked via: Merrill Lynch 

International which is controlled by ML UK Capital Holdings, which in turn is controlled by Merrill Lynch Holdings Limited, which in 

turn is controlled by Merrill Lynch Europe Intermediate Holdings.

On January 2, Merrill Lynch Europe PLC, London, U.K., informed us in accordance with Section 21 (1) of the German Securities 

Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on December 21, 2007, exceeded the 

3% and 5 % threshold and now amounts to 5.02 % (voting rights: 330,180; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026). All these voting 

rights are attributable to Merrill Lynch Europe Intermediate Holdings in accordance with Section 22 (1) Sentence 1 No 1 of the 

German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). The parent companies holding the voting rights are interlinked via: Merrill Lynch International 

which is controlled by ML UK Capital Holdings, which in turn is controlled by Merrill Lynch Holdings Limited, which in turn in 

controlled by Merrill Lynch Europe Intermediate Holdings, which in turn is controlled by Merrill Lynch Europe PLC.
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On January 2, Merrill Lynch International Inc., Wilmington, USA., informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the 

German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on December 21, 

2007, exceeded the 3% and 5 % threshold and now amounts to 5.02 % (voting rights: 330,180; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026). 

All these voting rights are attributable to Merrill Lynch International Inc. in accordance with Section 22(1) Sentence 1 No 1 of the 

German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). The parent companies holding the voting rights are interlinked via: Merrill Lynch International 

which is controlled by ML UK Capital Holdings, which in turn is controlled by Merrill Lynch Holdings Limited, which in turn in 

controlled by Merrill Lynch Europe Intermediate Holdings, which in turn is controlled by Merrill Lynch Europe PLC which in turn is 

controlled by Merrill Lynch International Holdings Inc. which in turn is controlled by Merrill Lynch International Inc.

On January 2, Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc., Wilmington, USA., informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on December 21, 2007, 

exceeded the 3% and 5 % threshold and now amounts to 5.02 % (voting rights: 330,180; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026). All 

these voting rights are attributable to Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. in accordance with Section 22(1) Sentence 1 No 1 of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG). The parent companies holding the voting rights are interlinked via: Merrill Lynch International which 

is controlled by ML UK Capital Holdings, which in turn is controlled by Merrill Lynch Holdings Limited, which in turn in controlled by 

Merrill Lynch Europe Intermediate Holdings, which in turn is controlled by Merrill Lynch Europe PLC which in turn is controlled by 

Merrill Lynch International Holdings Inc. which in turn is controlled by Merrill Lynch International Inc., which in turn is controlled by 

Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc.

November 13, 2007

On November 12, Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena, Germany, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on December 21, 2007, 

exceeded the 5 % and 3 % threshold and now amounts to 0 % (voting rights: 0)

November 12, 2007

On September 11, 2007, Alcon, Inc., Hünenberg, Switzerland, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG) that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on the September 11, 2007 

exceeded the 30 %, 50% and 75% thresholds and now amounts to 77.38 % (5,089,618 voting stock). The voting stock is held 

directly by Alcon, Inc.

On November 9, 2007, Nestlé S.A., Vevey, Switzerland, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German Securities 

Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on December 21, 2007, exceeded the 

30 % and 50 % thresholds and now amounts to 75 % (voting rights: 5,089,618) All this voting stock is attributed to Nestlé S.A. on 

the basis of the stock held by Alcon, Inc. in accordance with Section 22(1) Sentence 1 No. 1 in combination with Sentence 3 of the 

German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). Alcon, Inc. is a directly controlled company of Nestlé S.A.
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November 6, 2007

On November 5, 2007, INVERSIONES FOCALIZADAS SICAV, S.A., Madrid, Spain, informed us, in accordance with Section 

21(1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on the 

September 25, 2007, exceeded the 3% threshold and now amounts to 0 % (voting rights: 0).

On November 5, 2007, Questions S.G.I.I.C., S.A., Madrid, Spain informed us by order and for account of INVERSIONES 

FOCALIZADAS SICAV, S.A., in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights 

percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on September 25, 2007, exceeded the 3% threshold and now amounts to  

0 % (voting rights: 0)

September 2�, 2007

On September 25, 2007, Alcon, Inc., Hünenberg, Switzerland, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) German Securities 

Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on September 25, 2007 exceeded the 

25% threshold and now amounts to 25.49% (1,676,795 voting stock). The voting stock is held directly by Alcon, Inc.

On September 25, Nestlé S.A., Vevey, Switzerland, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German Securities 

Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on September 25, 2007, exceeded the 

25% threshold and now amounts to 75% (voting rights: 1,676,795) All this voting stock is attributed to Nestlé S.A. on the basis of 

the stock held by Alcon, Inc. in accordance with Section 22 (1) Sentence 1 No. 1 in combination with Sentence 3 of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG). Alcon, Inc. is a directly controlled company of Nestlé S.A.

 

September 21, 2007

On September 7, Soneva S.A., Neuchatel, Switzerland, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German Securities 

Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on September 6, 2007, exceeded the 

5% threshold and now amounts to 6.08% (voting rights: 400,000) Soneva S.A. directly holds 3.8% (250,000 voting stock). 0.76% 

of which (50,000 voting stock) is attributed to Soneva S.A. from Orsus Consult GmbH in accordance with Section 22(1) Sentence 1 

No. 2 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). A further 1.52% (100,000 voting stock) is also attributed to Soneva S.A. in 

accordance with Section 22 (2) clause 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). 

On September 13, 2007, RRS Capital Strategies Services GmbH, Vienna, Austria informed us, in accordance with Section 

21(1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on 

September 6, 2007, exceeded the 3% and 5 % thresholds and now amounts to 5.32 % (voting rights: 350,000). 1.52% of which 

(100,000 voting stock) is also attributed to RRS Capital Strategies Services GmbH, Vienna, Austria in accordance with Section 22(1) 

Sentence 1 No. 6 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). A further 3.80 % (250,000 voting stock) is attributed to it from 

Soneva S.A., Neuchatel, Switzerland in accordance with Section 22(2) clause 1 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).
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September 11, 2007

On September 11, 2007, Alcon, Inc., Hünenberg, Switzerland, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) German Securities 

Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on September 11, 2007 exceeded the 

20% threshold and now amounts to 24.25% (1,595,000 voting stock). The voting stock is held directly by Alcon, Inc.

On September 11, Nestlé S.A., Vevey, Switzerland, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German Securities 

Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on September 11, 2007, exceeded the 

20% threshold and now amounts to 24.25 % (voting rights: 1,595,000) All this voting stock is attributed to Nestlé S.A. on the basis 

of the stock held by Alcon, Inc. in accordance with Section 22(1) Sentence 1 No. 1 in combination with Sentence 3 of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG). Alcon, Inc. is a directly controlled company of Nestlé S.A.

 

On September 10, 2007, Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder Holdings, Inc. (as the parent company of Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder 

Advisers, LLC), New York, USA, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its 

voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on September 7, 2007, exceeded the 3% threshold and now amounts 

to 0.00% (voting rights: 0; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026). The voting rights previously held were accredited to Arnhold and S. 

Bleichroeder Holdings, Inc. in accordance with Section 22 (1) Sentence 2 in connection with Section 22(1) Sentence 1 No. 6 of the 

German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).

On September 10, 2007 Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder Advisers, LLC, New York, USA, informed us, in accordance with Section 

21(1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on the 

September 7, 2007, exceeded the 3 % threshold and now amounts to 0.00 % (voting rights: 0; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026). 

The voting rights previously held were accredited to Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder Advisers, LLC, as wholly-owned subsidiary of 

Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder Holdings, Inc. in accordance with Section 22(1) clause 1 No. 6 of the WpHG (German Securities Trading 

Act).

September �, 2007

On August 29, 2007, Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder Holdings, Inc. (as the parent company of Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder 

Advisers, LLC), New York, USA, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its 

voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on August 28, 2007, exceeded the 5 % threshold and now amounts 

to 5.32% (voting rights: 350,000; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026). The voting rights previously held were accredited to Arnhold 

and S. Bleichroeder Holdings, Inc. in accordance with Section 22(1) Sentence 1 No. 6 in connection with Section 22(1) Sentence 2 of 

the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG).

On August 29, 2007 Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder Advisers, LLC, New York, USA, informed us, in accordance with Section 

21(1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on 

August 29, 2007, exceeded the 5% threshold and now amounts to 5.32% (voting rights: 350,000; capital stock in shares: 

6,577,026). The voting rights are accredited to Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder Advisers, LLC, as wholly-owned subsidiary of Arnhold of 

Arnhold and S. Bleichroeder Holdings, Inc. in accordance with Section 22(1) Sentence 1 No. 6 of the German Securities Trading Act 

(WpHG).
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August 17, 2007

On August 17, 2007, Soneva S.A., Neuchatel, Switzerland, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on August 17, 2007, exceeded 

the 3% threshold and now amounts to 3.12 % (voting rights: 205,125) 0.76 % of which (50,000 voting stock) is attri-buted to it in 

accordance with Section 22 (1) Sentence 1 No. 2 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). Voting rights were attributed to us 

by the following share holders: Orsus Consult GmbH, Kupferberg, Germany´.

August 1�, 2007

On August 13, 2007, Alcon, Inc., Hünenberg, Switzerland, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on August 10, 2007 exceeded 

the 10% threshold and now amounts to 10.17% (number of shares: 668,862; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026). The voting stock is 

held directly by Alcon, Inc.

On August 13, 2007, Nestlé S.A., Vevey, Switzerland, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German Securities 

Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, August 10, 2007, exceeded the 10 % thres-

hold and now amounts to 10.17% (number of shares: 668,862; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026). All this voting stock is attributed to 

Nestlé S.A. on the basis of the stock held by Alcon, Inc. in accordance with Section 22(1) Sentence 1 No. 1 in combination with Sentence 

3 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). Alcon, Inc. is a directly controlled company of Nestlé S.A.

August 10, 2007

On August 9, 2007, Highclere International Investors Smaller Companies Fund, Westport, USA, informed us, in accor-

dance with Section 21(1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, 

Germany, on August 8, 2007, exceeded the 3% threshold and now amounts to 1.52% (number of shares: 100,054; capital stock in 

shares: 6,577,026). 

On August 9, 2007, Highclere International Investors Limited, London, United Kingdom, informed us, in accordance with 

Section 21(1) of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, 

on August 8, 2007, exceeded the 3% threshold and now amounts to 1.52% (number of shares: 100,054; capital stock in shares: 

6,577,026). All these voting rights are attributed to Highclere International Investors Limited on the basis of the shares held by 

Highclere International Investors Smaller Companies Fund in accordance with Section 22(1) Sentence 1 No. 6 of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG).

August 6, 2007

On August 3, 2007, Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena, Germany, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on July 31, 2007, exceeded 

the 3% threshold and now amounts to 4.20% (number of shares: 276,025; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026).
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On August 3, 2007, Carl Zeiss Meditec AG, Jena, Germany, informed us, in accordance with Section 21 (1) of the German 

Securities Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Erlangen, Germany, on August 2, 2007, exceeded 

the 5 % threshold and now amounts to 5.00% (number of shares: 328,852; capital stock in shares: 6,577,026). 

July 31, 2007

On July 27, 2007, Alcon, Inc., Hünenberg, Switzerland, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German Securities 

Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Am Wolfsmantel 5, DE-91058 Erlangen (Germany), WKN 

512560, on July 25, 2007, exceeded the 5% threshold and now amounts to 5.10% (number of shares: 335,327; capital stock in 

shares: 6,577,026). The voting stock is held directly by Alcon, Inc.

On July 27, 2007, Nestlé S.A., Vevey, Switzerland, informed us, in accordance with Section 21(1) of the German Securities 

Trading Act (WpHG), that its voting rights percentage in WaveLight AG, Am Wolfsmantel 5, DE-91058 Erlangen (Germany), WKN 

512560, on July 25, 2007, exceeded the 5% threshold and now amounts to 5.10% (number of shares: 335,327; capital stock in 

shares: 6,577,026). All this voting stock is attributed to Nestlé S.A. on the basis of the stock held by Alcon, Inc. in accordance with 

Section 22(1) Sentence 1 No. 1 in combination with Sentence 3 of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG). Alcon, Inc. is a directly 

controlled company of Nestlé S.A.

 

XIV. Disclosures on executive bodies of the Company 

Executive Board

The Executive Board of WaveLight AG is constituted as follows:

Total remuneration of the Executive Board is set out in the following table. Figures are specified in thousand Euros.

Along with the fixed payments, €260 thousand (previous year: €260 thousand) variable positions were reserved, but its payment was 

not yet decided at the time of the preparation of the balance sheet.

As in the previous year, no advance payments or loans were granted to the Executive Board. There are no contingent liabilities as in 

the previous year. 

non-profit-related components €240 thousand (previous year: €240 thousand) 

profit-related components €260 thousand (previous year: €260 thousand)

long-term components within the context of the termination of the 

 share option programme, an amount of  

 €126 thousand was paid during the fiscal year

Maximilian Reindl Chairman of the Board of Directors  

Diplom-Ingenieur  Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Member of the Advisory Board of BMDSys GmbH, Jena Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
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Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board of WaveLight AG was constituted in the fiscal year as follows: 

Rudolf P. Franz  Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Diplom-Wirtschaftsingenieur, Augsburg

Member of the Executive Committee of Franz Industriebeteiligungen AG, Augsburg

Chairman of the Advisory Board of HAMA Group GmbH, Augsburg

Chairman of the Advisory Board of Göppel Bus GmbH, Augsburg

Chairman of the Advisory Board of Voxeljet Technology GmbH, Augsburg

Dr. Dietmar Bychowski Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Diplom-Betriebswirt, Schondorf/Ammersee (until March 3, 2008)

 

Dr. Peter Berndsen Member of the Supervisory Board 

Diplom-Ökonom, Augsburg (until March 3, 2008)

Member of the Supervisory Board of Hotel Steigenberger Drei Mohren AG, Augsburg

Member of the Advisory Board of F. Fluhr Draht- und Metallwarenfabrik GmbH, Fischach

Member of the Advisory Board of Sortimo International GmbH, Zusmarshausen

Member of the Advisory Board of Hama Group GmbH, Augsburg

Dr. Daniel Daeniker Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Solicitor, Zurich, Switzerland (since March 4, 2008)

Member of the Administrative Board of Rothschild Continuation Holdings AG, Zug, Switzerland

Richard J. Croarkin Member of the Supervisory Board

Fort Worth, Texas, USA (since March 4, 2008)

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Strategy der Alcon Laboratories, Inc., USA 

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Strategy der Alcon, Inc., Switzerland

Member of the Board of Directors of the following companies associated with Alcon, Inc:

- Alcon Holdings Inc., USA

- Alcon Laboratories, Inc., USA

- Alcon Capital Corporation, USA

- Alcon RefractiveHorizons, LLC, USA

- Refractive Solutions, Inc., USA

- Alcon (Puerto Rico) Inc., USA

- Alcon Research, Ltd., USA

- Falcon Pharmaceuticals, Ltd., USA 
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Kevin J. Buehler Member of the Supervisory Board 

Mansfield, Texas, USA (since March 4, 2008)

Senior Vice President, Global Markets und Chief Marketing Officer der Alcon Laboratories, Inc., USA

Member of the Board of Directors of the following companies associated with Alcon, Inc:

- Alcon Laboratories, Inc., USA

- Alcon Capital Corporation, USA 

- Falcon Pharmaceuticals Ltd., USA

Elaine E. Whitbeck Member of the Supervisory Board  

Arlington, Texas, USA (since March 4, 2008)

Senior Vice President, Chief Legal Officer, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary der Alcon Laboratories, Inc., USA

General Counsel und Corporate Secretary der Alcon, Inc., Switzerland 

Member of the Board of Directors of the following companies associated with Alcon, Inc:

- Alcon (China) Ophthalmic Product Co., Ltd., China

- Alcon Medical Device (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., China 

- Alcon Korea Ltd., South Korea

- Alcon Norge AS, Norway

- Alcon Laboratories (Thailand) Ltd., Thailand

Martin Schneider Member of the Supervisory Board 

Rotkreuz, Switzerland (since March 4, 2008)

Director Finance & Operations der Alcon Pharmaceuticals, Ltd., Switzerland

Member of the Board of Directors of the following companies associated with Alcon, Inc: 

- Alcon Ophthalmika GmbH,  Austria

- Alcon Coordination Center, Belgium

- Alcon Danmark, APS, Denmark

- Alcon Italia S.P.A., Italy

- Alcon Norge AS, Norwegen

- Alcon Portugal-Produtos e Equipamentos Oftalmológicos, Lda., Portugal

- Alcon Farmacevtika LLC, Russia

- Alcon Laboratories (South Africa) (Pty.) Ltd., South Africa

- Alcon Sverige AB, Sweden

- Alcon Credit Corporation, Switzerland

- Alcon Grieshaber AG, Switzerland

- Alcon Pharmaceuticals, Ltd., Switzerland

- Alcon Management SA, Switzerland

- Alcon Switzerland SA, Switzerland

- Alcon Pharmaceuticals Taiwan Ltd., Taiwan

- TRICL, Inc., USA
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The remuneration of the Supervisory Board including contractual reimbursement in the financial year was €88 thousand (previous 

year €135 thousand). The reduction of the payments compared with the same period in the previous year despite an increase of the 

number of members from three to six, results from the fact that the members, Mr. Richard Croarkin, Mr. Kevin Buehler, Mr. Martin 

Schneider and Mrs. Elaine Whitbeck waived their remuneration.

As in the previous year, no advance payments or loans were granted. As in the previous year, there are no contingent liabilities for 

members of the Supervisory Board.

Auditors’ fees

KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft, Nuremberg, Germany were the auditors 

for WaveLight AG (previous year: Dr. Ebner, Dr. Stolz & Partner GmbH, Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, 

Hanover).

In the fiscal year, the fees to be found in the table below were recorded as expenditure. Amounts are specified in thousand Euros.

Erlangen, October 6, 2008

Maximilian Reindl 

Chairman of the Board of Directors

  
Audit    179 68
Other confirmation or assessment services - 6
Auditors’ fees   179 7�

Amounts in € thousands 2007/2008 2006/2007
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We have audited the consolidated financial statements – comprising the balance sheet, the income statement, the statement of 

changes in equity, the statements of cash flows and the notes to the financial statements – and the group management report 

prepared by WaveLight Aktiengesellschaft, Erlangen, for the business year from August 1, 2007 to July 31, 2008. The preparation 

of the consolidated financial statements and group management report in accordance with the IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the 

supplementary provisions of German commercial law required to be applied under section 315a(1) HGB (“Handelsgesetzbuch”: 

“German Commercial Code”), as well as the supplementary provisions contained in the Articles of Association, is the responsibility 

of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements and the group 

management report based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated annual financial statements in accordance with section 317 HGB and the generally 

accepted standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut für Wirtschaftsprüfer (IDW). Those standards 

require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstatements materially affecting the presentation of the net assets, financial 

position and results of operations in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 

standards and in the group management report are detected with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the business activities and 

the economic and legal environment of the Company and evaluations of possible misstatements are taken into account in the 

determination of audit procedures. The effectiveness of the internal control system and the evidence supporting the disclosures in the 

consolidated financial statements and the group management report are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of 

the audit. The audit includes assessing the annual financial statements of the companies included in consolidation, the determination 

of the companies to be included in consolidation, the accounting and consolidation principles used and significant estimates made 

by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements and the group management 

report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the consolidated financial statements comply with the IFRSs as adopted by the 

EU and the supplementary provisions of German commercial law required to be applied under section 315a(1) HGB, as well as the 

supplementary provisions contained in the Articles of Association, and give a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position 

and results of operations of the Group in accordance with these requirements. The group management report is consistent with the 

consolidated financial statements, as a whole provides a suitable understanding of the Group‘s position and suitably presents the 

opportunities and risks of future development.

Nuremberg, October 7, 2008

Auditors’ Report

KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft

Aktiengesellschaft

Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Herr Rauh

Wirtschaftsprüfer Wirtschaftsprüfer
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I declare to the best of my knowledge that in accordance with the applicable accounting policies, the consolidated financial statement 

represents a true and fair view of the net assets, financial position and results of operations of the Group and that the consolidated 

management report presents a true and fair view of the business developments including the net group results and the financial position 

of the group and that the basic opportunities and risks of the foreseeable development of the Group are described.

Erlangen,  October 6, 2008

Maximilian Reindl 

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Responsibility statement for the consolidated  
financial statement as of July 31, 2008 and consolidated  
management report of WaveLight AG, Erlangen
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Key Group Figures – 
Year-on-Year Comparison

  
Income statement:      
Revenues    90,876 70,370
Employee expenses    (12,841) (14,183)
Expenses for R&D    (6,742) (5,294)
EBIT     6,292 660
Net finance costs    (3,324) (3,970)
EBT     2,968 (3,310)
Consolidated profit    (10,072) (13,490)
Earnings per share, diluted, in €    (1.53) (2.05)
 
Balance sheet as of July 31:
Property, plant, and equipment    4,608 4,115
Noncurrent financial assets    - 828
Current assets    37,727 35,597
Thereof: cash and cash equivalents    4,416 1,263
  trade receivables    22,643 20,516
  inventories    6,676 7,888
Total assets    62,048 74,398
Equity      11,787 22,995
Thereof:  subscribed capital     6,586 6,577
Provisions    1,025 782
Liabilities    48,617 49,789
Thereof:  financial liabilities    34,662 28,688
Financial liabilities as a percentage of equity    294% 125%
Medium- and long-term debt    116 461
Short-term debt    34,546 28,227
Current assets not including inventories  
as a percentage of short-term debt    12% 4%
    
Cash flow statement:       
Investments in property, plant, and equipment    (2,556) (699)
Depreciation of property, plant, and equipment    1,084 1,724
Cash flows from operating activities    10,665 410
Cash flows from investing activities    (5,471) (1,990)
    
Stock market data:       
Year-end closing price in €    15.95 10.64
Average number of shares (quantity)    6,579,657 6,577,026
Average number of shares, diluted (quantity)    6,587,861 6,577,173
    
Average number of employees    17� 262

Amounts in € thousands    2007/2008 2006/2007
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Rudolf P. Franz

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

rudolf.franz@wavelight.com

Susanne Grethlein

Marketing/Investor Relations

susanne.grethlein@wavelight.com

Contacts

Maximilian Reindl

Chief Executive Officer

max.reindl@wavelight.com
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Financial Calendar

 
 
 
Annual General Meeting  February 3, 2009
 
 
 
 
 
3-Month Report (August 1, 2008 – October 31, 2008)  December 18,  2008
 
Annual Report (August 1, 2008 – December 31, 2008) March 25, 2008 
 
 
 
 
 
Annual General Meeting  June 24, 2009
 
 
  
 
3-Month Report  (January 1, 2009 – March 31, 2009)  May 14, 2009
 
6-Month Report (January 1, 2009 – June 30, 2009) August 13,  2009
 
9-Month Report (January 1, 2009 – September 30, 2009)  November 19, 2009

Publications 2008 (Short Fiscal Year)

Annual General Meeting Fiscal Year 2007/2008

Publication of Quarterly Results for 2009

Annual General Meeting Short Fiscal Year 2008
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Aberrations, optical 

Optical aberrations are individual departures from the ideal 

form of the eye. These aberrations limit the quality of the retinal 

image and are the cause of blurred vision.

Aberrometer 

Diagnostic system for measuring optical aberrations of the eye. 

In contrast to subjective measurements of refraction (determina-

tion of the eye’s refractive power), this system enables objective 

measurements of optical errors and thus patient-specific corneal 

correction.

Aberroscopy-guided LASIK

New treatment method in refractive surgery for improvement of 

visual acuity. The eye is reconfigured, so to speak, on the basis 

of the patient data obtained with the aberrometer and the 

corneal surface is then corrected via LASIK surgery, with the 

result that a sharp image appears on the retina.

Ablation (ablation / removal)

Fine layers of skin can be removed in an extremely controlled 

manner using extremely short light impulses.

Accommodation

The ability of the eye to focus on both near as well as distant 

objects without visual aids. The degrading of this ability from 

approx. the age of 45 is called presbyopia: the affected person 

then needs reading glasses.

Astigmatism 

Distortion in the shape of the cornea (regular or irregular). 

Parallel light rays do not converge at a point on the retina.   

A blurred image is produced.

Cataract surgery

Operations to treat cataracts. The cataract is produced by the 

clouding of the eye’s natural lens. During the operation, the 

clouded lens is broken up using ultrasound, removed and 

replaced by an artificial lens. 

Corneal topography system

Surface presentation (= topography) of the cornea, especially 

also the radii of the curvature.

Excimer laser

The word “excimer” is derived from the term “excited dimer” 

which describes a molecule comprising two atoms in an excited 

state.  It is a cold-light laser which operates with wavelengths 

in the UV (ultraviolet) and VUV (vacuum ultraviolet) range.  

A wavelength of 193 nm is used to correct visual disorders 

(near-sightedness, farsightedness, astigmatism) while a 

wavelength of 308 nm is used to treat psoriasis. 

“Eye-Tracking“-System

A component of the ALLEGRETTO WAVE excimer laser that 

records the movements of the eye during laser treatment and 

directs the treatment beam online.

FDA

Food and Drug Administration in the USA

Femtosecond laser

The femtosecond laser is an infrared laser which is primarily 

used in ophthalmology for cuts inside the cornea, e.g. for 

preparation of the cornea flap for the LASIK. It cuts corneal 

tissue very precisely and practically without heat development.

Hyperopia 

Farsightedness: the eye is too short in relation to its refractive 

power. Parallel light rays converge at a point behind the retina. 

A blurred image is produced.

Glossary 

Astigmatism

Hyperopia

Myopia
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Intraocular surgery

Operations performed inside the eye, e.g. the treatment of 

cataracts and glaucoma or the implantation of artificial lenses. 

Laser in situ keratomileusis (LASIK)

Relatively painless method deployed in refractive surgery for the 

correction of visual disorders. The method involves the use of a 

microkeratome to cut a thin flap on the cornea which is then 

hinged open to prepare for laser treatment.  At the end of the 

surgical procedure, the corneal flap is then closed to its original 

position where it remains in place without needing stitches.

Microkeratome

Sharp, highly precise and oscillating cutter used during a prelim-

inary stage of LASIK surgery. The microkeratome cuts an ultra 

thin flap on the cornea which is opened to permit laser 

sculpting of the cornea and then closed again at the end of the 

surgical procedure.

Myopia 

Nearsightedness: the eye is too long in relation to its refractive 

power. Parallel light rays converge at a point in front of the 

retina. A blurred image is produced.

Objective refraction

Determination of the refractive power of the eye using an 

automatic measuring device, e.g. an aberrometer. 

Ophthalmology

Technical term for eye surgery

Refractive surgery

Corneal surgery for the correction of nearsightedness, 

farsightedness and astigmatism. 

Repetition rate

Number of laser pulses per second.

Scanning Spot System

Operating principle of the ALLEGRETTO WAVE excimer laser 

system. Due to the high pulse frequency (200 – 500 Hz), the 

scanning spot system enables an extremely even distribution of 

energy during the surgical removal of the corneal tissue.

Topography-guided treatment

Taking account of the existing corneal refractions in the corneal 

topography, minute surface irregularities can be recognized and 

corrected. This procedure is useful for irregular cornea surfaces 

such as in the case of scars on the cornea or after previous 

refractive surgery.

Visus

Visual acuity: capability of the eye to see sharply, i.e. to 

recognise as many details as possible in an object. The distance 

between the observer and object is crucial here.

Wavefront-guided treatment

Higher-order refractive defects are recognized and calculated 

using extremely precise diagnostic devices. This usually results 

in an improvement in contrast vision and thus to an improve-

ment of vision in twilight.
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ALLEGRETTO laser family

Excimer laser systems for refractive surgery for the correction of 

nearsightedness, farsightedness and astigmatism. The laser 

systems in the product line are differentiated by configuration 

and features.  

CONCERTO

The CONCERTO is the first high-end excimer laser system in the 

world which integrates diagnostic and treatment possibilities in 

a single platform. 

ALLEGRO Analyzer

The ALLEGRO Analyzer (= aberrometer) with the integrated A-

CAT software provides precise data for a wavefront-guided 

treatment and objectively measures the visual disorders of the 

eye..

ALLEGRO Topolyzer

The ALLEGRO Topolyzer (= cornea surface measuring 

instrument) with the integrated T-Cat software measures the 

corneal topography and makes topography-supported LASIK 

possible. This diagnostic device can be used for eyes with 

strong irregularities where the standard and wavefront-guided 

treatments are at their limits.

ALLEGRO Oculyzer

The ALLEGRO Oculyzer is based on the innovative Scheimpflug 

technology which provides further possibilities for patient-

specific adjustment in the refractive laser surgery thanks to 

complete measurement of the front section of the eye from the 

cornea up to the natural lens of the eye..

ALLEGRO BioGraph 

The Allegro BioGraph is an optical diagnosis system capable of 

conducting a contact-free biometry (= measurement of the 

length of the eye) as well as a simultaneous measurement of 

cornea radii and pupil diameters. With just one click, several of 

the essential parameters of the front section of the eye as well 

as the total length of the eyeball can be measured.

ARTISTA

Artista, with the integrated patient management system, is a 

new software platform developed by WaveLight according to its 

specifications, with a modern, ergonomic design. This new 

software interface, the basis for all equipment, has been 

designed for user friendliness with a universal, self-explanatory 

design concept for operating elements and input screens. The 

software is constructed on a modular basis ensuring that it is 

both upgradeable and future-proof.

A-CAT

The A-CAT software system interprets the data of the patient 

eye measured by the ALLEGRO Analyzer diagnostic system. 

T-CAT

The T-CAT software system interprets the diagnostic data of the 

ALLEGRO Topolyze

OcuLink

The OcuLink software system interprets the diagnostic data of 

the ALLEGRO Oculyzer.

RONDO

The microkeratome used in the course of LASIK surgery cuts an 

ultra thin flap on the cornea which is opened to permit laser 

sculpting of the cornea and then closed again at the end of the 

surgical procedure.

An Overview of the  
WaveLight Product Line
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